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To provide ordinary shareholders with attractive
risk-adjusted returns, principally in the form of regular
dividends, by investing in a diversified portfolio of

primarily UK-based solar energy infrastructure assets.

Investment
* To maintain our pricing discipline in relation to acquisitions.

* To optimise the value of our investments through active asset
management.

Operational

* To achieve consistently positive Asset Management Alpha
(operational outperformance of the portfolio attributable to active
asset management).

Environmental

* To mifigate climate change, enhance biodiversity and coniribute
towards a zero-carbon future.

Society

* To positively impact the communities in which our solar assets are
located.

Governance

* To act in a manner consistent with our values of integrity, fairness
and transparency.

* To maintain strong and constructive relationships with our
shareholders and other key stakeholders.
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Performance Highlights

Financial Highlights

NAV per ordinary share Ordinary shareholders’ NAV Dividend per ordinary share for
as at 31 March 2020 as at 31 March 2020 the year ended 31 March 2020
99.0p £579m 6.87
(2019: 110.9p) {2019: £645m) {2019: 6.65p)
Cash dividend cover (pre-scrip Gearing as at Ordinary shareholder
dividends) for the year ended 31 March 2020 annualised total return since IPO

31 March 2020

| .2x 42% 6.3%

{2019: 1.3x) (2019: 36%) {2019: 9.5%)
Total capacity installed Total electricity generation for the Tonnes of CO,e emissions
as at 31 March 2020 year ended 31 March 2020 avoided p.a.'
755mw 7126wh 307,500
{2019: 691MW) {2019: 693GWHh) (2019: 299,000)
Operating solar assets Generation above budget for the UK homes powered
as at 31 March 2020 year ended 31 March 2020 for one year?
9 7° 185,000
0 +4.77 ,
(2019: 87) (2019: +9.1%) {2019: 184,000

www.greeninvestmenigroup.com/greenimpact/green investiment-handbook
www.gov.uk/govemment/statistics/energy-consumplioninthe-uk
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NextEnergy Solar Fund

SOLAR INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT COMPANY FOCUSED
ON THE UK AND OTHER OECD COUNTRIES

TARGETING A TOTAL DIVIDEND OF 7.05P PER ORDINARY
SHARE IN RESPECT OF THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH
2021, PAYABLE QUARTERLY

DIVERSIFIED PORTFOLIO OF 90 INDIVIDUAL OPERATING
SOLAR PLANTS

OPERATING AND ASSET MANAGEMENT OUTPERFORMANCE
SINCE IPO

POWERING THE EQUIVALENT OF OVER 185,000 UK
HOMES (EQUIVALENT TO BRIGHTON AND ABERDEEN
COMBINED) ANNUALLY WITH CLEAN RENEWABLE
ENERGY

MANAGED BY THE NEXTENERGY CAPITAL GROUP, ONE OF
THE LEADING SPECIALIST INVESTMENT AND ASSET
MANAGERS IN THE SOLAR ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE
SECTOR

OUR INVESTMENT MANAGER IS A SIGNATORY TO THE
UNITED NATIONS PRINCIPLES OF RESPONSIBLE
INVESTMENT

U0 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND




4 Overview

Snapshot of Our Diversified Porifolio

As at 31 March 2020
By Subsidy

o

® 13.9%
® 3.5%
® 46.9%
® 14.5%
® 0.8%
® 7.4%
® 4.6%
® 1.1%
7.3%

% of assets by MW capacity

By Revenue Type
® 45.4%
® 15.8%
o 33.2%
® 19%

3.7%

% of total revenue for the year

ended 31 March 2020

By Solar Module Manufacturer

® 23.2%
® 12.4%
® 9.5%
® 8.6%
® 8.6%
® 8.0%
® 6.5%
® 4.7%
® 4.4%
@ 140%

% of assets by MW capacity
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By Installed Capacity

1.2 ROCs ® 56.7%

1.3 ROCs ® 20.0%

1.4 ROCs ® 23.3%

1.6 ROCs

2.0 ROCs

FiTs UK

FiTs ltaly

1.4 NIROCs

Subsidy-free

% of assets
By Inverter Manufacturer

ROCs/NIROCs ) ® 30.5%

FiTs ‘ ® 19.5%

Fixed PPA ~ i ® 10.3%

Embedded . ® 8.1%

Benefits ® 7.3%

Wholesale ' ® 6.5%
@ 5.7%
® 4.5%
® 7.6%

% of assets by MW capacity
By Location

Hanwha Q Cells ® 87.8%

Yingli ® 12.2%

REC

Jinko Solar

LDK Solar

TRINA

Canadian Solar

BYD

Renesola

Other

% of invested capital

0-5MWp
6-10MWp
>10MWp

SMA

Power Electronics
Huawei

Emerson
Schneider
Gamesa

ABB

Power-One

Other

UK
Italy
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~ GOVERNANCE

Snapshot of Our Diversified Portfolio i

By Location

Operating assets ~ for further
information, see pages 34 and 35.

United Kingdom
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ABUNDANT ENERGY SOURCE
More solar energy hits the Earth in a single hour than the energy being used

by the entire human population in a year

Solar energy generation has achieved significant growih in markels not
characlerised by high levels of solar irradiation (e.g. United Kingdom)

PROVEN AND STABLE TECHNOLOGY
Reliable and prediciable source of electricity due fo high consisiency in vearly
solar irradiation

long uselul life (24-45 vears) with high proportion of conliacted cash flows
from operating solar planis

COST-EFFECTIVE ELECTRICITY GENERATION
low opeialing and mainlenance cosis and ongoing capilal expendiiures
Solar PV lechnology has beneliled liom a signilicant ieduclion in cosls and

non-subsidised solar assels are now economically competitive with fossil fuel
sources and provide aitractive financial refuins

I}"‘S

Fundamental to achieving a more susiainable fuiuie by acceleraling ihe
hiansilion 1o clean renewable eneigy

Meaningful contriibution to reducing CO.e emissions thiough the generalion ol
clean solar power

FiEbs
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s Statement

1 am pleased to report another solid set of operating results, benefiting
from high levels of solar irradiation and technical and operational
outperformance across the portfolio. Over the past year, we have
continued to extend the useful life of more of our assets, reduce
operating costs, make technical improvements and execute our electricity
sales strategy to maximise revenue and reduce power price risk.

Our portfolio and asset management strategy has enabled us to cope
with falling power prices during the course of the financial year,
which resulted mainly from lower international hydrocarbon
commodity prices as well as warmer weather patterns. In addition,
during March 2020 an oil price war between oil-producing countries
coupled with the initial effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on power
demand further depressed power prices in the UK and Italy. This had
a material adverse impact on our NAV as at 31 March 2020, which
reduced to 99.0p.

We have made significant progress with our subsidy-free programme

Kevin Lyon,
Chairman of NESF, commented:

in the last 12 months, becoming the first listed solar investment
company to develop, build and energise a subsidy-free asset in the
UK, Hall Farm Il. We also successfully energised Staughton, the
largest subsidy-free solar plant in the UK to date, which will cover the
yearly electricity demand of approximately 15,000 UK households.

We are also proud to have been awarded the Guernsey Green Fund
accreditation and the London Stock Exchange’s Green Economy Mark
earlier in the year in recognition of our meaningful contribution to
reducing €O, e emissions through the generation of clean solar power.

I am pleased fo present, on behalf of the Board, the Annual Report
ond Audited Financial Statements for NexiEnergy Solar Fund Limited
["NESF" or the “Company’) for the yeor ended 31 Maich 2020.

The final months of this financial year have winessed the emergence
and effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. The electricity sector, along
with most others, is in uncharlered ferritory in terms of the short to
long-term effects stemming from the pandemic and the ongoing efforts
to contain it. Workers in the electricity sector are considered key
workers, and as @ resuli, COVID-19 has not had o material impact on
the operating performance of our portlolio.

In the UK, electricity demand in March 2020 declined by 4.5%
versus expectations without COVID-19 (deviation from business os
usuall'. In April 2020 the decline was more significant at 15.3% as it
captured a full month under lock down'. Declining demand led to
further falls in UK power prices. Before the impact of COVID-19,
power prices hod been falling significantly over the previous quarters
of the financial year, mainly due to an oversupply of gas for power
generation as well as milder winter lemperalures. Recovery in demand
for electricity and the normalisation of power prices will be driven by
the pace of economic recovery once the effects of COVID-9 subside.

Developments in electricity demand and power prices in ltaly, where
we have a sizeable operating portfolio, lorgely followed the same
frend as in the UK.

We, together with the NextEnergy Capitol Group, which manages
our portiolio, continue fo monilor the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic closely, and have taken actions where necessary to protect
employees, contractors and counterparts, while maintaining the
Company's operations. The economic slowdown has not had a

Bloomberg New Energy Finance - COVID-19/Elecvicity Demand Tracker

significont impact on the operations of the Company or its underlying
portfolio. However, the decline in demand for energy has reduced the
forecast price of electricity, which has hod @ material impact on the
valuation of our assefs.

A significant proportion of the Company's revenues are fixed for the
longrterm in accordance with the terms of the relevant ROC, NIROC
or FiT subsidy {61% of the Company’s revenues for the year ended

31 March 2020 were derived from subsidies ond, s at 31 March
2020, the average remaining weighted life under the relevant
subsidies was 16.5 years). We seek to maximise the Compony's
wholesale revenues (that is, non-subsidised revenues) and mitigale the
negative impact of shorterm fluciuations in power prices by securing
fixed prices for specified periods. Of the wholesale revenues derived
from the sale of eleciicity generation, the Company has secured fixed
pricing for 95% of its electricity generation for this summer and 50% of
its electricity generation for winter 2020/21. These fixed prices were
secured primarily during the 2019 calendar year and at prices well
obove the current market prices.

We energised our first subsidydree asset in the UK, Hall Farm I
[SMW}, in August 2019. NESF was the first listed solor investment
company fo develop, build and energise o subsidy-free asset in the
UK, marking a defining moment in our Company's history. Our
second subsidyfree asset, Staughton [SOMWV), was energised in
December 2019. This plant is the largest in our portfolio and will cover
the yearly electricity demand of approximately 15,000 UK
households. Our third subsidy-free asset, High Garrett (OMW), is
expecied to energise in autumn 2020 subject to the impact of
COVID19.

Anawal Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Throughout the year, sales values for UK operating solar plants with
subsidies largely remained al unottractive levels. Nevertheless, during
the first half of the year, we acquired one operating solar plant,
Ballygarvey in Northern Ireland, which demonstrates our Investment
Adviser's expertise in finding value in the saturated UK market. The
8MW plant benefits from subsidies under the NIROCs' regulaiory
framework. The Company now has a presence in England, Scotland,
Wales and Northern lreland.

In August 2019, we raised £100m by issuing further preference shares
on similar terms 1o the £100m issuonce in November 2018. The
preference shares have a fixed 4.75% p.a. coupon, resulting in
significantly lower allin annual cash costs to the Company over the
subsidy period of our assets, when compared to the issue of ordinary
shares or longderm amorising financial debt products. As a resul, the
preference shares also provide us with some protection against ongoing
lower power prices compared 1o tadifional deb financing structures.

Over the past year, our Investment Adviser and Asset Manoger hove
continued to optimise the relums from the portfolio by:
* extending the useful life of 17 more of our assets;

* reducing operating costs through re-negotiating contraciuof terms
and entering inio new agreements;

» implementing technical improvements; and

* executing our electricity sales strategy to maximise revenue and
reduce power price fisk.

For the finoncial year, the ordinary shareholder total retuin was 7.8%
and the NAV tofal retumn was -4.6%. As at 31 March 2020, NESF
had achieved an annualised ordinary shareholder total return of 6.3%

Electricity generated by NESF
provides enough to power

185,000 homes

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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and an annualised NAV total return of 59%, both below the farget
ronge of 7-9% p.c. equity return for investors, based on the IPO price.
At the yearend, the NESF share price was 101.5p, which was a
2.5% premium 1o the NAV per ordinary share of 99.0p {2019 share
price was 117.5p, premium waos 6.0%, NAV per ordinary share was
1109p).

Alter the yearend, the share price has risen and, as of 26 June 2020,
was 1074p, equivalent to a premium of 8.5% 1o the NAV per ordinary
share as af 31 Morch 2020. The Company’s annudlised ordinary
shoreholder total retumn since IPO to 26 June 2020 equates to 7.3%.

Net Asset Value

Al the yearend, the Company's ordinary NAV was £579m,
equivalent to 99.0p per ordinary share (2019: NAV was £645m,
NAV per ordinary share was 1109p).

Qur valuotion methodology has remained consistent since IPO, using
a discounted cash flow model prepared by the Investment Adviser
ond using key assumptions recommended by the Investment Adviser
based on its extensive experience, judgement and benchmarking
valyations against comparable transactions o arrive at the fair value of
each of our assets.

The moin detractor during the 12 months wos the downward revision
of the forecasts for the power prices [13.4p per share). The Investment
Adviser endeavours to mitigate the porifolio’s exposure o power
prices {see “Power Purchase Agreements” in the Invesiment Adviser's
Report on page 21).

The main contributors during the year were the decrease in the
unlevered discount rate from 6.50% to 6.25% {1.6p per share) and the
lease extensions (2.5p per share).

Further details on the valuation process and the calculation of the NAV
can be found on pages 2327 of the Investment Adviser's Report.

Operating Results

Loss before tax was £29.7m [2019: profit of £71.6m] with earnings
per ordinory share of -5.09p (2019: 12.37p). Cash dividend cover
[pre-scrip dividends) was 1.2x [2019: 1.3x). The loss for the year was
due 1o the reduction in the valuation of the investments mainly due to
the reduction in the forecast price of electricity in the short and medium
ferm as mentioned above.
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Portfolio Performance

Energy generated was 712GWh (2019: 693GWh), 4.7% above
budget (2019: 9.1%), resuliing in the sixth continuous year of
outperformance.

During the year, solor irradiation across the portfolio was 4.0% above
expeciation {2019: 9.0%). Asset Management Alphe for the year was
0.7% (2019: 0.1%), which would have been 1.5% (2019: 1.1%} if we
excluded distributor network outages, over which we have no control.

Our UK portiolio performed above expectations with generation
outperformance of 4.6% [2019: 9.4%) and an Asset Management
Alpha of 0.7% {2019: -0.1%).

Our lialian porifolio also performed well during the year with 6.4%
extra generation over budget {2019: 5.4%) and an Asset
Management Alpha of 1.3% (2019: 2.5%).

Overall, we estimate the generation outperformance 1o have delivered
additional revenues of approximately £3.5m (2019: £6.4m) to the
Company.

Portfolio Update

During the yeor, the porifolio’s insialled capoacity increased by 64MW
with the acquisition of Ballygorvey and the energisation of our wo
subsidy-ree assefs, Hall Farm Il and Staughton. The construction of High
Garrett is advancing and is ted to add o further MWV by autumn
2020, subject to the impact o{)ec COVIDA19 pandemic.

Our sirategy envisages a total of approximately 150MW in
subsidy-free capacity in the portfolio by the end of the current
financial year. This amounts to an esfimated further invesiment of
between £55m and £80m {6-8% of GAV as ot 31 March 2020).
Assuming 150MW of subsidy-free capacity and average generation
levels, our subsidy-free portfolio would be equivalent to
approximately 1520% of the Company's generation during the year
ended 31 March 2020. We are progressing strategies for the sale
of electricity from these subsidy-free plants 1o secure attraciive
riskadjusted returns using electricity sales agreements, corporate
power puichase agreements or directwire agreements with
offtakers. For example, the Company will finance, design, build,
operate and own over 43MW of solar, the power generaled from
which will be sold directly to Anglian Water for a 25-year period
thiough private wire agreements.

On 14 May 2020, two subsidyree projects under development,
Strensham {40MW) & Uanwern [75MW), were disposed of for a
combined consideration of £11.5m. This resulted in NESF recovering all
development cosis incurred and producing a refurn of capital invested
significantly in excess of NESF's annualised target relurn of 79%.
Construction had not started on either of these projects, and they were
disposed of as it became apparent duting the development process
they would not meet NESF's annualised larget retum, partly due fo the
decline in power price forecasts. The iransaction constituied a smaller
relaled party transaction as set out in the FCA's Listing Rules. The
Investment Adviser's Report on page 22 confains more information on
our subsidyfree asset stralegy.

Capital Raising and Debt Financing

In August 2019, the Compoany successfully issued a second tranche of
preference shares, raising gross proceeds of £100m. The proceeds
were deployed 1o partially repay a HoldCo level shortterm credit
facility, finance the acquisition o?/ Ballygarvey and invest in the
construction of Staughton.

The preference shares are irredeemable save for in the event of a
change in contiol or delisting of the Company and then only at the
option of the holders at any fime after 1 April 2030. After March
2036, preference shares have the right o convert into new ordinary
shares or a new class of unlised B shares with the same dividend and
capital rights as the ordinary shares, based on the preference share
issue price of 100p and the NAV per ordinary share at the time of
conversion. The preference shares are treated as a longrterm liability.

As at 31 March 2020, in addition to the £200m of preference
shares (2019: £100m), the Company’s subsidiaries had consolidated
finoncial debt outsianding of £214m {2019: £269m) on a look-
through basis, including projectlevel debt. Of the financial deb,
£196m comprises two longterm fully amortising debt facilities and
£18m was diown under a shorterm credit facility.

Al the yearend, the Company’s subsidiaries had £52m undrawn from
two shorterm credit facilities and NESF had cash of £25m. One
shorterm credit facility of £20m was extended o February 2022
during the year and the other of £70m has been extended fom July
2020 to July 2022 following the yearend.

The toial financial debt represented 22% of GAV as at 31 March
2020 (2019: 27%). As ot 31 Moarch 2020, the aggregate gearing
comprising the total financiol debt and the Company's preference
shares represented 42% of GAV (2019: 36%).

Dividends

The Directors have approved o fourth interim dividend of 1.7175p per
ordinary share, which will be payable on 30 June 2020 to ordinary
shareholders on the register as at the close of business on

22 May 2020. Following the payment of the fourth interim dividend,
the Company will have paid tofal dividends of 6.87p per ordinary
share in respect of the yeor ended 31 March 2020 (2019: 6.65p).

During the year under review, the Company paid a fotal of £36.7m
of dividends {2019: £31.5m} and, in addition, issued £3m of scrip
shares to ordinary shareholders who elected for the scrip dividend
allernative (2019: £6.6m|, making a folal of £39.7m of distiibutions
{2019: £38.1m).

For the financial yeor ending 31 March 2021, the UK RPI applicable
1o the value of ROCs is 2.6% as published by the Office for National
Stalistics). We are therelore torgeting an increased total dividend of
7.05p per ordinary share in respect of the current financiol year. The
Company intends fo continue to offer scrip dividends subject fo
shareholder approval at this year's AGM.

The Company has paid dividends since IPO that have increased
annuolly in line with RPI. However, power prices and inflation levels
have become less correlated since the IPO. This has been
exacerbated by the significant fall in the forecast power prices and the
uncertain economic outlook as a result of COVID-19. We believe it is
prudent, therefore, to keep the Company's future dividend policy
under review.

Environmental, Social and Governance Matters

The Company is commitied to its Environmental, Social and
Govemance {"ESG”) responsibilities. Our Investment Adviser is o
signatory of the United Nations' Principles for Responsible Investments
and has integrated ESG principles into all aspecis of the NEC Group's

investment and asset management processes. -

The Company makes a meaningful contribution to reducing CO,e

emissions through the generation of clean solar power. The elecincny
generaled by our portfolio during the year ended 31 March 2020 is
equivalent to a saving of 307,500 tonnes of CO,e emissions [2019:

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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299.000 tonnes) and sufficient to power some 185,000 UK homes
for an eniire year [2019: 184,000 homes). This is roughly equivalent
lo powering a city with 443,000 inhabitonts {e.g. Brighton and
Aberdeen combined) for an entire year.

Our Asset Manager actively engages in aclivities that enhance the
environment and community surounding our solar plants, including,
where feasible, on-site activities such as encouraging wildflower
meadows, installing bug hotels, partnering with local beekeepers and
other initiatives to improve the local biodiversity, as well as locol
community progrommes.

During the year, NESF was awarded the london Stock Exchange's
Green Economy Mark, which recognises companies that derive over
50% of their annual revenues from products and services that
contribute fo the global green economy. As an investiment company
thal meels strict eligibility criteria of grean investing and has the
obijective of a net positive outcome on the planet’s environment, the
Company wos also designated a Guemsey Green Fund by the
Guernsey Financial Services Commission during the vear.

During the year, the Company made a charitable donation of
£50,000 io the NextEnergy Foundation. Information on the
NextEnergy Foundation and how it has used the donation can be
found of page 40.

Board Changes

During the year, Sharon Porr resigned, and the Board would like to
take this opportunity to thank her for her contributions during her time
as a Director, ond we wish her well for the future.

The Board was pleosed to announce the appointment of Joanne
Peacegood fo the Board as a Non-executive Director with effect from
20 February 2020. This appoiniment mainiains oppropriate Board
diversity and broadens expertise, especially with respect to audit

and conirols.

Proposed Change to Investment Policy

The Company is permitted 1o invest up to 15% of GAV {at the time of
investmeni) in OECD countiies outside the UK. The Company acquired
a portfolio of lialian solar assets in 2017 that has delivered athactive
riskadjusted returns as well as increasing our portfolio’s geographic
diversification. As at 31 March 2020, the value of the ltalian solar
assets was 12% of GAV

In recent years, UK solar assels have become more expensive, and,
as o result, yield lower returns. There continue to be more attractively
priced assels elsewhere with risk-adjusted returns that are compalible
with the Company's objectives, but the current limit on the Company's
permission to invest in OECD countries outside the UK severely
resiricts the Company’s ability to acquire such assels. Increasing the
Compony's exposure to nonUK assets would have the additional
benefit of reducing the sensitivity of our overall portfolio lo volatility of
wholesale power markels.

Having considered the benefits to shareholders of increasing the
diversity in the geographic focus of the Company’s portfolio, sought
advice from the Company’s corporate brokers and sought the views of
the Company's largest ordinory shareholders, we have concluded that
it would be in the best interests of shareholders as o whole o increase
the Company’s authority to invest in OECD countries outside the UK,
Therefore, at this year's AGM, we infend to put forward an ordinary
resolution seeking ordinary shareholder approval fo permit the
Company fo invest up to 30% of GAV (at the time of invesimenti) in
OECD countries outside the UK.

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

Distribution of Reports and Communications

This Annual Report can be accessed on the Company's website. As
part of our principles of environmental responsibility, the Company no
longer issues printed copies of reports or communications, except
where o sharehalder has expressly requested o hard copy.

Outlook

The ongoing COVID-19 siluation is unprecedented and the effects on
eleciricity demand ond prices in the short- and medium+erm, and on
the economies in our key markets, remain uncerlain. We continue fo
monitor closely macro and micro economic indicators and
governmenial information fo assess the potential future impact on the
Company's activities. Nonetheless, the Company will continue to
focus on generating attroctive financiol returns for our shareholders,
while having positive social and environmental impacts.

The price for electricity is driven by a number of faciors that are
proving difficult o predict under the current environment but is
ulimately dependent on the supply and demand for eleciricity. On o
macro level, countries hove operated different processes towards the
litiing of the lock downs, and the chonge in the number of COVID-19
cases affecls governmental infervention and consumer confidence. The
economic shock of COVID-19 has had a profound impact on oil

rices and the prices of energy. Recovery in demand for eleciricity will

driven by the pace of economic recovery once the effecls of the

pandemic subside.

The development and construction of two subsidyfree assets has
demonstiated our obility to construct such solar plants in the UK. In
seeking to meet our larget of @ totol of opproximately 150MW in
subsidy-ree solar plants by the end of the current financial year, we
will sered projects from our pipeline of development opportunities that
con siill meet the Company’s target teturns in these volatile markets.

The NEC Groupss specialist energy trading desk will seek to ensure
that our wholesale electricity sales strotegy, including for our subsidy-
free assets, maximises revenues and manages the risk of further falls in
power prices during these volatile times.

We are aiming to extend the useful life of o further 20 assets during
the current financial year, adding to the 31 assets which hove clieady
secuied extensions. These extensions will be value accrefive, and
oplimise our revenues.

We will keep under review deployment of ancillary solar technologies
to miligate the generation risks of individuol assets, whilst adaping our
portfolio to the changing dynamics of the solar markets in which our
assets are located.

ESG continues fo be a fundamental part of our mission. As aclivities
mitigating climate change accelerate globally, the execution of our
ESG policy will ensure we continue to lead by example. Qur
Company and stakeholders are oligned to create a better environment
for both this and future generations.

In these extraordinary times, we will continue to monitor closely the
impacts of COVID-19 on the UK and ltalian economies, and the effec!
they may have on the Company and ils assets.

Finally, on behalf of my fellow Direciors, | would like to express my
thanks and appreciation for the numerous people who have worked
under difficult conditions during the lock down 1o enable cur Company
1o continue to operate successfully in these challenging times.

hy [ -

Kevin Lyon,
Chairman
29 June 2020
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Our Business Model

Structure

The Company is regulated by the Guermnsey Financial Services
Commission as a registered closed-ended investment company.

The Company's issued share capital comprises ordinary shares and
preference shares. The ordinary shares are lisied on the FCA's
premium segmeni of the Official List and raded on the london
Stock Exchange’s Main Market. The preference shares ore not listed
or lraded on any public market. The rights atiaching 1o each class
of shares are summarised in nofe 10 and 21 1o the Financial
Statements on pages 89 and 97.

The Company makes is investments thiough intermediate holding

companies {“HoldCos') and underlying special purpose vehicles

("SPVs") that hold the solor assets. The NESF Group comprises the
Company, the HoldCos and the SPVs. As explained in note 1 to

the Financial Statements on page 82, as the Company is an

investment enfity as described by IFRS 10, the Company does not
prepare consolidated accounts and, instead, holds its investments in
its HoldCos and SPVs ot fair value.

The Company has the ability fo use short- and long-term debt at the
Company, HeldCo and SPV levels.

Operating Model

The Company's business model follows that of an externclly
managed investment company. Therefore, the Company does not
have any employees and outsources its activities to third party
service providers, including the Investment Manager, Asset
Manager and Administrator who are the principal service providers.
The Investment Manager oulsources specific services to the
Invesiment Adviser.

INVESTMENT ADVISER Chal bl E Ll L) COMPANY SECRETARY
NexiEnergy Capital Limited & ADMINISTRATOR
{See poge 14) Apex Fund and Corporate Services
{Guernsey) Limited
I {See page 57)
INVESTMENT MANAGER NEXTENERCISOLAR
FUND LIMITED
NextEnergy Capital IM Limited _
ndependent Board of 5 Direciors OTHER KEY SERVICE
e=ipagelisl) [See pages 52-53) PROVIDERS &
ADVISERS
INVESTMENT Registrar, Financial
Advisers Legal Advisers,
Corporate Broking, Public
Relations and Atditor
{See page 109)
HOLDCOs
100% owwned by MESF
Intermedicie holding companies SHORT- & LONG-TERM
{See pages 87-89) FINANCIAL DEBT
PROVIDERS
INVESTMENT e )
ASSET MANAGER 2RV

WiseEnergy (Great Britain} Limited
& WiseEnergy ltalia Srl

{See page 14}
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Management of the Company

The independent Board is responsible to shareholders for the overall
management of the Company, including strategy and sirategic
aims, corporate governance, risk management and financial
reporting.

The Company has outsourced the management of its day-to-day
activities to the Investment Manager and the Administrator, which
operate within clearly defined terms of agreements that set out their
roles, responsibilities and authorities. The Invesiment Manager,
operating under guidelines delermined by the Board, has direct
responsibility for the decisions relating to the day-lo-day running of
the Company and is accountable to the Board for the investment
and operating performance of the Company. The Administrator
provides the Company with company secrelarial, fund accounting
and administration services.

Further information on the division of responsibilities for the
management of the Company can be found in the Corporate
Govermance Statement on pages 55-57.

Management of the Company’s Investment
Activities and Assets

The investment management services are provided by NexiEnergy
Capital M Limited, which is incorporated in Guernsey and licensed
and regulated by the Guermsey Financial Services Commission. The

Michael Bonte-Friedheim is founding
Partner and CEO of the NEC Group. He
has 20 vears' specialist experience in the
power and energy secior and was
previously Managing Director in Goldman
Sachs' energy and power invesiment
banking team in london and non-executive
Chairman and CEO of a number of listed
energy companies.

investment advisory services and other services delegated by the
fnvestiment Manager are provided by NextEnergy Capital Limited,
which is incorporated in the UK and regulated by the FCA. The
ossel managementi services are provided by WiseEnergy (Great
Britain) Limited & WiseEnergy Htalia Sil. The key roles of the
Investment Manager, Investiment Adviser and Asset Manager are
shown on the following page.

The Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and Asset Manager
are all members of the NextEnergy Capital Group (the “NEC
Group’). The NEC Group, which is privotely owned, was founded
in 2007 and has evolved into a leading specialist invesiment and
osset manager in the solar energy infrastructure sector. Since ifs
inception, it has been aclive in the development, consiruction and
ownership of solor assets, which is its sole focus. As at 31 March
2020, the NEC Group had assets under managemeni of £1.7
billion with a cumulative generating capacity of more than 1.3GW.
In addition 1o the Company, it manages two private equity funds,
NexiPower Il LP finvests in solar assets in ltaly} and NexiPower Il LP
(invests in solar assels globally).

The NEC Group's team of some 190 individuals hos significant
experience in energy and infrastructure transactions across
international jurisdictions. The Invesiment Adviser's Investment
Commitiee comprises Michael Bonie-Friedheim, Aldo Beolchini and
Abid Kazim (formerdy CEO of WiseEnergy), who combined, hove in
excess of 60 years' industry experience.

Since it was founded, the NEC Group has provided operating
osset managemeni, monitoring, technical due diligence and other
services to over 1,500 utility-scale solar power plants with an
installed capacity in excess of 1.7GW. lis asset management clients
include listed solar funds (in addition to the Company}, banks,
private equily funds and other specialist investors. The Asset
Manager has created o proprietary asset management platiorm
which integrates all technical, financiol and commercial data to
analyse clients’ dato in realfime and generate insight, all of which
help fo protect and enhance the longterm quality and performance.
The Asset Manager's software and systems, which have been
refined over the past 11 years, and specialist siaff with extensive
solar experience allows WiseEnergy to be at the forefront of the
“digitalisation of energy"”.

The collective experience of the NEC Group of investing and
managing solar assels best positions the Company fo implement
efficiencies at both the investment and operating asset levels. The
technical and operating outperformance of the Company's portfolio
to date underlines the benefits of this comprehensive strategic
relationship.

Aldo Beolchini is Managing Partner
and CIO of the NEC Group. He has 20
years' experience in investment banking
and renewable energy. Prior to joining the
NEC Group in 2008, he was a Vice
President ai Morgan Stanley Investment
Banking.

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Entity Principal Roles

Investment Manager

NEXTENERGY

CAPITAL

Act as the Company's Allernative Investment Fund Manager ["AIFM’), providing portfolio and risk
management services as required by the EU's AIFM Directive

Make invesiments and approve divestments in accordance with the Company’s investment policy,
subject to them having been recommended by the Invesiment Adviser

Issue reports to the Board on dll financial, operational and technical issues and the valuation of the
Company's investmenis and the calculation of its NAV

Provide advice and recommendations conceming the Company's investment stiategy, portfolio
composition and financing and strategy to achieve the Company’s objeclives and farget returns

Provide investment and other advice and recommendations in respect of the Company’s existing
ond potential investments and negotiate all project contracts with counterparties

Identify and evaluate invesiment opportunities for the Company

Day+o-day wnning of the Company (excluding matters for which the Administrator is primarily
responsible), including oversight of the Company's other key service providers

Investment Adviser °
within the agreed risk appetite

L]

NENTENERGY -

CAPITAL .

L

Asset Manager

g —

Manage debit finance at the HoldCo and SPV levels

Monitor financial performance against the Company’s obijeclives, targets and forecasts and
manage the process for valuing the Company's investments and calculating its NAV

Monitor operational performance of the Company's portfolio
Manage the Company's investor relations oclivities

Monitor and oversee the doy-io-day operations of the Company’s operating assets and subsidy-free
developments, including oppointment and oversight of service providers, contractors and suppliers

Implement the Company's ESG stiategy applicable to its investments
Manage resolution of operational issues and disputes affecting the Company's investments

Technical and financial analysis of each of the Company’s invesiments fo assess performance and
identify polential improvements

Seek cost savings through contract tenders, renegotiations and exfensions

Develop and manage the Company's energy soles strategy, including electiicity sales agreemens,
corporate power purchase agreements and directwire agreements with offtakers

Manage the SPVs' administrative, financial and accounting functions and provide directors 1o
their boards

Administration of the Company

The Company has appoinied Apex Fund and Corporate Services
(Guernsey) Limited to provide company secretarial, fund accounting
and administration services. Further details on the Administrator’s
responsibilities can be found in the Corporate Governance

Statement on poge 57.

The Company offers a scrip dividend alternative to ordinary
shareholders and currently anticipates that it will continue to do so.
Scrip dividends provide ordinary shareholders with the flexibility 1o
receive their quarterly dividend in cash or newly issued ordinary
shares. Details of the scrip dividend allernative for the year ending
31 March 2021 will be set out in a separate circular fo ordinary
shareholders, which is expected to be published in August 2020.

The Administrator is port of the Apex Group, which was established
in Bermuda in 2003 and is a global financial services provider. It
has over 40 offices worldwide and more than 3,000 employees.

Dividend Policy, Scrip Dividends and Dividend
Target for Financial Year Ending 31 March 2021
The Company pays quarlerly interim dividends of equal amount, with
dividends declared in August, November, February and May and
paid in or around Seplember, December, March and June
respectively.

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND  Annuol Repost for the year ended 31 March 2020

Once published, a copy of the circular will also be available in the
Company's websile (www.nextenergysolarfund.com).

The target dividend for the financial year ending 31 March 2021 is
7.05p per ordinary share, an increase of 2.6% compared 1o the
financial year ended 31 March 2020. We expect fo declare four
quarterly dividends of 1.7625p each.

For the reasons explained in the Chairman's Statement on page 9,
we believe it is prudent to keep the Company’s dividend policy in
respect of the Company's financial year beginning 1 April 2021 and
subsequenti financial years under review.
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Our Investment Strategy and Track Record

Investment Strategy
Our strategy is straightforward:

¢ Investment: \We seck to own o broad range of large-scale
solar energy infrastructure assets, located in the UK and other
OECD countries, that generate reliable cash flows over their
useful lives {typically, at least 25 to 45 years from energisation}.

¢ Asset management: \We seek lo enhance the relurns from
our assets through aclive asset management, including rigorously
contiolling costs, delivering operational efficiencies, extending
their useful lives and implemeniing our energy sales strategy to
mitigate power price risk.

¢ Financing: We seek to optimise the riskadjusted refums 1o our
ordinary shareholders by funding our activities though an
appropriate mix of shareholder equity and gearing, subject to
gearing being capped at 50% of GAV.

* Risk management: We seek lo aclively manage polential
risks, including mainlaining a diversified exposure by location,
third-party suppliers, service providers and other commercial
counterparlies to improve the resilience of the Company's
portfolio and contributing to its long-term sustainable success.

Investment Policy’

The Company seeks lo achieve its investment objective by investing
exclusively in solar energy infrastructure assets, primarily in the UK.
Not more than 15% of the Company's GAV [calculated at the time
of investment) may be invested in solor assets that are located
outside the UK. Investments outside the UK will be made only in
OECD countries that the nvestment Manager and Invesiment
Adbviser believe have a stable solar energy regulatory environment
and provide investment opportunities with similor, or better,
invesiment charocteristics and retums relative to investmenis in the
UK.

The Company invests in solar assets that are primorily ground-based
and utility-scale and which are on sites that may be agricultural,
industrial or commercial. The Company may also acquire portfolios
of residential or commercial building-integrated installations. The
Compoany fargets solar assets that are anficipated to generate
stable cash flows over their osset lifespan.

The Company typically acquires sole ownership of individual solar
assets through SPVs, but may enter info joint ventures or acquire
majority interesis, subject, in each case, to the Company
maintaining a contiolling interest. Where an interest of less than
100% in o particular solar asset is acquired, the Company will
protect its controlling shareholder rights through shareholders’
agreements or other legal arrangements. Investments by the
Company in solar assets may be by way of either equity or o mix
of equity and shareholder loans.

No single investment {or, if an additional stake in an exisfing
investment is acquired, the combined value of both the existing ond
the additional siake) by the Company in any one solar asset will
constitute [at the time of investment) more than 30% of GAV. In
addition, the four largest solar assets will not constitute (at the time of
investment) more than 75% of GAV.

The Company mostly acquires operating solar assets, but it may
also invest in solar ossets that are under development (that is, af the
stage of origination, project planning or construction] when

acquired. Such assels in aggregate will not constitute {at the time of
investment) more than 10% of GAV.

The Company may also agree to forward-fund by way of secured
loans the construction costs of solar assets where it retains the right
{but not the obligation) to acquire the relevant asset once
operational. Such forward-funding will not fall within the 10%
development restriction referred to above but will be restricted in
aggregate o not more than 25% of GAV {at the time such
ariangement is entered into] and will only be underiaken where
supported by appropriate security (which may include financial
instruments as well as assetbacked guarantees). The Compony will
not employ forward funding and engage in development activity in
relation fo the same project or asset.

A significant proportion of the Company's revenues result from the
sale of the entirety of the electricity generated by its solar assets
within the terms of power purchase agreements {"PPAs"| entered info
from fime o fime. These include the monetisation of ROCs, NIROCs
and FiTs and any olher regulated benefits and the sale of electricity
generated by the assets to energy consumers and energy suppliers.
Within this context, the Company expecis o execute PPAs with
creditworthy counterparties at the appropriate time.

The Company maintains a diversified exposure to its third-party
suppliers, service providers and other commercial counterparties,
including landlords, developers, engineering and procurement
contractors, technical component manufocturers and PPA
counterparties.

The Company may employ leverage, provided thai it does not
exceed {at the ime the relevant arangement is entered into) 50% of
GAV. For this purpose, leverage includes all short- ond long-term
debt rised by the Company or any of its HoldCos or SPVs, as well
os the aggregate subscription monies paid in respect of all
preference shares in issue and any unpaid dividends due in respect
of the preference shores.

The Company invests with a view to holding its solor assets until the
end of their useful lives. However, assets may be disposed of or
otherwise realised where the Investment Manager determines, in its
discretion, that such realisation is in the best interests of the
Company. Such circumstances may include [without limitation)
disposals for the purposes of realising or preserving value, or of
realising cash resources for reinvestment or otherwise. The Company
seeks to optimise and extend the lifespan of its assets and may
invest in their repowering of and/or the integration of ancillary
technologies [e.g. energy storage] with its solar assels to fully utilise
grid connections and balance the electricity grid with a view to
generaiing greater revenues. The Company expects to re-invest
cosh (in excess of that required 1o meet the Company's ongoing
operating expenses and to pay dividends in accordance with its
dividend policy) in additional appropriately priced asses.

The Company may invest cash held for working capital purposes
and pending investment or distibution in nearcash equivalents,
including money market funds.

The Company may, but is not obliged to, enter into hedging
arrangements in relation to interest rates and/or power prices.

Where invesiments are made in currencies other thon sterling,
currency hedging may be cariied out 1o seek to provide protection
io the level of sterling dividends and other distributions that the

1 The Boord intends 1o seek shaieholder approval af this years AGM for certain changes 1o the invesiment policy. primarily to increase the limit on the Company's investments in

OECD countries outside the UK fiom 15% to 30%

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Ovur Investment Strategy and Track Record coninved

Company cims fo pay on its shares and in order to reduce the risk Hedging transactions (if carried out) will only be undertaken for the
of currency fluctuations and the volatility of returns that may result purpose of efficient portfolio management to protect or enhance
from such currency exposure. This may involve the use of forward returns from the Company’s portfolio and will not be carried out for
foreign exchange contracts to hedge the income from assets that speculalive purposes.

are exposed lo exchange rate risk against sterling and foreign
currency borrowings 1o finance foreign currency assets.

Any materiol change to the Company's investment policy will be
made only with the approval of the FCA and of the Company's
ordinary shareholders by ordinary resolution.

Capital Deployment Timeline

1,200
1,000

800

(£Em)
(=)
8

- Preference Capital Raised Capital Deployed

- Ordinary Equity Raised - Debt Raised
Installed Capacity

Total Generation

2,482 GWh
DD total portfolio generation since IPO
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Performance since IPO'

NESF Total Return vs FTSE All-Share Index Total Return
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Compound Performance to 31 March 2020
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Five-year Record

Year Ended 31 March

Financial Key Performance Indicators 2017 2018
Ordinary shares in issue 278.0m 456.4m 575.7m 581.7m 584.2m
Ordinary share price 97.75p 110.5p 11 .0p 117.5p 101.5p
Market capitalisation of ordinary shoares £272m £504m £639m £683m £593m
NAV per ordinary share* 98.5p 104 9p 105.1p 110%p 990p
Tolal ordinary NAV* £274m £479m £605m £645m £579m
Premium/[discount) lo NAV* (0.8%) 5.3% 5.6% 6.0% 2.5%
Earmnings per ordinary share 0.78p 13.81p 5.88p 12.37p {5.09p)
Dividend per ordinary share 6.25p 6.31p 6.42p 6.65p 6.87p
Dividend yield* 6.39% 571% 5.78% 5.66% 6.77%
Cash dividend cover - pre-scrip dividends* 1.2x Llx 1.1x 1.3% 1.2x
Preference shares in issue = = - 100m 200m
Financial debt outsianding af subsidiories level £217m £270m £270m £269m £214m
Financial debt {financial debt/GAV)* 44% 36% 31% 27% 22%
searing (financial debt + preference shares/GAV)* 44% 36% 3% 36% 42%
GAV £489m £749m £875m £1,014m £991m
Weighled average cost of capital 58% 59% 5.8% 5.4% 5.5%
Oxdinary shareholder total return — cumulaiive since PO 6.1% 26.7% 33.6% 46.7% 37.5%
Ordinary shareholder total return — annualised since IPO 3.2% Q1% 8.5% 9.5% 6.3%
Ordinary shareholder total return 0.2% 21.1% 6.2% 11.8% {7.8%)
Ordinary NAV total retum* 3.7% 14.4% 6.3% 11.8% (4.6%)
Ordinary NAV tofal refurn — annudlised since IPO* 19% 49% 70% 8.1% 59%
Ongoing charges ratio* 1.2% 1.2% 1.1% 1.1% 11%
Weighled average discount rafe 7.7% 79% 7.3% 70% 6.8%
Invested capital* £48Im £522m £734m £896m £950m
Number of assets 33 4] 63 87 %0
Tolal installed capacity 414MW 454MW 569MW 6IMW 755MW
Annual generation 225 GWh 394 GWh 451 GWh 693 GWh 712 GWh
% increase {year-on-year) 878% 75% 14% 54% 3%
Generation since IPO 0.2 TWh 0.6 TWh 1.1 Twh 1.8 TWh 2.5 TWh
Irradiofion {delta vs. budget} +0.4% {0.3%) {09%) +9.0% +4.0%
Generation (delia vs. budget) +4.1% +3.3% +09% +91% +4.7%
Asset Management Alpha* +3.7% +3.6% +1.8% +0.1% +0.7%
Weighted average lease life 257 24.6 23.3 252 269
years years years years years

* Allemalive performance measures - see pages 101103

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Introduction

As at 31 March 2020, the NAV per ordinary share wos 99.0p
{2019: 1109p). The reduction since last year occurred mainly at the
end of the financial year, and primarily reflects the adoption of the
most recent forward power curves released by the two independent
market forecasters used by the Company. These forward power
cuives reflect a substontial reduction in power prices in the short- to
medium-term, and incorporate an anticipated reduction in demand
for electricity and a corresponding decrease in energy-related
commodity prices as a result of the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Compared to December 2019, the blended average curve used by
the Company has declined on average by 16.9% over the nexi five
years, including a 21.2% reduction over 2020 and 2021, ond by
5.0% from 2025 uniil 2050. The blended average curve
coresponds lo an average solar caplure price of approximately
£399 per MWh for the period 20202024 and £46.8 per MWh
for the period 20252050 {in 2020 prices). This downword shift in
the blended curve resulted in o negative impact on NAV per
ordinary share of approximately 6.5p per share.

Portfolio Highlights

During the year, the portfolio grew from 87 1o Q0 assels, which
represented an increase of G4MW, increasing the total capacity of
the portfolio to 755MW. Our subsidy-ree construclion progress
contiibuted 55MW of this increased capacity.

In August 2019, our first subsidy-free asset, (Holl Farm II, an
extension of one of our exisfing sites in Leicestershire) was
connected 1o the grid ofter a five- month construction period. The
SMW plant was the first subsidy-free plant to be energised by a UK
listed investment company.

By December 2019 we had completed the second subsidy-fee
asset, Staughion, located on the Combridgeshire/Bedfordshire
border. This became the largest asset in our porifolio at SOMW
and waos also the UK's largest subsidy-free plant. It was connected
to the grid on schedule after an eightmonth construction period.

Our third subsidy-ree asset, High Garrett, is expected to energise in
autumn 2020, subject to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

No. of Assets

Michael Bonte-Friedheim

Aldo Beolchini
Investment Committee of the Investment Adviser

Abid Kazim

Pre- construction works began in early 2020 and full construction is
expected to commence in the summer of 2020. High Garrett will
be a MW extension to the SMW ROC asset known as Kenlishes
acquired in 2016.

In August 2019, the Company announced the acquisition of
Ballygarvey, an BMW operating asset located in Northern Ireland.
The plant receives subsidies under the Northern lrish ROCs
regulatory framework and receives 1.4 NIROCs per MWh
generated. NIROCs have substaniially the same value as UK ROCs
ond operate under a similar regulatory framework.

Portfolio Performance

During the year, solar irradiafion across the eniire portfolio was
4.0% above expeciation {2019: 9.0%), and generation was 4.7%
above budget (2019: 9.1%). Asset Management Alpho for the year
was 0.7% (2019: 0.1%), which would have been 1.5% (2019:
1.1%) it we excluded distributor network outages.

The Asset Management Alpha is an important metric that allows the
Company to ideniify the “real” outperformance of the portfolio due
to active management and, excluding the effect of variation in solar
iradiation. The “nominal” oulperformance is calculated s, the
GWh generated by the portfolio versus the GWh expected in the
assumptions used at the time of acquisition.

In the UK, the summer of 2019 was one of the hottest on record,
with the highest ever UK temperature of 38.7°C recorded in
Cambridge on 25 July. Whilst the extra irradiation drove a greoter
than expected level of generation, the Asset Manager had to cope
with some adverse effects of high temperatures on the technical
performonce of solar PV components, which perform optimally at
temperatures below 25°C.

During the year, certain plants suffered from grid curtailment, as
generation peaks driven by exceplional irradiation levels exceeded,
at times, the export copacily allocated by the grid authority to each
plont. In addition, the portfolio was negotively impacted due to the
works carried out lo replace the inverfers at our Raglington plant.

Financial Year Ended 31 March Monitored
2016 23
2017 AN
2018 55
2019 84
2020 85

Cumulative from IPO
to 31 March 2020 85
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irradiation Generation Asset
(Delta vs. (Delta vs. Management

Budget) Budget) Alpha
+0.4% +4.1% +3.7%
{0.3%) +3.3% +3.6%
{09%) +09% +1.8%
+9.0% +9.1% +0.1%
+4.0% +4.7% +0.7%
+2.5% +5.0% +2.5%
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During the year, o government grant was issued to incentivise UK
generators to carry out an update on the profection relay seftings fo
reduce the number of nuisance tiips. The works to undertake this
affected 58 assets in the portfolio and they were carried out during
the winter of 2019 ond spring months of 2020 in order to minimise
the impact on generation.

Our UK portlolio performed above expectations with generation
outperformance of 4.6% (2019: 9.4%) and an Asset Managemeni
Alpha of 0.7% {2019: -0.1%|.

Our ltalian portfolio also performed well during the year with 6.4%
{2019: 5.4%) extra generation over budgel and an Assel
Management Alpha of 1.3% {2019: 2.5%).

The Asset Manager monitors actual performance versus
expeciations for assets operational for at least two months post
completion. The three rooftop portfolios have been excluded as
irradiation is not monitored. The two operational subsidy-free assets
were excluded os they are currently passing through the internal
Provisional Acceplance Clearance [PAC) process.

Portfolio Optimisation
Asset Life Extensions Programme

Extending the useful life of the Company's assets is @ value-creating
opportunity we have focused on since 2015. During the yeor, we
secured opiions or rights to extend the leases and/or planning on 17
individual UK plants. The positive impact on NAV of these lease
extensions amounts lo 2.4p per ordinary shore af the yearend. In
total, as at 31 March 2020, 31 UK assets [284MW) have secured
a mixture of 5, 10 and 15 year lease extensions. We continue o
work on extending the life of the remaining UK portfolio and are in
advanced slages of negotiations on another 5 sites, with a further 15
being targeted in the current financial year.

For illustrative purposes, should the 20 targeted assets be valued on
o 35vyeor lease basis from the date of connection to the grid
fossuming current lease terms), the Company’s ordinary NAV at 31
March 2020 would increase by approximately 2.0% {1.8% based
on 99.0p NAV per ordinary share).

Contract Restructuring

During the year, an import power tender was successfully
completed across ofl UK assets. If the current counterpart prices
remained competitive, the contract remained with the current
supplier.

We conducted a competiive Renewable Energy Guarantees Origin
{"REGO") tendering process through biokers and participated in the
E-REGO auction. We contracted REGOs during the year ended 31
March 2020, creating additional revenue amounting to £235k
across the UK portfolio.

The insurance renewals for 2020/21 were completed across the
UK portolio and reduced the overall premium by 25% in
comparison o last yeor, which was a substantial saving for the SPVs
and will be realised in the current financial year.

We conlinue fo perform a systematic review of all operating
expenses acioss the portfolio, targeting the sites with the lowest
performance in terms of EBITDA. We have identified several
opportunities to reduce costs which will be pursued during the year
ending 31 March 2021.

Power Purchase Agreements

The NEC Group's specidlist energy trading desk, along with
external brokers, ensures that the Company's electricity sales
strategy moximises revenues whilst mitigating the negative impact of
shortterm fluctuations in the power markets. As the capacity of
assels under management increased by 64MW during the year,
the Asset Monager has executed a range of shortterm PPA hedges
from one month rolling 1o one yeor on these new assets through @
wider competilive tendering process resulting in reduced fees and
increased passthrough value of embedded benefits {and ROCs, if
applicable]

On the UK existing porifolio, hedging was undertaken for the
Apollo, NESH Il and Radius portfolios. During the year, the RRAM
portfolio also entered info a trading contract and was similarly
hedged. Bespoke terms were negotiated for the RRAM trading
contract, allowing volume to be over hedged. This allowed the
RRAM portlolio to overhedge seasons when prices were high and
potentially buy back months if prices fell significantly or the over
hedged volume could be rolled over to cover the exposed volume
under the Apollo, NESH Il and Radius contracts.

Back in 2018 market fundamentals were bullish through the summer
which encouraged o shorterterm hedging strategy to capitalise on
the rising prices. As market prices declined thiough 2019, a
significant amount of fixed price contracting took place in February
2019 for summer and winter 2019/20 to protect against the
bearish market.

The majority of UK volume under the trading contracts had also
already been hedged chead of summer and winter 2019/20
delivery, which ensured that the Company reduced s exposure to
the daily volatility in the UK market. Of the market revenues derived
from the sale of electricity generation, the Company has secured
pricing for 95% of its electricity generation for the summer of 2020
and 50% of is electricity generation for the 2020/21 winter.
Secured pricing comprises of fixed price contracts, hedging under
the frading contracts, and nine FIT siles opted info the export fariff,

During the year, NESF signed an agreement with Anglian Water
Services to own and operate a porifolio of solar sites on Anglian
Water's operational sites. NESF will finance, design, build, operate
ond own over 43MW of solar assets and sell the power directly to
Anglion Water through private wire agreements for a 25-year
period. This opportunity, which is part of the Company's allocation
1o subsidy-free assets, will provide longferm contracted revenues 1o
NESF's portfolio and supplements the growth of our subsidy-free
build programme. The deal is the laigest on-site solar PV generation
tender to date in the UK solar market and shows the continued
growth of the commercial and industriol solar generation landscape.

For the financial year ending 31 March 2021, the kalian portfolio
will derive approximately 83% of revenues fiom regulated revenues
{principally FiTs) and approximately 17% of revenues will result from
the sale of eleciricily generated under shorterm contracts, of which
the Company has secured fixed price agreements covering 100%
of its electricity generation uniil the end of the 2020 calendar year.

Annual Repor for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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OFGEM Review

In December 2019, OFGEM issued the Company with @ nofice to
downgrade the ROC banding of our Wellingborough site from 1.6
to 1.4 ROCs and fo revoke oll ROCs from 31 March 2014 to

8 February 2015 as OFGEM did not agree with the commissioning
date. The Company engaged o law firm fo issue a response to
OFGEM challenging their decision and the Company is currently
awaiting a reply. The potential impact of the ROC downgrade is
-£0.6m and, to be prudent, this has been included within the INAV.

In Jonuary 2020, subsequent to an OFGEM oudit on our Fiskerion
site, OFGEM stated that they would either be revoking the
accreditation or downgrading the ROC banding from 1.4 to 1.3.
As as 31 Maich 2020, the Company had not received the notice
letier from OFGEM, but is preparing a response using a law firm lo
challenge the decision. The potential impact of the downgrade is
£0.6m and, fo be prudent, this has been included within the NAV.

Operational Impact of COVID-19

As discussed in the Introduction on page 20, COVID-19 has had a
material adverse impact on power prices, current and projecled
However, the operational activities of the Company and iis
investments have been largely unaffected

The NEC Gioup has enabled iis business continuity plans for its
global siaff 1o work from home with minimal disruption. The
Company's other key service providers and suppliers have also
enabled their business continuity plans and continue to provide
contracted services on a “business as usual” basis in all material
respects. We remain in close contact with them ond continuously
monilor and review their ability 1o perform in light of COVID-19
developments.

Workers in the electricity sector are considered “key workers” and
this has enabled the Asset Manager to ensure that the technical and
operational integrity of NESF's solor assets has been maintained
and, to date, NESF has not experienced any significant technical or
operational impacts on its portfolio resulting from the effects of
COVID-19. In both the UK and lkaly, the Company built up a stock
of spare parts during the second half of 2019 and we are not
currently expecting any significant complications along its spare
parts supply chain. The Asset Manager is not anticipaling any
material delays in its asset remediation and opfimisation plans.

We continue to monilor closely the impact of COVID-19 in the UK
and ltaly and will continue to work with the Board and the
Company's other service providers and suppliers to anticipate and
mitigale, where possible, arising risks.

Subsidy-free Asset Strategy

The Company has sourced o pipeline of projects which con be
developed into operating subsidy-free assets and is fargeting
approximately 150MW of operating subsidy-ree assels in its
portfolio. As at 31 March 2020, the Company had 55MW of
operating subsidy-free assets in the portfolio. Subject to the impact
of COVID-19, High Garrett (PMW) will be energised in autumn
2020, making a total of 64MW. The Company's subsidy-free
pipeline is as follows:
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Mw
Subsidy-free Pipeline Capacity
Under Construction {High Garrel) Q
Projects Post-plonning Development 85
Projects in Planning 164
Projects Pre-planning Development 481
Anglian Water Development' 43
Total 782

See “Power Purchase Agieements” on poge 21

The Company's subsidy-free pipeline is greater than its target
allocation o operating subsidy-free assets of 150MW. This is to
ensure a broad set of investment options for NESF from which it can
select the most attractive projects for inclusion in its porifolio. All the
pipeline projecis were expected, when secured, o generate a rate
of return in line wiih or in excess of NESF's targef equity annualised
return range of 79%. The Company will consider divesting those
subsidy-free development projects that are surplus fo its requirements
or that are no longer likely to generate financial returns that are in
line with the Company's target range. A development project can
foll below the target range due to a change in the forecast capital
expenditure, operating expenditure or revenues, particularly in the
COVID-19 environment.

Following the end of the financicl year, the Company disposed of
Strensham and Uanwern development projects (40MW and
75MW respectively) as they had ceased to meet the Company's
larget refums, achieving an IRR on the disposal significantly in
excess of its target returns [see “Portfolio Update” in the Chairman's
Statement on page 9 for further details).

The NEC Group has recruited a Head of Energy Soles who manages
the stiategy for the sale of electricity from the subsidy-free operating
assets. Details on the power price risk manogement strategy can be
found in nole 14 1o the financial Statements.

Valuation of the Investment Portfolio
Introduction

The Investment Manager is responsible for corrying out the fair
market valuation of the Company's underlying invesiment portfolio
which is presented 1o the Company's Board for its review and
approval. The valuation is carried out quarterly (ad hoc valuations
may also be underioken from time o fime, for example in
conjunction with an equity fund raising). The valuation principles
used are based on a discounted cash flow methodology and fake
info account International Private Equity and Venture Capital [“IPEV")
valuation guidelines.

Assets not yel operational or where the completion of the acquisition
is not imminent at the time of valuation, use the acquisition cost as a
proxy for fair value, which take into account IPEV valuation
guidelines.
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Portfolio Valuation Bridge for the Year Ended 31 March 2020
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The Board reviews the operating ond financial assumptions used in
the valuation of the Company’s underlying portfolio and approves
them based on the recommendation of the Investment Manager.

Current and Long-Term Power Prices

The Investment Adviser continuously reviews mulliple inputs for UK
power price forecasts and takes a blended average of two of the
leading independent energy market consultants’ long-erm
projections to derive the power curve adopted in the valuation of
the Company's portiolio. This approach allows miligation of
inevitable forecasting errors as well as any delay in response from
the Consultants in publishing periodic {quarterly) or ad hoc updates
following any significant market development. For the lialian
porifolio, a leading independent energy market consuliont's
long-term projections are used to derive the power curve adopted
in the valuation.

During the year, the Consulianis revised their forecasts for the UK
wholesale power price downwards. These forward power curves
reflect a substantial reduction in power prices in the short- to
medivmterm, and incorporate an anlicipated reduction in demand
for electricity and a corresponding decrease in energy-related
commodity prices as a result of the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic.

In the longer term, the wholesale power prices are trending
downwards as more low-cost generation is being deployed,
notably offshore wind and solar PV.

The power price forecasts used by the Company also reflect an
assumed “solar capture” discount which reflects the difference
belween the prices available on the market in the daylight hours of
operation of a solar plant versus the baseload prices included in the
power price esfimates. This solar capture discount is estimated by
the Consuliants on the basis of a typical load profile of a solar plant
and is reviewed as frequently as the baseload power price
forecasts. The application of such a discount results in a lower

longter price being assumed for the energy generated by INESF's
assels compared o the baseload price, driven by the expecled
further deployment of low- cost renewable capacity. This lower
price is already included in the financial estimates that drive the
Company's NAV.

The Company's current UK long-term power price forecast implies
on average growth rate of approximately 1% in real terms over the
20-year period and an average price of approximalely £45.1/
MWh in today’s terms. This represents a decrease of 23.4%
compared fo those used af the end of the previous financial year
{and 49% below the assumptions employed at IPO}.

Compared o the previous year, electricity day ahead prices in the
UK decreased from opproximately £44/MWh in March 2019 to
approximately £32/MWh in March 2020 (see graph below).

Following o similar trend, the ltalian price of electicity decreased
from approximately €53/MWh in March 2019 io approximately
€32/MWh in Marich 2020 (see graph below).

Discount Rate

During the year, the solar market continued to experience increased
compelition for operating and subsidised assets in the secondary
market. In the conlext of high liquidity provided 1o infernational
investors, a maturing renewable energy market, a scarcily of
subsidised assels and the lack of any incentive framework for new
installations, demand for operating solar asseis remained strong
resulting in sustained pressure on prices in the last year. These
changing dynamics were evidenced by the experience of the
Investment Adviser when bidding for solar assets in the UK. As a
resutt, the Company decided to reduce its discount rate for
unlevered operating solar assets in the UK by 0.25% {from 6.50% o
6.25%).

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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For those UK operating solar assels with debt, the Company adopts
a levered discount rate to caplure the greater level of volatility risk
associated with the cash flows available to equity investors after
debt service. The appropriate level of risk premium due o project
level debt was evaluated taking inlo account various factors for
each specific asset, including the level of gearing, maturity profile,
cost of debt and other faciors mentioned above. This range was
unchanged from the previous year (0.7% - 1.0%).

For UK operating subsidy-free assets, the appropriate level of risk
premium to the discount rate for unlevered operating solar assets
was evaluated at 1.0% (2019: 1.0%} to caplure the greater level of
power price risk associaled with the cash flows available 1o equity
investors, offset against the absence of debi financing.

Where UK operating solar assets have secured lease extensions, o
1% discount rate premium is applied to all cash flows after @ 30
year asset fife (2019:0%) due to the uncertainty in the latter period
of each assef's lifetime.

As a result of the change in the UK discount rale, the discount rate
for the ltalian unlevered operating solar assets was reduced by
0.25% {from 8.00% to 7.75%). The additional country risk premium
to the UK, considering the differences in riskfree rotes in the
long-term, remained unchanged at 1.5%. It is worth nofing that the
ialion portfolio debt wos fully repaid in November 2018 and the
current currency hedge effectively mitigates the revenue exposure
to FX.

The resulting weighted average discount rate for the Company's
porifolio was 6.8% (2019: 70%). The Company does not adopt
weighted average cost of capital (*“WACC") as @ discount rate for
its investments, as it believes that the reduction in WACC deriving
from the introduction of longterm debt financing does not reflect the
greater level of risk to equity investors associoted with levered assets
or levered portiolios. However, for the purposes of transparency, the
Company's predax WACC as of 31 March 2020 was 5.5%.
(2019: 5.4%). The increase in the WACC reflects an increase in the
overall gearing from 36% to 42%, as further described below.

Asset Life

The discounted cash flow methodology implemented in the portfolio
valuation assumes a valuation fime-horizon capped to the current
terms of the lease and planning permission on the properties where
each individual solar asset is located. These leases have been
typically entered into for a 25-year period from commissioning of
the relevont PV plants (specific lerms may vary). However, the useful
operating life of the Company's portfolio of solar assets is expected
to be longer than 25 years. This is due to many factors, including:

® solar assels with technology components similor to the ones
deployed in the Company's porifolio have been demonstrated to
be capable of operating for over 45 years, with levels of
technical degradation lower than those assumed or guaranieed
by the manufacturers;

* local plonning authorities have already gronted initial planning
consents that do not expire and/or have granted permissions to
extend initial consented periods; and

* the Company owns rights to supply electricity inio the grid thiough
conneclion agreements that do nof expire.

The Company continues o seek to exiend the useful life of its assels,
mainly by extending the terms of the land leases for some projects
with the intention of extending leases for others in due course.
During the year, 17 assels in the portfolio secured a lease
extension, which added 2.5p per ordinary share 1o the value of the
existing portlolio {2019: 14 assels, 1.2p). As at 31 March 2020, o
total of 31 assets had secured lease extensions. The remaining
weighted average lease life of the Company's portfolio was 269
years [2019: 25.5 years). The discounted cash flow valuation
assumes a zeroterminal value of the end of the lease term for each
asset o the end of the planning permission, whichever is the earlier,

Operating Performance

The Company volues each solar asset on the basis of the minimum
performance ratio ("PR") guaranieed by the vendor or the PR
estimated by the oppoinied technical adviser during the acquisition
due diligence. These esfimates are generally lower than the actual
PR that the Compony has been experiencing during subsequent
operations. The Investment Adviser deems it appropriate 1o adopt
the actual PR after two years of operating history when, typically,
the plants have satisfied tests and received finol occeptance
certification {"FAC").

During the year, 11 FACs were closed across 78MW. As at

31 March 2020, 61 UK solar assets and all liclian solor assets
{515MW} in the portfolio had achieved FAC and their actual PR
was used in the discounted cash flow valuation.

MW
FAC Timeline for Remaining Assets Capacity
Financial Quarter Ending June 2020 41
Financial Quarter Ending September 2020 9l
Financial Quarter Ending December 2020 5
Financial Quarter Ending March 2021 8
Period from April 2021 1o June 2022 47

NAV

The Compaony’s NAV is calculated on a quarterly bosis based on
the valuation of the invesiment portfolio provided by the Investment
Adviser and the other assets and liabilities of the Company
provided by the Administrator. The NAV is reviewed and approved
by the Investment Manager and the Board. All variables relating to
the performance of the underlying assets are reviewed ond
incorporated in the process of identifying relevant drivers of the
discounted cash flow valuation. The Company reports its financial
results on a nonconsolidated basis under IFRS 10 {see note 4c) to
the Financial Statements on poge 85) and the change in fair volue
of its assets during the year is taken through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

As ot 31 March 2020, the Company's NAV was £578.6m
{£645.0m), and the NAV per ordinary share was 99.0p (2019:
1109p). The movements were driven by the following factors:

* downward revisions in the forecasts for power prices provided
by the Consultants, being 23.4% lower compared to the
assumptions of 31 March 2019 [the Company uses the forecasts
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released by the Consulianis up fo the date of preparation of this
Annual Report);

s the uplift arising from o decrease in the unlevered discount rale
by 0.25%, from 6.50% to 6.25%;

¢ the downward revision resulling from increasing the discount
rates after 30 years for assets with lease extensions;

* the removal of embedded benefits payments from April 2021
following OFGEM's Targeted Charging Review;

¢ the uplift arising from lease extensions;
¢ the operating results achieved by the Company’s solar assets;
* the downward revision of shorHerm inflation forecasts;

¢ the UK corporation tax rate remaining at 19% over the long-term;
and

* the cash dividends paid by the Company during the year and the
Company's operating costs.

NAV Sensitivity Analysis
The chart on the previous page shows the percentage change in

the portfolio resuliing from a change in the underlying variables and
its impact on the NAV per ordinary share. Additional sensitivity

onalyses can be found in note 14c fo the Financial Statements on
pages 94-96.

Cash Flow Generation

The Company generotes revenues through the scle of electricity to
the markets and the subsidies provided under different subsidy
regimes (ROC, NIROC and FiT). Both revenue streams are
underpinned by two main factors:

* the aclual energy output (measured as amount of KWh of
energy generated), which is mainly driven by the solar
iradiotion, technical performonce and availability of the plan;
and

* the actual price at which the energy generated is sold fo the
markets, as well as the subsidlies received for the same
generation.

The performance of a plont in terms of revenues is therefore @
product of both the operational performance and the commercial
terms of the PPAs in place. Before toking into account tax payments
and financing considerations, the cash Hlow generation of solar
assels is also influenced by operating expenses, which are usually
govemed by longterm contracts ond characterised by low volatility
over the long- term.

Year Ended 31 March 2020 Actual per MWp'
Solor liradiation (Al “‘:’n\g;/ 1,255
Conversion Faclor [B] (%} 85.5%
Metered Generation [,[g)]( E] {kwh) 1,073
Power Price  Subsidies
1 ) &/
Realised Prices D] MWH] 48.6 74.4
Revenues [E] = i
(Subsicies, PPAs, Etc [GD] RO G2 W
Total Revenues [E] (£ '000) 132.0
Operating Expenses 3] (£ '000) {26.5)
EBITDA® =" ¢ 000 105.5
[E-F]
EBITDA Margin® 799%

Delta
Budget per MWp' Vs, Comments
Budget

1,207 +4.0% Actual irradiation for the year

. Positive delia represents Asset
a o

84.9% +07% Management Alpha for the year
1025 L A7% Aciual generation measured at
the meter for the year

Power Price  Subsidies

500 71.2 +4.6% Implied average power price and
subsidies across entire portfolio
{including ROC recycle and

512 729 +9.5% embedded benefits)
Actual revenues at portfolio level
124.2 +6.3%  lor the year [unaudited figures per
MW)
Actual costs at portfolio level for
(2904 (8.6%) the year [unaudited figures per
MW)
o Actual EBITDA for the yeor
931 +109% (unaudited figures per MW
76.6%

Based on the average installed capaocity over the financial year. Given the different composition of the growing porfolio, this information is not direclly comparable with what

was provided in the previous Annual Report

Ratio captures the solar plunt performance ratio os well as the availability (which reflects off syslem shut-downs for maintenance or one-off evenls such as DNO outages|.

EBITDA is a reference lo EBITDA ai the SPV levels.
Budgeted operating expenses are based on the acquisition case of lhe assels
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The table below summarises the economic performance across the
whole portfolio during the year, as illusirated by the average
revenue and averoge costs per MW,

During the year, the investment portfolio performance exceeded
budget in terms of generation, revenue and operating expendilure
due o the following facors:

e positive impact from higher iradiation compared to budger;

* cumulative positive generation resulls across the portfolio;

e higher FiT, ROC, NIROC and wholesale revenues compared to
budget; ond

e higher ROC recycle and embedded benelits comporing 1o
budget.

Operating Results

loss before fax was £29.7m (2019: profit of £71.6m), with eamings
per ordinary share of -5.09p [2018: 12.37p). The loss for the year
was due o the reduction in the valuation of the investments mainly
due to the reduction in the forecast price of electricity in the short
and medium term as detailed in the Infroduction on page 20.

Cash Income for Year Ended 31 March 2020

Operating Expenses and Ongoing Charges

The net operating expenses of the Company amounted 1o £7.2m
[2019: £6.7m). The Company's ongoing charges ralio {"OCR") was
1.1% [2019: 1.1%]. The budgeted OCR for the financial year ending
31 March 2021 is 1.1%. The OCR, which has been calculated in
accordance with the AIC's recommended methodology, is an
Alternative Performance Measure (see page 103).

Dividends

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the fourth quarterly dividend
of 1.7175p per ordinary share is expected to be paid on 30 June
2020 to ordinary shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 22 May 2020. As a result, the Company will achieve
its target for total dividends for the financial year ended 31 March
2020 of 6.87p per ordinary share. The Company offers scrip
dividends, details of which can be found on the Company's website
[www.nextenergysolarfund.com).

Cash income
Net operating expenses

Preference shares dividend

Pre-scrip
Dividends
£000
61,189
{7233
{7,789

Net cash income available for distribution to ordinary shareholders

Ordinary shares dividend paid during the year

46,168
39731

Cash dividend cover? 1.2x

Cash income dilfers fiom Income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This is because the Statement of Comprehensive Income is on an accruals basis.

Alleinalive Parfurmance Measure (see page 101)

Dividends Declared per Ordinary Share

6.25p 6.31p

5.25p'

201415 2015/16

2016/17

The period 2014/2015 was the first financial year lollowing the Company's IPO)
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Financing and Cash Management
Further lssue of Preference Shares

On 8 November 2018, ordinary shareholders passed a resolution
fo create o class of preference shares and authorise the cllotment of
up to 200m preference shares with no pre-emption rights.
Subsequenily, on 13 November 2018, the Company issued an
initial tranche of 100 preference shares, raising £100m. The
Company issued a further 100m of preference shares, raising
£100m, on 12 August 2019. The proceeds of the second issue of
preference shares were deployed to portially repay o HoldCo level
shoriterm credit facility, finance the acquisition of Ballygarvey and
invest in the construction of Staughton.

The rights of the preference shares issued in 2019 are the same as
those issued in 2018, save that the second tranche benefit from
cerlain odditional underickings and covenants given by the
Compony.

Number of
Plants
Secured !

Provider/

Arranger Borrower

Fully-omontising -
MIDIS/CBA/NAB longrerm debr INESH 21 51.6%
MIDIS Fullyomorising ey 5 51.8%
long-lerm debt
Total long-term Debt
NIBC Revolving Credit NESH I 5 )
Facility
Santander Revolving';. Credit NESH VI 13 -
Facility

Total short-term Debt
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The preference shares are only redeemable ot the option of the
holders in the event of a change in confrol or delisting of the
Company. They are generally non-voting and carry a fixed
preferred dividend of 4.75% p.a. as well as a preferred capital
entitlement at nominat value (100p). From 1 April 2036, the
preference shareholders have the right to convert all or some of their
preference shares info either ordinary shares or B shares, at the
election of the holders, with B shares being unlisted shares carrying
the same rights to dividends and capital in a liquidation as the
ordinory shares. The conversion price will be based on the ratio of
the preference share issue price (100p) plus any unpaid dividends
relative 1o the NAV per ordinary share ot the date of conversion.
Accordingly, conversion of the preference shares will not result in
any dilution of the NAY per ordinary share.

Termi-
Amount nation
Facility Out- {Including
Amount standing optionsto Applicable
Tranches £m £m extend) Rate
Medium-term 48.4 484 Dec26 2N%"
Floating longterm 24.2 24.2 Jun-35 3.68%'
; RPI index +
Index linked long tesm 38.7 359 Jun35 0.36%
Fixed long term 38.7 8.7 Jun-35 3.82%
Debt service reserve /5 - Jun-26 1.50%
facility
Inflationdinked 275 231 Sepaa FHindexe
Fixed longterm 275 25.5 Sep-34 4.11%
195.8
n/a 200 Feb22 LBOR + 2.20%
n/o 700 18.5 Juk20 LIBOR + 1.50%
18.5

MESF hos 325MW under long-term debt financing, 128MW under shortterm debit financing and 302MW without debt financing
tongerm debit is fully amortised over the pericd secured assets receive subsidies {(ROCs and others).

Gearing level defined as ‘Debt outstanding / GAV'.
Applicable ate represents the swap rate

Annyal Report for the ysar ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Investment Adviser’s Report coriined

From 1 April 2030, the Company may elect to redeem all or some
of the preference shares. Dividends and, save as referred to in the
preceding paragraph, redemption will remain at the sole discretion
of the Board during the life of the preference shares. Should more
competitive sources of capital become available, the Company
may choose, at its sole discretion, 1o issue new capitol [debt or
equity) to fund a full or partial redemption of the preference shares
after March 2030.

Benefits of the second tranche of preference shares for NESF
included:

® o reduction in the exposure 1o secured debt financing;

* the repayment of exisling shortterm debt facilities (£90m due in
Febiuary 2020 and July 2020), removing any shortierm
refinancing risk, with the balance of the proceeds being
available for investment;

e the fixed preferred dividend of 4.75p per preference share
being a significantly lower allin annual cash cost to the
Company compared to issuing ordinary shares; and

® the further optimisation of the Company’s capital structure and,
over the long term, increase in cash flows available to fund
ordinary share dividends of for reinvestment compared to

refinancing with conventional long-erm amortising financial deb,

thereby increasing the cosh dividend cover and increasing the
IRR for ordinary shareholders.

For accounting purposes, the preference shares are trealed as
liobilities. The invesiment management fee is calculated based on
NAV and, accordingly, no management fee is payable in respect
of the preference shares.

Financial Debt

At 31 March 2020, the Company's subsidiaries had financial debt
outstanding of £214m (2019: £269m), on & lookthrough basis,
including project level debt, as shown in the table below.

As a result of relatively fow HoldCo debt fevels, and support of RPI
linked subsidies, debt covenants at the HoldCos level would only
be breached at extraordinarily low power prices.

Total Gearing

The financiol debt, together with the preference shares, represented
a gearing level of 42% [2019: 36%), which is below the maximum
debito-GAV level of 50% in the Company's investment policy.

Cash

As at 31 March 2020, the Company held cash of £25.1m ata
high credit rated financial institution in the UK.

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

Ordinary Shareholder and NAV Total Returns

During the year the ordinary share price decreased from 117.5p to
101.5p. During March 2020, the uncertainty suriounding the
COVID-19 pandemic resulted in global equity markets suffering an
unprecedented decline. As a resull of the fall in the ordinary share
price, at 31 March 2020, the annualised return since the
Company’s IPO on 25 April 2014 had fallen below the target
ronge of 79% equily retumn for ordinary shareholders (ai IPO both
the issue price and NAV per ordinary share were 100p).

NESF's ordinary share price has risen since the year end and, as af
26 June 2020, wos 107.4p, resulting in an annualised ordinary
shareholder toial return since IPO of 7.3%.

Events After the Balance Sheet

On 14 May 2020, Iwo subsidy-free projects under development
Strensham (40MW] & Lianwem (75MW), were disposed of for o
combined consideration of £11.5m resulting in NESF recovering all
development costs incurred. The transaction resulied in a net IRR
[after transaction costs) significantly in excess of NESF's annualised
target refun of 79% p.o. The ransaction constituled a smaller
relaled party fransaction as set out in the FCA's Listing Rules.

On 29 june 2020, o shorterm credit facility of £70m was
extended from July 2020 1o July 2022.

NextEnergy Capital Limited
29 June 2020
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Portfolio Generation Performance

Year Ended 31 March 2020 Since Acquisition
Rz [kl OPG[;Z:':"C'l A(ql;:t:mn Gem;r.alion Irradiation Generation Irradiation Generation

(GWh) Delta Delta Delta Delta

(%) (%) (%) (%)

1 Higher Halherdeigh Apr-i4 May-14 6.1 26 59 0.2 48
2 Shacks Bam May-14 Fay-14 6.0 3.5 5.0 25 83
3 Gover Farm Jan15 Jun-14 A 555 0.0 23 {0.6)
4 Bilsham Joni5 Jul-14 157 49 2.1 41 50
5 Biickyard Jan:15 Jul14 16 385 /4 2.7 542
6 Eliough Jul-14 Jul-14 15.1 1.3 5.4 0.5 64
7 Poulshot Aprt5 Sepl4 139 1.5 43 (0.3 40
8  Condover taay-15 Ocii4 Q0 {0.3) 4.1 [0.7} 072
9  lywndu Jub15 Dec-14 8.1 (1.0} 77 4.1 19
Caock Hill Farm Jul15 Dec:14 20.1 26 54 20 35

I Boxled Airfield Apri5 Dec-14 189 37 66 30 5.3
12 longenhoe Aprl5 Marls 21.6 71 76 58 8.8
13 Park View 115 Mar15 6.3 (1.5) 2.3) {3.3) {0.5)
14 Croydon AprlS Marl! 158 76 6.7 56 65
15 Howkers Faim Jun-l5 Aprl5 123 1.3 57 {09} 29
16 Glebe Faim May:l5 Aprl5 349 ’8 14.1 56 1.7
17 Bowerhouse Juk1s JunlS Q1 5 1.4 1.7 1.2
18 Wellingborough Jurel5 Junl5 80 39 23 20 38
19 Birch Form Sep-15 Octl5 50 52 73 37 57
20 Thurlestone Leicester Octi5 Oct15 1.5 (1.0) 0.5
21 North Farm Octl5 Oct15 12.4 {0.8} 1.1 (39 {2.0}
272 Eflough Phase 2 Aug 16 Nov-15 83 7.4 108 88 12.1
23 Holl Faim Aprlo Nov-15 48 B Q0 355 1.3
24 Decoy Farm Mar-16 Nov-15 49 56 8.0 42 88
25 Green Form Dec-16 Nov-15 51 3.1 37 3.6 4.2
26 Fenland Joni6 Jon-16 21.2 6.2 102 48 Q2
27  Gieen End Jan'l6 Jani6 24.6 6.8 5.4 47 5.2
28 Tower Hil Jonl6 Janl6 8.0 37 6.3 2.3 60
29  Branston Mar-16 Apr-16 19.3 76 10.7 6.0 5.1
30 Gieat Wilbicham Marl6 Aprtb 382 59 69 49 5.5
31  Berwick Marl6 Aprl6 93 4.6 Q7 50 88
32 Botiom Ploin Marlbd Aprlb 10.7 5.1 56 27 37
33  Emberton Mar-16 Aprlo Q0 53 60 41 42
34 Kenlishes Juli7 Nov-16 52 4.6 4.7 55 61
35  Mill Farm Juh17 Jon-17 53 79 1.8 83 10.8
36 Bowden Sepl7 Jan17 53 00! 06 05) 07
37  Stalbridge Sep-17 Jon17 54 0.3 5.7 {0.1) 59
38 Aller Court Sep17 Aprl7 53 29 4.3 27 39
39  Rampisham Sep-l7 Apsl7 52 3.1 (1.7 (2.6) {2.7)
40  Wasing Augl7 Aprl7 5.3 6.0 88 59 Q6
41 Fixborough Augl7 Aprt7 50 5.4 80 54 8.0
42 Hill Farm Mar17 Aprl7 50 5.6 58 6.7 8.0
43 Forest Farm Marl7 Aprl7 3.1 37 6.8 40 77
44 Birch CIC May-17 Junel7 1.7 52 48 49 4.6
45 Bamby Aug-17 Jun-l7 50 4.6 78 5.2 76

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Asnnual Report for the yeor ended 31 March 2020



Year Ended 31 March 2020 Since Acquisition

ez kD Operational Acquisition
Date Date Generation Irradiation Generation Irradiation Generation

(GWh) Delta Delta Delta Delta

(%) (%) (%) (%)

46 Bilsthorpe Aug-l7 Jun-17 5.0 40 69 44 79
47 Wickieid Mar17 Jun-17 48 4.5 09 47 2.8
48  BayFarm Sep-17 Augl7 79 6.4 6.1 83 6.5
49 Honington Sept7 Auvgt7 13.3 28 3.4 4.2 3.5
50  Macchia Rolonda Nov:17 Nov-17 10.1 ol 70 85 5.2
51 lacovangelo Naw17 Neov-17 5.5 69 Q0 37 6.6

52 Armiento Nev17 Now-17 30 78 Q9 4.5 71
53 Inicoibal Mov-17 Now 17 48 8.6 8.5 49 62
54  Gioia del Colle Naov-17 Now-17 Q7 06 4.3 {1.1) 2.7
55  Caiinola Nov17 Naw-17 4.4 3.3 76 1.3 54
56  Marcionise Nov-17 Nov-17 73 4.4 53 23 3.7

57 Riordo New-17 Nov17 74 3.6 44 1.7 il
58  Gilley's Dam Now-17 Dec-17 50 6.0 {4.0) {5.6} {29}
59 Pickhill Bridge Dec-}/ Dect7 36 24 5.4 50 8.2
60  North Norfolk Dec17 feb-18 11.4 69 89 74 Q7
Ol Axe View Dec 17 Feb>18 51 40 6.0 4.4 62
62 low Bentham Dec17 Feb-18 4.6 {0.1) 11 1.6 L3
63 Henley Joni8 febr18 48 11 4.3 2.5 5.4
64 Pierces Form May-18 May-18 1.7 11 3.6 44 6.6
65 Salcey Form May-18 May-18 5.2 6.2 1.3 11.0 54
66 Thoinborough Jun-18 Jun-18 47 24 (3.4 /78 6.6}
67 Temple Nommaton Jun18 Jun-18 4.5 24 11.8) &7 123}
68  Fiskerton Phase 1 Jun-18 Jun-i8 12.7 69 1.4 104 i
69 Huddlestord HF Jun-i8 Jun-18 08 27 1.4 76 3.5
70 litlle lichester Jurn-18 Jun-18 45 1.5 3.3} 7.5 {6.6)
71 Balhearty Jun-18 Jun-18 37 {5.5) {11.8} (2.9) (14.2)
72 Bicfield Jun-i8 Jun-18 49 3.7 0.3 8.5 0.1
73 Huddlesford PL Jun18 Jun-18 09 2.5 1.6 74 3.3
74 Sywell Jun-18 Jun18 49 26 11 91 {0.8)
75 Colon Paik Jun-18 Jun-18 2.3 il 3.5 57 60
76 Hook Jul-i18 Juh18 15.5 1.5 (0.2} 30 O

77  Blenches 18 JuH8 6.0 i8 4.6 4.5 71
78  Whiley 118 Ju-i8 73 25 39 33 {0.5}

79 Bunowton

80  Saundercroft Jul18 Juk18 130 2.8 0.3 28 1.3
81  Raglington Jul-18 Juh18 50 1.6 {17.7) 39 [10.1)
82 Knockworthy Ju18 Juk18 4.7 1.0 2.6} 1.7 {0.6)
83  Chilton Canelello Ju-18 h18 515 29 50 4.2 70
84  Ciossways Ju18 Juh18 56 20 09 3.1 39
85 Wyld Medow Ju18 Ju18 51 3.1} (19) (2.4) {0.4)
86  Ermnis Aug18 Aug-18 0.8 . [0.4) {0.8)
87  Angelia Aug18 Aug-18 0.2 3 67 : 70
88  Ballygarvey Mar18 Aug19 28 1.8 2.1} 18 2.1}
82 HallFam i Aug19 Aug19 = - - - =
90  Staughton Dec:19 Dec19 - = - - -
Total 712 4.0 4.7 2.5 5.0

Rooftop asset which is not monitored for irradiation.
Subsidy-free assets which is not been monilored as it is yel to pass Provisional Acceplance Cleorance {PAC]

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Operating Portfolio

Power plant

O 0N O AW N —

Higher Hatherleigh
Shacks Barn
Gover Form
Bilsham
Brickyard
Ellough
Poulshot
Condover
Uywndu

Cock Hill faim
Boxted Airfield
langenhne
Park View
Croydon
Howkers Farm
Glebe Farm
Bowerhouse
Wellingbaorough
Birch Farm
Thurlesione Leicasler
North Farm
Ellough Phose 2
Hall Farm
Decoy Form
Green Farm
Fenland

Gieen End
Towar Hill
Branston

Great Wilbiaharm
Berwick
Bottorn Plain
Emberton
Kentishes

Mill Farm
Bowden
Stalbridge

Aller Court
Rampisham
Wasing
Fixborough

Hill Farm

forest Farm
Birch CIC
Barnby
Bilsthorpe
Wickfield

Bay Farm

Honington

Location

Someiset
Northampionshire
Comnwall
Wesl Sussex
Warwickshire
Sutlolk
Wiltshire
Shiopshiie
Ceredigion
Wilishire
Essex
Essex
Devon
“ambridgeshire
Somersel
Bedtordshire

Somersel

Morthomptonshiie
Essex
Lsicestershire
Dorset
Suffelk
Leicestershire
lincalnshire
Essex
Combyidyeshire
Cambridgeshire
Gloucestesshiie
lincolnshire
Combridgeshire
East Sussex
Dorset
Buckinghamshire
Essex
Hertfordshire
Sometsel
Dorsel
Somerset
Dorsel
Berkshie
South Humberside
Oxlordshire
Hampshire
Essex
Nottinghamshire
Nottingharnshire
Wilishire
Suffolk
Suffolk

Announcement Date

May-14
May-14
Jun14
Jul 14
Jul14
Jul-14
Sept4
Oct14
Dec:14
Dec-14
Dec-14
Marl5
Mar15
Marls
Aprl5
Aprl5
Aprl5
Jurr15
QOct15
Qe 15
Oct15
Now-15
Nov-15
Nowv-15
Nov-15
Jan-16
Jan-16
Jan-16
Apr-16
Apr-16
Aprlb
Aprl6
Aprlé
Nov-16
Jan17
Jon'17
Jan17
Aprl7
Apr-l7
Apr-17
Aprl7
Aprl7
Aprl7
Jun-17
Jun17
Jun-17
Jun-t7
Aug17
Aug'l7
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Subsidy’

1.6
Fils UK
Fils UK

1.4

1.3
FiTs UK
Fils UK
Fils UK

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

14

1.2

12

12

12

12

1.2

12

1.2

1.2
Fils UK
Fifs UK

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.6

1.6

Installed
(o-T-1-1413%
(MWp)
6.1
63
94
15.2
38
149
14.5
10.2
8.0
200
18.8
21.2
65
16.5
19
337
9.3
8.5
5.0
18
1.5

5.0
50
50
20.4
248
8.1
189
38.1
8.2
10.1
90
50
50
5.0
50
50
50
50
5.0
50
30
1.7
5.0
50
49
8.1
13.6

Investment
Cost (£M)

£
8.2
1.1
189
4.1
200
15.7
1n.7
Q4
236
206
225
’7
17.8
14.5
405
1.1
10.8
53
23
14.5
810
50
52
5.8
239
290
8.8

9791

4.5
42
56
54
5.5
58
53
51
5.5
3.3
1.7
5.4
54
56
10.5
160

Remaining
life of the
Plant
(Years)

18.0
17.3
19.7
24.2
196
289
189
196
297
194
200

34.8
19.7
200
207
350
192
20.2
13.1
34.7
356
40.4
36.0
210
203
210
200
34.6
250
21.5
352
401
415
368
36.7
36.8
220
22.5
26.7
278
319
320
202
223
227
231
339
338
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Remaining

. . Installgd Investment life of the
Power plant Location Announcement Date Subsidy’ Capacity Cost (EM) Plant
BRE {Years)
50  Macchia Rotonda Apulio Nov-17 FiTs ltaly 6.6 . 15.8
51 lacovangelo Apulio Nov-t7 Fils ialy 35 161
52 Amienlo Apulia Now-17 Fis ltaly 19 16.1
53 nicoibol Apulia Nov-17 Fis lialy 30 = |62 159
54 Gioia del Colle Campania Nov-17 FiTs lialy 6.5 16.6
55 Cainola Apulio Nov-17 Fifs holy 30 166
56 Maicianise Campania Nov-17 Fils haly 50 16.5
57 Riaido Campania Nov-17 Fils ltaly 5.0 s 16.5
58  Gilley's Dam Comwall Dec17 1.3 50 6.4 34.7
59 Pickhil Bridge Chvyd Dec17 12 36 37 219
60 North Norfolk Norfolk Feb-18 Lo 1o 14.6 246
61 Ase View Devon feb-18 1.2 50 5.6 27.4
62 low Bentham lancashire Feb-18 1.2 50 5.4 259
63 Henlay Shropshire Feb18 12 50 5.2 262
64 Piesces Farm Berkshire May-18 Fils UK 1.7 12 191
65 Salcey Fann Buckingharmshire May-18 L4 5.5 6.5 191
66 Thomborough Buckinghamshire Jun-18 152 50 5. 210
67 Temple Nonmaton Derbyshire Jun-18 1.2 49 56 213
68  Fiskerton Phase 1 Lincolnshire Jun-18 1.3 13.0 16.6 30.0
69 Huddiestord HF Staffordshire Jun18 1.2 09 09 20.8
70  ltle lichester Naorthamptonshire Jun-18 1.2 47 59 218
71 Balhearty Clackmannanshire Jun18 Fils UK 48 26 30.8
72  Bialield Northamptonshire Jun-18 1.2 49 5.8 21.7
73 Huddlestord PL Staftordshire Jun-18 1.2 09 09 210
74 Sywell Northamptonshire Jun-18 1.2 50 59 211
75  Coton Park Derbyshite Jun-18 FiTs UK 2.5 1.1 211
76 Hook Somersel Juk18 1.6 15.3 218 340
77  Blenches Willshire g8 1.6 6.1 78 18.7
78  Whilley Somerset Juli8 1.6 76 10.4 33.8
79 Burrowion Devon Jukie 1.6 54 73 18.5
80  Saundercioft Devon Jul18 1.6 72 Q6! 339
81 Raglington Harmpshire 8 L6 57 81 338
82  Knockworthy Cormwall Jul18 Fils UK 4.6 6.6 18.0
83  Chilon Canetello Somerset Ju18 fis UK 50 90 32.3
84  Crosswoys Dorset 118 Fils UK 50 10.0 323
85  Wyld Meadow Dorset hH8 Fils UK 48 71 33.3
86  Emis Rooltop Porttalio Aug:18 Fifs UK 1.0 3.0 16.6
87  Angelia Rooltop Porifalio Aug 18 fils UK 0.2 0.6 16.5
88 Ballygarvey County Antiim Aug19 1.4 NIROCs 8.2 8.5 27.8
89  Hall Farm 2 Leicestershile Aug19 None 5.4 2.5 393
Q0  Sioughton Bedlordshire Dec-19 None 50.0 27.4 389
Total 755 932 26.9
ROCs, unless otherwise staled. An explanation of ROC subsidy is ovailable ai Part of the Radius porifolio.
www.olgern gov.uk /environmental programmes /renewables-obligation-ro. Pait of the Apollo portiolio.
Acquired with project level debt. Pait of the Solis porifolio.

Pant of the Thirteen Kings portfolio

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Sustainability and ESG

Introduction from the CEO of NextEnergy
Capital Group

Since our founding in 2007, the NEC Group's mission
has been to generate a more sustainable future by
leading the fransition to clean energy. We place this
mission at the heart of everything we stand for and do,
recognising the privilege we have to generate clean
energy for the planet.

Businesses need a healthy environment and society fo
survive, and communities need successful businesses in
order to progress. VWe believe that identifying and
accounting for Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") performance makes our clients’ investments
risk-sound and improves longerterm retums, making ESG
integration a source of innovation and competitive
advantage for our core business.

NEC's sustainability strategy refers to the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (‘SDGs”) as the
underlying framework to identify, manage and measure
our impacts on the environment and society, and fo
align our and our clients’ business objectives with those
of the governments and societies in which we operate.
Qur strategy is built on three pillars, Climate Change,
Biodiversity and Human Rights, and applies to the
whole value chain of our business, from our clients’
investments and our employees, fo our suppliers and
services providers, our business partners, and the
broader communities we operate in. The core of NEC's
sustainability sirategy is our Sustainable Investment
Policy', which was revised in September 2019 fo better
reflect our understanding of the value-creating ability of
ESG considerations in our business and operations, and
the solar sector more broadly, as well as our
commitment fo the United Nations Principles for
Responsible Investment.

Our Sustainable Investment Policy applies to both INESF
and our private equity funds and defines the NEC
Group's principles and commitments, excluded activities,
screening and due diligence process, reference
standards, monitoring and reporting and engagement
approach.

NESF’s Sustainability Commitments

We believe that solar energy can change the world, fransform our
economies and sustain our fulure. NEC's Sustainable Investment
Policy enhances NEC's mission and commitment 1o tackling climate
change which is, without doubt, the biggest challenge and threat in
the 217 century. NESF is commitied lo supporting the UK
Government in its ambitious objective of bringing all greenhouse
gas emissions o net zero by 2050 and limiting global average
femperature rise lo 2°C from pre-industrial era levels. In line with the
sustoinability straiegy. NESF considers the three pillars of Climate
Change. Biodiversily and Human Rights as an integral part of the
invesiment process.

¢ Climate change: NESF is commilted o report its positive
contribution o mitigate climate change through clean energy
generation. NESF reports annually on CO e emissions avoided
for the porifolio. In line with NEC's broader climate commitment
and as NEC is an official supporier of the Task Force on
Climate-Related Non-Financial Disclosure [“TCFD"), NESF also
aims to improve its assessment of climate-related physical risks
throughout the investment process.

e Biodiversity: A key focus for NESF has been the opportunity
1o enhance biodiversity across the portfolic’s sites. The
Company’s commitment to leading best practices in biodiversity
in the solar indusiry begins during the site selection phase.

¢ Human rights: NESF promotes the respect of fundamental
human rights principles. The commitment to respect human rights
is guided by the United Notions Universal Decloration of
Human Rights.

Performance Measurements

Since most of NESF's portfolio is already invested, the
implementation of NEC's Sustainable Investment Policy is more
relevant for the asset management phase rather than the pre-
investment phase. The focus for the financial year ending 31 March
2021 will be on measuring NESF's curreni portiolio performance
through key performance indicators bosed on the SDGs which have
been ideniified as material to the business [see the following page)
ond based on the requirements of the upcoming EU Regulation on
sustainable finance.

NESF has contracted the Green Investment Group {"GIG") 1o
independently verify our positive impact on climate change: GIG is a
specialist developer, sponsor and investor with a mission to
accelerate the transition 1o a greener global economy. GIG is part of
the Macquaire Group ond it has expertise in principal invesiment,
project and portiolio management, advisory services and access to
flexible capilal. GIG developed a proprietary methodology o
measure green impact, with strong academic and scientific rigour that
can be applied pragmatically, day-in and day-out, through a
commercial investment process. GIG is working with us on our SDGs
performance reporting and will assist us with the evaluation and
verification of NESF's climate-related positive impacls'.

www.nextenergycapital.com/wp-content/uploads,/ 2019/ 10/ Sustainable_Invesiment_Policy.pdf

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Our Commitment to the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
The SDGs form the basis of our sustainability strategy.

Our
Sustainability
Strategy

GOOD HEALTH Transparent SDG Materiality
AND WELL BEING Reporting Mapping

Tracking
Performance
and Impact

Project Selection
and Screening

AFFORDABLE AND
CLEAN ENERGY

Pre-acquisition
ESG Due
Diligence

F— Sustainable Investment Policy
ANDINFRASTRUCTURE
Aims to deliver sustainable growth for the

longterm

Integrated Strategy

|

12 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUCTION Ongoing infegration of procedures

in the Sustainable Investment Policy into
NESF investment process

Transparent Reporting

13 eron

|

Measure and report on performance
indicators, and in line with
EU Disclosure Directive

15 ol

|

Stakeholder Engagement

Engage with key pariners and indusiry
bodies fo lead the agenda and
constanily improve our practice

Annual Report for the year ended 31 Morch 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Sustainability and ESG corined

Application of NEC’s Sustainable Investment Policy

We are committed fo continuing to implement our sustainability
strategy through the rigorous infegration of NEC's Sustainable
Investment Policy inlo NESF's investment process fo deliver consistent,
responsible and sustainable growth for the longterm. As mentioned
in the introduction from the CEQ of the NEC Group on page 36,
NEC's Sustainable Investment Policy was revised in Seplember
2019.

The revised Policy applies to the assel management and ownership
phase of the asseis acquired prior to Seplember 2019, where ESG
iniegration during the acquisifion phase waos mainly driven by
compliance with UK environmental and social regulatory
requirements and stewardship based on solar industry best practice.

The revised pre-and post-acquisition ESG principles and
commitments, excluded aclivities, screening and due diligence
process, reference standards, menitoring and reporting and
engagement approaches set out in the revised Policy are being
applied to all new acquisitions and developments since September
2019,

ESG Integration into Pre-Investment Process
Investment Process

NESF has o tried and lested investment process. We recognise the
value in considering ESG metrics when identitying potential
investment opportunities. Indeed, ESG considerations form part of
the investment decision-making at each stoge of a sile’s
development. As part of the due diligence underiaken in the
pre-acquisition phase, national and local environmental and social
policies and legislation are accounted for in a project's site
selection, and for its overall development. In line with NEC's
Sustainable Investment Policy's principles and commitments, o
comprehensive set of nationol and local data sels are considered to
avoid sensifive areas and to comply with the applicable guidelines
for the deployment of solar projects. This development phase is
supported by the use of computerbased geographic information
system modelling tools, whilsi the Solar Trade Association’s 10
Commitments for Solar Farms guide the considerations of material
ESG risks and opportunities during due diligence. Examples of
material ESG risks include: land grade; local community impacts,
such as negative visual impacts; and impacis o ecology or
archaeological heritoge areas. Examples of material ESG
opportunities include: introduction of new biodiversity hot spols; job
creafion; and educational opportunities.

Excluded Activities and Site Selection

In accordance with the international, national and local landscape
designations recognised by the UK Government!, NESF does not
invest in areas of high biodiversity or landscope character value. In
order to ensure o consistent approach 1o site assessment and
review, NEC is currently identifying and incorporating site-specific
ESG foctors inio a standard template which will form part of the
sign-off process. Regularly updated dala sets from the Environment
Agency and Magic Maps and Environmentol and Social Impact

Assessments are used o review and discount inappropricte sites
during the site-searching phase of development.

In terms of site selection, where possible, the information provided
by these sources has also been used 1o fimit a selected site’s
environmental impact. In conjunciion with diclogues with
londowners, local site sequential testing is carried out to cross
reference site suitability and identify land where the long- term
benelits of solar deployment may see the highest impact.
Furthermore, national and local planning policies and stolegies are
used fo idenlify suitable areas. Where possible, we support and
instruct locol and smalksized suppliers and specialists 1o carry out
site ond planning-related surveys.

ESG Integration into Investment and Ownership
Phase

ESG faciors considered throughout the investment and ownership
phose include:

¢ Climate change: Climote-related risks, such as areas af risk
of flooding according to the Environment Agency's datasets
are identified during the pre-investment phase. We currently
avoid areas o risk of flooding or model them to ensure that the
project minimises any negative flood risk. In the past, miligation
measures put in place for solar projects have helped to
alleviate flooding issues on adjacent land. Despite the
operational lifefime of NESF's sites being up to 45 years, all
sites are designed using a 100-year flood projection to
account for projected climate-induced risks. A climate-related
physical risk assessment for climate-induced risks other than
flooding is not conducted during the pre-acquisifion phase.

¢ Biodiversity: NEC has o dedicated Biodiversity Team that
is working with organisations, such as Wychwood and Twig,
to ensure that land management and native fauna and flora
are being considered throughout the invesiment and ownership
phases. A set of proven biodiversity solutions are included
within planning-controlled site proposals with the view of
ecologically enhancing the project area and any additional
land held under the project ground lease. NEC has developed
a specific Universal Biodiversity Management Plan {"UBMP”)
for NESF sites (see case studies 1, 2 and 3 on pages 41 ond
42} and NESF hos hired biodiversity specialist companies to
design and implement bespoke and effeciive measures that
develop, repair and connect local wildlife, habitats and
ecosystems. Our UBMP also exists to improve local stakeholder
and community engagement and education on the benefits of
transforming solar plants into ecosystem-friendly assets. It makes
up part of NEC's wider Biodiversity Strategy which works to
support the UK Government's 25-year Environmental Plan?.

During the asset's operational lifefime, schemes are designed fo
allow sheep grazing. Such schemes employ densities which
work within the land's natural carrying capacity. They are also
devised in conjunction with the broader environmental,
landscape and ecological objectives of site-specific measures,

hiips: / / assels. publishing service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system /uploads/attachment_data/file /2 18695/ enviimpactlandscape. pdf

hitps: / /assels.publishing.service.gov.uk /government/uploads/ system/uploads/attachment_data/file /693 1 58/ 25year-environment-plan. pdf
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which are agreed in advance with local councils, and the
Universal Biodiversity Management Plan.

¢ Community engagement: Duiing the pre-acquisition
phase, NESF closely engages with local parishes and councils
to ensure the suilobility of site proposals. VWhere possible,
community feedback is incorporated into the transaction
proposals so that we con work on long-term community
development plans [see case siudy 4 on page 42). We
commit to employ people locally where praciical and possible.
In addition, community funds are eslablished o promote
development and support community renewable energy
projects and initiatives (see case sludy 5 on poge 42). We
also commit to using our solar farms as educational
opporiunities, particularly regarding the promotion of the value
of biodiversity and clean energy (see cose siudy 2 on

page 41).

¢ Human rights: NESF has zero tolerance for human rights
cbuses across the value chain. We work with our
counterparties 1o ensure that they abide by our humaon rights
related principles, as outlined in NEC's Susiainable Investment
Policy. To this extent, by end of 2020, NEC aims lo introduce
human rights reloted criteria into our solar PV module
framework agreements (see “Panel Suppliers” below]. We also
aim fo add obligations 1o comply with human rights related
stondards in our contractual relationships with all our
counterparlies, including co-owners, engineering, procurement
and construction conlraclors and  operation and maintenance
contractors and subcontiactors.

¢ Panel suppliers: NESF has developed module framework
agreements as the framework to ideniify and select topHier,
reputable manufacturers with o proven track record of
delivering high quolity products fi.e. manufoctured for high
durability, easy dismaniling, refurbishment and recycling).
Quality control, product certification and infernationat
stondards, including 1SO 9001 and IEC61215:2016, are ol
incorporated in this framework 1o provide visibility of the enfire
supply chain and matericls used during production.

¢ Circular economy: Where possible, biodegradable or
recyclable materials are sourced. At the end of the solar farm’s
fife, we expect there to be a residual value in most of the
materials used in the modules, for example glass, silicon, steel,
aluminum and copper. The value of these materials is expected
to pay in full for the decommissioning costs of the solar farm.

¢ Health and safety: Regarding occupational and
environmental heolth and safety standards, we uphold minimum
construction and production-reloted industry standards, such as
those set out in the Construction, Design ond Management
Regulations 2015 and the International Organisation for
Siandardisation’s requirements. These standards are
incorporated into the main service delivery contracts to impose
contractual obligations on our suppliers.

* Anti-bribery, corruption and tax evasion: |i is both
NESF's and NEC's policy is to conduct all of its business in an
honest and ethical manner. We both have o zerotolerance
policy towards bribery, coruption and the criminal facilitation
of tax evasion. Both NESF and NEC are  committed to acting

professionally, fairly and with integrity in all business dealings
and relationships wherever it operates.

Asset Management and Portfolio Performance

Our focus for the financial year ending 31 March 2021 will be to
measure NESF's current portfolio performance through a select
group of key performance indicators. These are based on the SDGs
which have been identified as material to our business and
operations {see page 37). From the assessment cariied out last year
with the independent support of the Green Investment Group,
NESF's performance in relation to the SDGs was recognised
through its contribution to SDG 3 {Good Health and Wellbeing),
SDG 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy), SDG 9 (Industry, Innovation
and Infrastruciure), SDG 12 {Responsible Consumption and
Production, SDG 13 (Climale Action} and SDG 15 (life on Land).

NEC's M&A and Operating Teams are working together o
infegrate ESG factors into a brioader data platform which will be
used lo capture the individual asset's performance in relation to the
selecied key performance indicators, as well as that of the portfolio
as o whole. £SG indicators will include, but not be limited 1o, CO e
emissions avoided, water consumption; biodiversity measures and
employment metrics.

NEC’s ESG Team

NEC's ESG Team reports to the NEC Group CEO and comprises
two experts: Giulia Guidi, the Head of the Team with more than
20 years of experience in ESG risk management in the financicl
sector, and Flavia Galdiolo, the ESG Analyst for the NEC Group,
who is also responsible for running NextEnergy Foundation {see
page 40). The ESG Team is actively invalved in NESF through
regular engagement with the members of NEC's M&A and
Biodiversity Teams and the SPV managers, as well as the
Operational Team on asset management matters. The ESG due
diligence for new acquisitions is currently carried out by the M&A
Team. Going forward, the aim is fo receive grecter oversight and
support from the ESG Team to ensure consistency with the ESG
principles and opproach detaifed in NEC's Sustainable Investment
Policy.

NEC regularly engages with imporiant siakeholders, including the
UK Government, alongside leading UK industry associations, such
os the Solar Trade Association, and non-profit organisations, such
as the Business and Human Rights Resource Centre, to promole best
practices on ESG matters in the solor sector.

The NEC Group is a signatory of the United Nations Principles for
Responsible Investment ["UNPRI") and @ member of the Insfitutional
Investors Group on Climate Change ("lGCC"). The ESG Team
oclively engages and collaborates with both organisations to
promote best practices within the solar industry, and regularly
discusses any relevant recommendations and important trends for
NESF with colleagues who are responsible for the investment and
asset management of the Company’s portfolio.
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Recognition of NESF’s Green Credentials

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company waos
awarded the london Stock Exchange’s Green Economy Mark,
which recognises companies that derive over 50% of their annual
revenues from products and services that contribute to the global
green economy.

The Company was also successful in obtaining Guernsey Green
Fund status from the Guernsey Financial Services Commission
{"GFSC"). Following an application to the GFSC via Route 1
suitable third-party certification, NESF is deemed to hove mef the
following invesiment criteria as outlined in the Guemsey Green Fund
Rules, 2018 {"Rules”):

¢ the property of a Guernsey Green Fund shall be invested with
the aim of spreading risk and with the ultimate objective of
mitigaling environmental damaoge resuliing in @ net positive
outcome for the environment; and

¢ a Guernsey Green Fund shall comprise 75% of assets by value
that meet the Rules’ criteria and the remaining 25% must not
lessen or reduce the Guemnsey Green Fund's overall objective of
mitigating environmental damage or comprise an investment of o
type specified within schedule 3 of the Rules.

The Route 1 suilable third-party ceriificotion was provided by Grant
Thornlon Limited in the form of an independent limited assurance
report and their engagement was conducted in accordance with
the International Standard on Related Services ['ISRS”) 4400
"Engagements 1o Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding
Financial Information”.

Charitable Donation to the NextEnergy
Foundation (the “Foundation”)

The Foundation is an international charity founded in 2016 with the
vision of participoting proactively in the global effort to reduce
carbon emissions, providing clean power sources in regions where
they are not available and confributing o poverty alleviation. The
NexiEnergy Foundation is INEC's personal effort to support smail or
other commendable projects that would otherwise not be in the
remit of its operations. NEC has pledged 5% of its profits annually
to the Foundation and recognises the importance of benefiing
communities in which it is present and beyond.

In December 2019, NESF made a charitable donation of £50,000
to the Foundotion. The funds donated by NESF were used io
support some of the Foundation’s most recent work, including:

* providing fuel vouchers to those living in fuel poverty across the
UK;

¢ building energy-efficient cookstoves and equipping local health
posts with solar power ond electrical equipment in the Surkhet
District of Nepal; and

* increasing access o water sources in the Oromia Region of
Ethiopia by installing a solar pumping system to rehabilitate a non-
functioning borehole.

Details of each project are disclosed on the NexiEnergy
Foundalion's website [www.nextenergyfoundation.org).
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Looking Ahead and Next Steps

For NESF, ESG integration is an evolving process where stakeholder
engagement and implementation of industry best practice helps to
continuously improve our practices and become a leader in the
solar seclor.

We are planning fo strengthen our ESG disclosures and to deepen
ihe overall inlegration of ESG inlo our invesiment process in line with
the requirements of the upcoming EU Disclosure ond Framework
[Taxonomy) Regulation. This includes explaining how we
substantially contribute to climate mitigation, how we do no
significant harm ("DNSH") to the other four environmental objectives
applicable to the solar PV secior [climate adaptation, water
management, circular economy and biodiversity), and how we
comply with the minimum safeguard standards, including. but not
limited, 1o human rights viclotions.

Regarding key environmenial risks in our investments, we will ploce
greater emphasis on assessing climate-related risks more
systematically and minimising water usage during the
pre-acquisition, designing and monitoring phases of projects.

Regarding panel suppliers, environmental and minimum safety
standards are currently imposed on all suppliers. We recognise that,
because projects can be scaled down to communitylevel or
individualuse production levels, solar is well positioned fo provide
integrated benefits 1o communities who struggle fo access traditional
energy sources. However, we are also aware of the potential
human rights abuses in the value chains of the solar sector, and the
poor labour rights of workers in mineral extraction and in some
solar panel manufacturing facilities. As Human Righis is one of the
three pillars in NEC's Sustainable Investment Policy, the existing
supplier selection process is being revised 1o include an enhanced
pre-qualification questionnaire and tendering programme which,
among other things, will be used to screen for evidence of human
rights abuses. NEC dlso plans fo licise with the Solar Trade
Assaciation and the Business and Human Rights Resource Centre to
lead the discussion on human rights within our industry and promote
stakeholder engagement on the issue.

Regarding community engagement, we aim to establish a blueprint
for community engagement which will apply to all projects through
a systematic process. This blueprint will include, among other things,
stakeholder engagement and consultation plans, stewardship
principles, compensotion and community development plans 1o
ensure a more streamlined commitment to addressing social issues
across all NESF sites.

Finally, with regard to governance, NESF plans to expand the
curreni pre-qualification questionnaire and lendering progromme to
continue to comply with the UK Bribery Act, 2010.
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ESG Case Studies

Case Study 1: Biodiversity Exemplar Sites -
An Update

NEC has developed a biodiversity strategy that encompasses an
“above and beyond” approach to be infroduced in the exemplor
site portfolio. An exemplar site consists of site-specific measures to
enhance the native flora and fauna situated near or on the solor
farm. These sites have also had new biodiversity management
plans developed fo aid in the menagement and promotion of
biodiversity net gain over the plant's lifefime. Exemplor sites are
identified from the NESF portfolio as those which have met all of
their planning conditions, and those where there is an aclive
relationship with landowners who wish to engage with NESF, thus
increasing the potential for the positive benelfits of the biodiversity
measures put in place to be reaped by neighbouring communities.

NESF has invested £45,000 over the last two years for the
development and maintenance of the exemplar sites. Annual
biodiversity surveys were carried on all exemplar sites during the
year ended 31 March 2020 and showed a significant increase in
pollinators, especially in the newly infroduced wildHower meadow

areas of the original exemplar sites. These aspects will be monitored

annually over the lifetime of the sites.

In 2017, four out of a potential 35 sites were selected s
biodiversity exemplar sites (Berwick, Boxled, Emberton and
langenhoe} and the implementation of bicdiversity management
plans, including, but not limited to, site-specific wildflower
meadows, bug hotels, hibernaculas, and ongoing beehive
maintenance, which are nearing completion.

As ot 31 March 2020, NESF had implemented o total of five sites
at an exemplar stondard. An additional three siles have been
earmarked for 2021. Furthermore, the Balhearty, Brafield on the
Green, Burrowton and Temple Normanton sites have undergone
baseline biodiversity surveys which have driven the development of
site-specific measures. These measures are currently being
introduced and ore expected to be finalised next year. The plan for
next year is to have approximately eight sites within INESF's portfolio
at an exemplor standard that can be sustained with appropriate
management. However, due to COVID-19, these measures and
plans hove been put on hold.

Exemplar Sites

Year of Implementation

Balhearty 2019 Pending !
Berwick 2017 015
Boxted 2017 03
Brofield 2019 Pending '
Burrowlon 2019 0.5
Emberton 2017 077
Longenhoe 2017 0.35
Temple Normanion 2019 Pending '
Total 2.1

Curenlly on hold dus 1o COVID 19,

Case Study 2: Community Engagement -
Contribution to Education

¢ Community orchard and outdoor classroom: A plot
of land was developed 1o build a community orchard, which is
also helping to promote wildlife, near the Birch site in Colchesfer.
Al the request of the local community, an outdoor classroom was
built. This was made possible by a donation from one of our
SPVs, Birch CIC. The classroom is used to give lessons fo children
in the nearby school and members in the surrounding community
on nature.

* Two day school field trip: Over iwo days, volunteers from
the NEC Group, WiseEnergy, took opproximately 270 Year 8
Geography pupils from Imberhorme School to visit our Berwick
solor farm, located in West Sussex. The aim of the trip was to

Wildflower Meadows (ha)

Bug Hotel (n} Hibernaculars (n) Beehive Maintenance
Pending ! Pending ' Pending !
2 Pending ' 2
2 0] S
Pending ' Pending ' Pending '
0 0 0
Pending ' 0 0
2 0 0
Pending ' Pending ' Pending '
6 0 7

give pupils the opportunily 1o experience what they are taught in
class in real life, helping to deepen their knowledge about
renewable energy. The pupils learnt about the different uses of
the land at the site, the advantages of a solar farm and how it
can enhance the local biodiversily. A separate aclivity was 1o
corry out o noise survey at various parts of the solar farm, which
they would loter compare to a wind farm nearby. The school
prepared an educational pack which allowed the groups to
inferact with the volunteers as well as the teachers, encouraging
the pupils to ask questions and stimulating interesting discussions
on the topics being taught. Overall, it was a successful iwo days
for both the students and the NEC Group.
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Case Study 3: Introduction of the Universal
Biodiversity Management Plan

NEC has developed a Universal Biodiversity Management Plan
{"UBMP”) for NESF. The UBMP differs from the biodiversity
management plans referred fo in case study 1, which ore site-
specific. The UBMP allows nonrsite-specific biodiversity measures to
be intfroduced throughout the entirety of NESF's portiolio over time.
Each site may then have its own addifional site-specific measures.

As part of the UBMP, NESF is planning "Adopt a Beehive" scheme
where the 15 sites selecied for the roll out of the UBMP will be fitted
with a solar thermal beehive. The beehives will be managed by
local beekeeping associations and financially supported by NESF.
If successful, there are plans to extend this initiative throughout the

Native Wildflower Mix

Hibernacula's

whole UK portfolio to tackle the decreasing numbers of pollinators
ond increase biodiversity net gain regionally. This demonstrates our
commitment to going above and beyond what is required from
planning obligations to create @ unique web of hubs that foster
biodiversity net gain and enhance pollinator numbers. The UBMP
also consists of a native wildflower mix, hibermaculas, bird/bat
boxes and bug hotels. The main obijective is to establish cost-
effeclive measures that can be installed into any solar farm
environment and which require minimal maintenance but can
significantly contribute to an increase in fauna and flora over the
lifetime of the site. Out of the portfolio’s 90 sites, 15 have been
selected fo trial the UBMP during the year. Approximately 4.8
hectares of native wildflower mix will be planted by autumn 2020
and 16 hibemacula, 95 bird/bat/owl boxes and 15 bug holels
installed

(ha)
Bilsham 0.4
Birch 01
Botiom Plain 0.2
Branston 1
Brick Yard 0.1
Cock Hill Farm 0.7
Condover I
Croydon 0!
Decoy Farm 0}
Gover Farm 0.2
Hall Farm o'
Higher Hatherleigh 0.25
Lwyndu 0.4'
North Farm 0.2
Shacks Bam 0.25'
Total 4.8

Currently on hold due to COVID-1%.

Case Study 4: Community Engagement - Green
Corridor

NESF closely engages with local parishes and councils during the
pre-acquisiion phase and, where possible, the feedback is
incorporated info a site-specific framework which is estoblished to
create a mutualistic relationship between NESF and local
communifies. In the past, this has included changes to the specific
land take {the loss of agricultural land due to land development, siie
design, landscaping strategy and its implementation. As an
example of this, following consultation with the local community of
an NESF site, land toke was reduced and a "green corridor”
introduced fo protect the views and nature trails along public rights
of way.
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Case Study 5: Community Engagement - Tackling
Homelessness

According to the charity Greater Change, homelessness affects
around 300,000 people in the UK. Greater Change aims to
provide financial support to those who are homeless. In @ bid fo
bring about real change in the way that we support our site
communities, NESF is helping to combat homelessness around the
Bilsham site in Chichester and the Hill farm site in Oxford. The
Company is supporting 10 individuals living around both sites
through Greater Change, which is working to aid these individuals
o find accommodation, as well as training them to live and
mainiain their new homes.
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Stakeholder Engagement

We recogpnise the importance of maintaining a high standard of
business conduct and strong and constructive relationships with our

key stakeholders in order to deliver the Company's strategic

objectives over the long-term.

As the Company has no employees and given ihe nature of its
services, our Investment Adviser has significont dealings with our
other stakeholders and, therefore, is an integral point of contact

upo-date with regord to any shareholder concerns or other
significant feedback.

Qur key stakeholders are shown in the table below, in no particular
order. The table seeks to explain why those siakeholders are

between the Company and our stakeholders. The Company's
corporate brokers, Cenkos Secuiities ple and Shore Capital Ud, are
also an integral point of contact between the Company and our
shareholders and, together with the Invesiment Adviser keep us

Our Key Stakeholders

Investment Adviser

Investment Manager

Shareholders

{All investors in the Company
— instiiutional investors —
{including wealth managers)
and refail investors (including
private individuals))

Why They Are Important to Us

The Investment Adviser's performance is critical for

the Company to deliver its invesiment strategy

successfully and meet its investmeni and strategic

objeclives. Accordingly, the Company relies on
the Invesiment Advsier's expertise, and needs lo

ensure the quality and sustainability of its services,

to deliver the necessary performance. The

Investment Advsier's cullure and reputation is also

important when it is representing the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The Investment Manager's role is important to
ensure all acquisitions and divestments meel the
Company's investment and sirategic objectives.

A wellinformed and supportive shareholder base

is crucial fo the long-lerm susiainability of our
business. Undersianding the views and priorifies
of our shareholders is, therefore, fundamental o
retaining their continued support and to have the
potential to access equity capital in order to

continue to expand the Company's portfolio over

time in order to further diversify the invesiment
portfolio and create economies of scale.

important to us and how we seek to engoge with them, which we
may do either directly or through our invesiment Adviser or
corporate brokers, as appropriate.

How We Engage With Them

Board and Commiitee meetings

Ad hoc meeiings and calls with the Chairman
and other Directors

External Board evaluation, which includes
feedback from the Investment Adviser.

Informal meetings and dinners

Quarterly reports to the Board

Annual evaluation by the Management
Engagement Commitiee

Ad hoc meetings and calls with Directors

Annual and Inierim Reporis
Quarterly focisheets

Market announcements, including quarterly
INAV announcements

Website

Institutional investor meetings [one-to-one and
group), primarily thiough our Investment
Adviser and corporate brokers, to update them
(e.g. onnual and interim results presentations)
or gauge their opinions on specific matters
[e.g. strotegy and capital raisings)

Regular intitutional investor feedback received
from our Invesiment Adviser and corporate
brokers

Chairman meefings and other communications
with substantial shareholders

Research analyst presentations

Diclogue with research analysis through our
Investment Adviser, as and when required

AGM
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Our Key Stakeholders Why They Are Important to Us How We Engage With Them
Administrator As the Company has no employees, we rely on ¢ Board and Committee meetings
the Administrator to provide us with administrafive, u

Ad hoc meetings and calls with the Chairman

fund accounting and company secrefarial il ol ey e

sefvices. In paiticular, on the Administrator

maintaining the accuracy of our accounting ¢ Quorterly reports to the Board
records and ensuring our compliance with ¢ Annual evaluation of the Administrator by the
applicable lows, rules and regulations. Management Engagement Commitiee
Other Key Service A strong and constructive working relationship * Board and Committee meetings
Proyider; and Advjsers with our other key sefvice providgrs ond advisers *  Onedoone meefings and colls
(Registrar, Financial Adviser, ensures that we receive high-quality services to
legal Advisers, Corporate help deliver our investment and stralegic * Provision of relevant information to or by the
Brokers, Public Relations and objectives Company
Auditors) * Annual evaluation of key service providers and
advisers by the Management Engogement
Committee
Lenders An appropriaie amount of gearing is required lo * Provision of informotion fo lenders in
{Provider of the NEC Group's achieve our target returns. It is important fo accordance with the lerms of the relevant
credit facilities) maintain a strong working relationship with our facility agreements
existing lenders in case we moy need, at some s

Consultation in advance on matters which may

poini, their consent for, e.g., strofegic inifiatives. require their consent under the relevant focility

We also look fo build strong relationships with

agreements
lenders, including our existing lenders, who may 9
provide debt facilities in the future,
Local Communities Ensuring our investment creotes a positive social * See “Sustainability and ESG” section on
impact is core to our sustainability approach. pages 36-42
Asset Manager The Asset Manager's performance is critical for * Monihly and adhoc meefings with the
the operating solar assets o deliver operational Investment Adviser

outperformance verses the budget. The Assel
Manager also provide the administration and
fund accounting for the Company's subsidiaries, * Quarlerly reports fo the Invesiment Manager,
as well as providing an Energy Sales desk to which is reported to the Board

manage our electricity price ad sales sirategy.

* Monthly reports io the Investment Adviser
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Risks and Risk Management

We recognise that effective risk management is important to the
Company’s longerm sustainable success.

Approach to Managing Risk

Ouwr risk management process is designed to identity, evaluate,
manage and mitigate (rather than eliminate} the significant risks we
face. The process can therefore only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assuronce.

The Audit Committee formally reviews, on the Board's behalf, the
effectiveness of our risk management and internal control systems
bi-annually. During the course of these reviews, the Audit Committee
has not identified or been advised of any significant failings or
weaknesses that it has determined o be material.

Risk Appetite

The Board is ullimately responsible for defining the level and type of
risk that the Company considers oppropriate, ensuiing it remains in
line with the Compony’s investment objective and investment policy
that sets out the key components of its risk appelite.

The Company’s risk appetite is considered in the light of the
principal and emerging risks that the Company faces, including
having regard to, amongst other things, the level of exposure to
power prices, financing risk and solar resource risk.

Principal Risks

Details of the principal risks we face that have the potential to
materially affect our business are set out in the tables below. There
are some risks that we currently regard as immaterial and, therefore,
they have not been included below but they may become material
in the future. In addition, other risks may be unknown to us at
present or cannot easily be determined or quantified. These include
the OFGEM reviews of subsidy accreditations for solar assets and
the impact of future UK and ltalian toxation as a consequence of
govemment support o the economy arising from the impact of
COVID-19.

The Company also recognises that as well os being a public health
emergency, the COVID-19 pandemic is a continuing risk to our
business, as it hos a significant impact on the economy which
affects the demand of electricity, o significant faclor affecting the
price of electricity. The Company has three priorities in managing
risks deriving from COVID-19:

¢ the wellbeing of the people involved in our business, including
our Investment Manager, Investment Adviser, Assel Manager,
contractors, subconiractors and the other key siakeholders;

* keeping our solar assets operational whilst conducting essential
mainlenance; and

* protecing the financial performance of the Company’s portfolio.

The principal risks are the same as delailed in the 2019 Annual
Report, save for the impact of COVID-19.

Emerging Risks

An emerging risk is characterised by a degree of unceriainty. The
Board and the investment Adviser discuss ond consider what
emerging risks there are to the Company and its assets at the quarterly
Board meetings and the Audit Committee formally reviews emerging
risks, actual and potential, twice a year.

The Company has a range of advisers in addifion to the NEC Group,
including our corporate brokers, legal and indusiry advisers. These
advisers report on key topics and polential events which may present
potential risks that the Board and the Invesiment Adviser need to
consider and monitor.

An example of an emerging risk is the current disruplion caused by
COVID-19 and the potential longer term impact of the pandemic on
economies. The Invesiment Adviser does nol currently expect there 1o
be any material adverse operational impact on the Company's assets
but is closely monitoring the risk. The potential longerterm impact of
the pandemic on economies is unceriain and we, logether with the
Investment Adviser, will confinue to monitor this and its potential
impact on the Company and our ability to meet our objectives.

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Portfolio Management and Performance Risk

Risks

1. Electricity
generation falling
below expectation

2. Portfolio valuation

Summary

Solar is an intermittent energy source compared o
fraditional energy resources such as coal and gas.

The volume of solar irradiation available on a given
day is out of the Company's control and this is a risk
on the performance of the assets.

Unplanned DNO outages, weather patterns and
technical issues can impact generation.

Valuation of a solar PV asset is dependent on
financial models based on several drivers
principally: discount rates, rate of inflation, power
price curves and amount of eleciricity the solar
assels are expecled lo produce. Cerfain assumptions
may prove to be inaccurate, parlicularly during
periods of volatility.

External and Market Risks

Risks

1. Adverse changes
in government
policy and political
uncertainty

2. Adverse changes
to regulatory
framework for
solar PV

3. Changes to tax
legislation and
rates

Summary

Brexit negotiations confinue between the UK
government and the European Union.

An unfavourable outcome could affect an investor's
appetite to invest in the Company.

Changes by the codliion government in laly could
affect the value of the ltalian assets.

Uncertainty for the future regulatory framework for
solar PV creates a risk that turther planned
acquisitions do not lake place. This would affect the
Company’s growth potential, valuation and
profitability.

Changes Io the existing rates and rules could have
on adverse effect on the valuation of the porifolio
and levels of dividends paid to shareholders.
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Mitigation

There is a level of predictability for solar iradiation
compared to other renewables, in that iradiation
levels tend to follow a set frend throughout the year.

The geographical location of the asset has an
impact on irradiation levels, due io climate variations
and small differences in day lengths across regions.
Assels are chosen with this in mind.

The Asset Manager has value-enhancing tools that
opiimise the Company's porifolio generation and
resolve inlerruplions efficiently.

The diversity of the underlying solar module and
inverter manufacturers and O&M suppliers.

The reliability of the solar technology when properly
maintoined.

Drivers of the SPV valuation medel are frequently
reviewed by the Investment Manager 1o ensure they
are at the appropriate level.

Documentation 1o prove these calculations are
presented 1o the Boord quasterly for approval and
adoption.

To mitigate the impact of the power price volatility
the Invesiment Adviser uses an average of the power
price curves from the Consuliants.

Mitigation

The Invesiment Manager believes Brexit is likely to
have a very limited effect on the Company's
financial and operating prospects.

In 2019, the UK became the first major economy to
pass net zefo emission lows. The new larget will
require the UK to bring all greenhouse gas emissions
1o net zero by 2050. The Investment Manager does
not think the UK government will introduce primary
legislation to reverse this commiiment as a result of
Brexit.

Most other OECD countries, including Italy, which
follow the Kyoto Protocol and 2015 Paris Agreement
have similar fargels for the reduclion in greenhouse
gos emissions and transition to a low-carbon
economy.

The implications of Brexit and the policies of the
ltalian government on the Company are not
identifiable at present. These risks are beyond the
control of the Company, but the Company closely
monitors developments and their impact on the solar
industry.

The Company actively monitors regulatory changes
within the industry ond parlicipates in contiibuling
towards government discussions on the indusiry.

The Invesiment Manager has tax advisers to ensure
constant awareness of any upcoming changes 1o tax
legislation and rates, to implement the necessary
changes os quickly and smoothly as possible.
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Operational and Strategic Risks

Risks

1. A decline in the
price of electricity,
and revenues

2. Counterparty risk

3. Plant operational
risk

Summary

Revenues of solar assets are dependent on the
electiicity market. Exposure 1o the wholesale energy
market impacts the prices received for energy
generated by and revenues forecast for the
operating assets of the Company.

The acquisition of subsidy-free assets will increase
this risk as currentty most of their revenues are
derived from the wholesale energy market with only
a part benefiling from shorterm PPAs.

The Company is exposed 1o a reduction in the price
of electricity. The COVID-19 pondemic has resulted
in a decline in demand for energy which has
exacerbaled recent declines in the price of
electricity. This risk exists with future pandemics.

It is not cerlain it or when prices will recaver lo
previously forecast levels.

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted demand for
goods and services in the economy and the closure
of businesses and this will translate into lower
inflotion in the short term, which will lead 1o lower
revenues as a significant proportion of revenues are
subject lo subsidies, wilh inflation linkage and fixed
for the long-ferm.

This is the risk of counterparty failure. The Company
has entered inio O&M conlracls and PPAs, which
affect the costs and revenues of the Company. The
Company has also contracted with various EPCs for
constiuction of the subsidy-free assets.

{f the counterparly becomes insolvent there is @ risk
of disruption and financial loss until the counterparty
is replaced.

The Company relies on third-porty contraclors to
provide correclive and prevenlative maintenance
through O&M contracls.

The O&M contractor could fail to fulfil its obligation
and the solar plant's performance could deteriorate.

Degradation of the solar modules reduce the
performance of the plant over time. An increase in
the rate of degradation may lead io under
performance.

Mitigation

The Invesiment Adviser uses the most recent quarterly
reporls from the Consuliants fo be kept informed of
longer term electricity prices, and uses this
information 1o formulate the Company's electricity
sales and hedging strategies.

Short-term: The Company enters inlo PPAs and
forward coniracts to fix electricily prices for a future
period ranging from six to 12 months. The NEC
Group has an Energy Sales desk which is
responsible for hedging generation produced in the
shorterm. As at 31 March 2020, the Company
had secured fixed price agreements covering 95%
of its electricity generation for the summer of 2020
and 50% for winter 2020/21.

Long-term: Wholesale power prices are beyond
the control of the Company. Faciors that could
increase the price of electricity including the roll-out
of eleciric vehicles and the electrification of domestic
healing and transporiation networks.

The Investment Adviser reviews wholesale electricity

price forecasts and enters inlo long-term PPAs where
appropriale.

Subsidy free assets: The Invesiment Adviser will
plan for shortterm and longterm contracts before the
asset is operational.

The Asset Manager conlinuously monitors its
contracts in line with the market.

There are contractual arrangements in place that
have warranties in cose of defaulls.

The Asset Manager ensures thal counterparties are
of an acceptable financial standing fo minimise risk.

The Compony can seek legal recourse against
failure by an O&M contractor.

The Asset Manager monitors and ensures that the
O&M contract maintains a detailed preventative
schedule, with contract warranties and penalty
payments in the event of failure.

The Company looks at technological improvements
on an ongoing basis 1o offset the effect of

degradation. Also, the Company has conlract

warranlies lo secure the performance of the plants.

Anaual Report for the yeor ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND



48 Strategic Report

Going Concern and Viability

Going Concern

This Strategic Report describes the Company’s business activities,
fogether with the faciors likely fo affect its future performance,
position and prospects. The financial position of the Company, its
cash flows, liquidity posifion and borrowing facilities are referred to
in the Chairman's Statement, invesiment Adviser’s Report and notes
to the Financial Statements.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has sufficient resources
available fo be able o manage the Company’s business effectively
and pursue the Company's principal activities and invesiment
objective. In particular, the Board is not currently aware of any
material uncertainties in relation to the Company's abilily to confinue
for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of this
Annucl Report. The Board is of the opinion, therefore, that the going
concern basis adopted in the preparation of the Financial
Statemenis is appropriate.

Assessment of Viability

In accordance with the AIC Code of Corporate Goveinance and
the FCA's listing Rules, the Directors have assessed the prospecis of
the Company over a longer period than the 12 months required
when preparing financial statements on a going concern basis.

In reviewing the Company’s viability, the Directors have ossessed its
viability for the period to 31 March 2025. The Board believes this
period, being approximately five years, is an appropricie period
over which 1o assess the Company's viability as if is consistent with
the five year period used by the Boord when considering the
Company's investment strategy and medium-erm business plans
including cash flows, and is considered reasonable having regard
the long-term nalure of the Company’s investment strategy.

The Company owns a portfolio of solor energy infrastruciure assets
in the UK and ltaly that are predominantly fully constructed,
operational and generating renewable electricity. As a resul, it
benelits from predictable and reliable long-term cash flows and is
subject 1o a set of risks that can be identified and assessed. Each
solar asset is supported by a delailed financial model at acquisition
and incorporated into the Company's valuation model for quarterly
valuations. The Directors believe that the diversification within the
Company’s portfolio of solar assels helps to withstand and mitigate
the emerging and principal risks the Company is most likely fo face.
The Company's revenues from investments provide substantial cover
fo the operating expenses of the SPVs, HoldCos and the Company
and any other costs likely to be faced by any of them over the
viability assessment period.

The Investment Adviser prepares a five-year cash flow forecast
annually and the Investment Manager and the Board review this as
part of business planning and to address the susiainability of the
dividends. This forecast is based on the Investment Manager's
expectations of fulure asset performonce, income and costs, and
are consistent with the methodology applied to provide the
valuation of the investments. The forecast considers the Company's
cash balances, cash flows, dividend cover, other financial ratios,
compliance, investment policy and key operational and financial
indicators over the assessment period. Furthermore, the forecast also
considers the terms of the NESF Group's borrowing facilities [mainly
interest payable, amortisation and financial covenants) and the
terms of the preference shares and their limited redemption rights.
Apart from any drawings under two revolving credit facilities for an
aggregate of £90m that expire in 2022, there ore no borrowings
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by the Company or any of the HoldCos or SPVs that are expected
fo be refinanced during the assessment period.

The viability assessment assumes continued government support for
existing subsidy arrangements for the assets within the portfolio.

The key assumptions underpinning the cash flows and covenant
compliance forecasts are subject to sensitivity analysis 1o explore
and evaluate the Company's resilience fo the potential impact of
those emerging and principal risks summarised on pages 45-47
that, both individually and in aggregate, could prevent the
Company from delivering on its investment strotegy. The emerging
and principal risks that are subject io the sensitivity analysis are
electricity generation falling below expeciation and a decline in the
price of electricity, as these could have o material negative impact
on valuations and cash flows and give rise to a reduction in the
availability of finance. The remaining emerging and principal risks,
whilst having an impact on the Company’s business model and
future performance, position and prospects, are not considered by
the Direclors to have a reasonable likelihood of impacting the
Company's viability over the five-year period to 31 March 2025.

The sensitivilies performed were designed 1o be severe bul
plausible; and 1o take full account of the availability and likely
effectiveness of mitigating actions that could be taken to reduce or
ovoid the impact or occurrence of the underlying risks.

If the ordinary shares trade. on averoge, at a discount fo the INAV
in excess of 10% over any financial year of the Company, the
Board is required to propose, af the next AGM, a special resolution
that the Company ceases in its current form. In assessing the
likelihood of a discontinuation resolution being triggered, the Board
has had regard to the historic average ratings of the Company's
ordinary shares and ils peers over rolling 12 monih periods since
the Company's IPO in 2014,

Viability Statement

Having considered the five-year forecast cash flows and covenant
compliance, the impact of the sensitivities in combination and the
emerging and principal risks facing the Compony, the Direclors
confirm that they have o reasonable expectation that the Company
will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the period to 31 March 2025.

COVID-19 Pandemic

In ossessing whether the going concern basis should be adopted in
the preparation of the Financial Statements and the Company's
viability over the period to 31 March 2025, the Board undertook a
detailed review of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic as
discussed in the Chairman’s Statement and Investment Adviser's
Report on pages 7 and 20 respectively.

Approval

This Strategic Report was approved by the Boord on 29 June 2020
and signed on its behalf by:

b [y

Kevin Lyon
Chairman
29 June 2020
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Governance

Introduction from the Chairman

Kevin Lyon
Chairman

I am pleased to present the Company’s Corporate Governance
Report, which comprises pages 5076, for the year ended
31 March 2020.

We believe that stiong corporate govermance gives the Company's
shareholders and other key stakeholders confidence in the
Company's trustworthiness, faimess and transparency. The proclice
of good govemnance is, therefore, an integral part of the way we
manage the Company and plays an important role in shaping the
Company's longterm susiainable success and achieving our
slialegic objectives.

Enhanced Corporate Governance Regime

A number of key changes were made 1o the UK corporale
goverance regime for listed companies for financial years
beginning on or dfter 1 January 2019, including placing greater
emphasis on explaining how the corporale governance principles
have been applied. This Corporate Governance Report explains
how we apply the principles and provisions of the AIC Code of
Corporate Governance {February 2019). It provides details of the
key aspects of our corporate governance framework and seeks to
demonstiate how the Board and its Commitiees have operated
during the year and how we exercise effective stewardship over the
Company's aclivities for the benefit of our shareholders as a whole,
whilst having regard 1o the interests of wider stakeholders.

Board Composition and Evaluation

As mentioned in last year's Annual Report, Sue Inglis {Sue) joined
the Board on 1 April 2019. This enhanced our gender diversity,
with our female Directors making up 40% of the Board, ahead of
the voluntary target set by the Hampton-Alexander Review.

During the year, Sharon Parr resigned as a Director. The Boord
therefore engoged OSA Recruitment {on independent recruitment
search firm) to assist with identifying an appropriate candidate.
Following consideration of succession and identification of the
required skillset, Joanne Peacegood (Jo) was appointed to the
Board. Information on Jo's skills and experience are included in her
biography on page 53. We believe that Jo's experience in the
asset management sector including evaluating how businesses
respond to change, risk assessments and intemal controls will be of
significant value to the Board and, specifically, given her audit
experience, Jo is a shong candidate to chair the Audit Committee in
due course. Jo's appointment also supports the Board's objectives
around diversity including skills, experience, age and gender.
Further details of the search process that led to Jo's appointment are
included under “Commitiee Activities” on page 58.
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During the year, we implemented our first external Board evaluation,
which was undertaken by Linstock Limited. Overall, the conclusions
from the evaluation were positive, although they did identity some
areos that we should seek to improve on and we are responding to
the recommendations. Having joined the FTSE 350 Index during the
year, the AIC Code requires us fo undertake externally facilitated
Board evaluations at least every thiee years. As we believe we
have benefited from this year's extemnal evaluation, we intend to
underiake an external Boord evaluation process again next year.
Further information on this year's evalualion process and its findings
can be found under "Annual Performance Evaluations” on page 60.

New Management Engagement Committee

Prior to Sue’s appointment, the annual evaluation of our Investment
Manager, Investment Adviser, Administiator and other key service
providers and advisers was underioken by the Board [save for the
external auditor, who is evaluated by the Audit Committee). Having
regard to the increase in the Board's size and Sue's skills and
experience (her biography is on poage 53), the Board decided it
would be appropriate to establish a Management Engagement
Committee, chaired by Sue, and to delegate responsibility for the
annual evaluation of all of our key service providers and advisers
lapart from the auditor} to the new Commillee.

Engagement with Our Key Stakeholders

We recognise the importance of engaging with our key
stakeholders and information on how we do this can be found
under “Engagement with Our Stakeholders” on pages 43-44.

During the year, we updated the Company's website
{www.nextenergysolarfund.com), incorporating improved features
and additional functionality. We have also updated the format of
the Annual Report to improve clarity and ease of use.

We will conlinue 1o look at how we engage with all of our key
stakeholders to ensure that our engagement is both appropriate for
the Company's business and dynamic so that we can respond as
the business and our key stakeholders’ views evolve.

oy e

Kevin Lyon
Chairman
29 June 2020
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Governance Structure

Our governance framework reflects the fact that, as an invesiment company, the Company has no employees, its Directors are all non-
executive and its day-io-day activities, including investment management and administration, are outsourced to external service providers.

NEXTENERGY

BOARD

{All independent of the Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and Administrator)

Independent Chairman: Kevin Lyon {since 22 January 2014)
Principal Responsibilities: To lead the board; to ensure the board’s overall effectiveness
in directing NESF

Senior Independent Director: Vic Holmes (since 22 January 2014)
Principal Responsibilities: To provide a sounding board for the chairman
and serve as an intermediary for the other directors and shareholders

Non-executive Directors: Patrick Firth {since 22 January 2014),
Sue Inglis (since 1 April 2019), Joanne Peacegood (since 20 February 2020)

SCHEDULED MEETINGS: 4 p.a.
PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES:

To promote the long-term sustainable success of NESF, generating value for
shareholders whilst having regard to the interests of wider stakeholders

To set NESF’s strategic objectives and ensure that the necessary resources are
available for it to meet its objectives

To establish a framework of prudent and effective controls that enable risk to be assessed and managed
To oversee the performance of the Investment Manager and other external service providers
To ensure effective engagement with shareholders and other key stakeholders

To robustly scrutinise and constructively challenge all matters that come before the board

L L L T I i

(&) M) (R)

AUDIT MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION AND
COMMITTEE ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP: All Directors MEMBERSHIP: All Directors MEMBERSHIP: All Directors
CHAIRMAN: Patrick Firth

[since 2014}

CHAIRMAN: Sue Inglis
{since 14 June 2019}

CHAIRMAN: Vic Holmes
{since 2014)

SCHEDULED MEETINGS: 3 p.a. SCHEDULED MEETINGS: 1 p.a. SCHEDULED MEETINGS: 1 p.a.

PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES: PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES: PRINCIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES:

To oversee the quality of financial Yo evaluate at least annually the To keep under review the Directors’

remuneration policy

reporting performance and continuing
appointments of the Investment
Manager and other key service

providers and advisers

To review and monitor the risks the
company is exposed to, its risk
appetite and the effectiveness of its
risk management framework

To review and evaluate regularly
the Board’s composition and
succession planning and lead

the process for new
Board appointments

To review the effectiveness of the
external audit process and
independence of the external
auditor

To lead the annual evaluation of
the Board and Committees
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Board of Directors

Committees
° Audit Commitiee

o Management Engagement Commitiee

Remuneration and Nominations
Committee

. Committee Chairman

Diversity

40%

60%

B Male B fFemale

Tenure

60%

M <3 years W>6 years, <9 years

Kevin Lyon
Chairman

Resident: UK
Appointed: 22 Jonuary 2014
Independent: Yes

Committee Memberships:

000

Relevant Skills and Experience:

Over 30 years of experience in private
equity ond Direclor posilions in a number of
different companies.

Qualified Chartered Accountont.

Spent approximately 17 years with
3i Group, responsible for their core private
equity business across the UK, with a team
of 10 Direclors and 40 executives.

Independent Non-executive Director and
Chairman of more than 20 companies over
the last 15 years, including Smart Melering
Systems plc, Valiant Petroleum ple,
Wyndeham Press Group, Craneware plc,
Booker plc, David Lloyd Leisure and

Phase 8.

Attended management courses at INSEAD,
IESE and Ashiidge.

Won the Institute of Directors Scotland
Non-executive Director of the Year Award in
2013.

Principal External Appointments:

Choirmon of Inoopps Uid, a vendor of
Oracle software.

Chairman of Ramco lid, a service company
focussed on the il secior.

Norrexecutive Direclor of retailer SpaceNK.
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Vic Holmes
Senior Independent Director

Resident: Guernsey
Appointed: 22 January 2014
Independent: Yes

Committee Memberships:

000

Relevant Skills and Experience:

Over 30 years of experience in financial
services.

Qualified Chartered Certified Accouniant.

Joined the Board of Guemsey Intemational Fund
Management limited, Guemsey's largest fund
adminisation company, in 1986.

Senior roles in the international fund
odministation services business of the Baring
Asset Management group of companies
from 1990 to 2005 (based in Dublin),
including Head of Fund Administration
Services with responsibility for services out of
London, Dublin, Guernsey, Isle of Man ond
lersey.

Head of Northern Trust's Irish businesses
(2005 to 2007) and Channel Island
businesses {2007 to 2011).

First chairmon of the Irish Fund Industry
Association, which he was insirumental in
establishing in 1991.

Chairman of the Guernsey Investment Fund
Associalion’s execulive committee from

2013 1o 2015.

Has served on a wide range of fund-
related Boards, based mainly in Guernsey
ond Ireland but also in the UK and
Cayman lslands, since 1986.

Principal External Appointments:

Chairman of Permira Holdings Limited,
Uimost Worldwide Limited and Highbridge
Tactical Credit Fund Limited

Non-executive Director of DBG
Management GP {Guernsey) Limited and o
range of Ashmore funds.



STRATEGIC FINANCIAL ADDITIONAL
OVERVIEW REPORY GOVERNANCE STATEMENTS INFORMATION

Patrick Firth
Non-executive Director

Resident: Guernsey
Appointed: 22 jonuary 2014
Independent: Yes

Committee Memberships:

000

Relevant Skills and Experience:

Has worked in the fund industry in
Guernsey since joining Rothschild Asset
Management C.I. Limited in 1992.

Qualified Chartered Accountant.

Managing Director at Butterfield Fund
Services (Guemsey] limited (subsequenily
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Guernsey)
Limited), a company providing third party
fund administration services, from 2002 to
2009.

Former Chairman of the Guemsey
international Business Association and of the
Guernsey Investment Fund Association.

A member of the Chartered Institute for
Securities and Investment.

Former Non-executive Director of |Z Capital
Partners Limited.

Principal External Appointments:

Non-executive Director of a number of
management companies, general poriners
and investment companies, including
Riverstone Energy Limited, ICG-ongbow
Senior Secured UK Properiy Debt
Investments Limited and GLI Finance Limited.

Sue Inglis
Non-executive Director

Resident: UK
Appointed: | April 2019
Independent: Yes

Committee Memberships:

Relevant Skills and Experience:

Over 30 years' experience in advising
investment companies and financial
institutions.

Qudlified lawyer and a former pariner, and
head of the funds and financial services
group, af Shepherd & Wedderbum, a
leading Scottish law firm.

In 1999, a founding pariner of Intelli
Corporale Finance, an advisory boutique
firm focusing on the asset management and
investment company sectors, which was
acquired by Canaccord Genuity in 2009,

Before embarking on a non-executive
career in 2018, execulive oles included
Managing Director — Corporate Finance in
the Investment Companies teams at Cantor
Fitzgerald Europe {2012-2018) and
Canaccord Genuity {20092012).

Former Non-executive Director of The
European Investment Trust ple.

Principal External Appointments:
Chairman of The Bankers Investment
Trust PIC.

Senior independent Director of Baillie
Gifford US Growth Trust PLC.

Non-executive Director of BMO Managed
Portfolio Trust PLC and Seneca Global
Income & Growth Trust plc.

Joanne Peacegood
Non-executive Direclor

Resident: Guemsey
Appointed: 20 February 2020
Independent: Yes

Committee Memberships:

000

Relevant Skills and Experience:

Over 20 years of experience in the
Investment Management seclor including
Premium Listed Funds and Allerative assets.

Worked for big four in the Channel Islonds,
UK and Canada for 20 vears.

Qualified as a Chartered Accountont in
2002 {FCA} and holds a BA honours
degree in Accounting.

ted hundreds of Audits for repulable Asset
Management clients and Conirols
Assurance engagements.

Expertise in Valuations, Corporate
Govemnance and Regulations.

Previous Risk & Quality Direclor.
Responsibilities included considering and
responding to risks, regulatory relationships
and assessment of quality/contiols.

Innovation & Technology Director
overseeing technology solutions to enable
the business to operate more efficiently.

Principal External Appointments:
Non-executive Direcior oles include Private
Equity, Debt and Asset Managers.

Vice Chair of the Guernsey Investment &
Fund Association Executive Commitiee.

Member of the Guernsey Infernational
Business Associafion Council.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Statement of Compliance

The Boord considers that the principles and provisions set out in the
AIC Code of Corporate Govemance (February 2019} provide the
most appropriate framework for the Company's governance and
reporting to shareholders. The AIC Code addresses the principles
and provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code
{July 2018] as well as setiing out additional principles and
recommendotions on issues that are of specific relevance to
investment companies. The AIC Code includes an explanation of
how the AIC Code adapts the principles and provisions set out in
the UK Corporate Governance Code fo make them relevant for
investment companies. The AIC Code is available on the AIC's
website [www.theaic.co.uk).

The AIC Code has been endorsed by the Financial Reporting
Council and the Guemsey Finoncial Services Commission. By
reporfing against the AIC Code, the Board is meeting its obligations
in relation to:

* the UK Corporate Governance Code {ond associated disclosure
requiremenis under the FCA's Listing Rule 9.8.6R) and,
accordingly, the Company does not need to report further on
issues contained in the UK Corporaie Governance Code which
are irrelevant to it; and

* the Guernsey Financial Services Commission’s Finance Sector
Code of Corporate Govermance (February 2016).

The Company has complied with the principles and has complied
with the provisions of the AIC Code during the year ended
31 Marich 2020.

Board Leadership and Company Purpose
Board Leadership

The role of the Board is to promote ihe long-term sustainable
success of the Company, generating value for our shareholders
whilst having regard o the interests of wider stakeholders.

The Investment Manoger, lnvestment Adviser and Administrator are
responsible for implementing the Company's strategy and managing
the Company’s day-o-day activities and operations. The
Company's success is based on such implementation and
management being effective. The Board leads and provides
direction for the Invesiment Manager, Investment Adviser and
Administrator by setting the Company's strategic obijectives within a
robust framework of risk management and internal controls. The
Board oversees the execution of the Company’s strategy and
implementation of its key investment, financial, operational and
compliance policies, enabling it to scrufinise robustly and challenge
constructively the performance of the Investment Manager,
Investment Adviser and Administrator.

Company Purpose, Values and Strategy

The Company's principal purpose is 1o provide ordinary
shareholders with atractive riskodjusted returns, principally in the
form of regular dividends, by investing in a diversified portfolio of
primarily UK-based solar energy infrastructure assets, through
investment in o diversified portlolio of solar assets managed in
accordance with its investment policy. Details of the Company's
investment and shategic objectives and its investment strategy are
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set out in "Our Obiectives” and “Our Investment Strategy and Track
Record” on poge 2 and pages 15-18 respeclively. In setting the
Company's stiategic objectives, the Board had regard to the
interests of the Company’s key stakeholders.

The Strategic Report describes:

* how the Company seeks lo generate and preserve value over
the longerm (see “Portiolio Optimisation” in the Investment
Adviser's Report on page 21};

¢ the key considerations relating o new investment opportunities
[see "Portfolio Highlights” in the Invesiment Adviser's Report on
page 20};

e the emerging and principal risks to the future success of the
Compony and how we seek to manage and mitigate them (see
“Risks and Risk Management” on pages 45-47); and

¢ the susiainability of the Company's business model (see “the
Going Concern and Viability section” on page 49).

We aim 1o ensure the Company is run in @ manner that is consistent
with our belief in integrity, faimess ond transparency and responsive
to the views of the Company’s shareholders and wider stakeholders.

Board Culture

Qur culture is bosed on openness, trust and candour beiween
Board members, respect for differing opinions and areas of
expertise and individual and collective accountability. We believe
that this culture encourages construclive ond robus! challenge and
debate, generates stiong collective wisdom and ullimately leads to
good decision making, all of which are important to the successful
implementation of the Company's stategy.

We seek to ensure that our culture is aligned with the Company's
purpose, values and strategy principally thiough ongeing diclogue
and engagement with the Investment Manager, Invesiment Adviser
and Administrator, whose efforts are collectively direcied fowards
delivering returns to shareholders in line with the Company'’s
purpose, and monitoring the performonce and management of the
Company.

Section 172 Statement

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 applies directly to UK
domiciled companies. Nonetheless, the intention of the AIC Code
is that the mallers set out in section 172 are reported on by all
companies, irespective of domicile, provided this does not conflict
with local company law. Under section 172, direclors have a duty
fo promote the success of their company for the benefit of its
members as a whole, whilst having regard 1o {amongst others) the
likely consequences of their decisions in the longterm and the
interests of the company’'s wider stakeholders.

Information on how we have acted in accordance with the
requirements of section 172 is included throughout the Strategic
Report and this Corporate Governance Report. In particular:

* information on the Company's volues and business model and
our culture can be found under” Our Business Model” on
pages 12-14 and under "Company Purpose, Values and
Strategy” above;
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* delails of how the Company seeks to generate and preserve
value over the long-term can be found in the Invesiment Adviser's
Report on pages 20-30;

* information on the emerging and principal risks that could disrupt
the long term success of the Company and how we seek o
manage and mitigate them are considered under “Risks and Risk
Management” on pages 45-47,

* details of the Company's key siakeholders, why they ore
imporiant fo us and how we engage with them can be found in
“Engagement with Our Stakeholders” on poges 43-44;

* in relation to the Company’s solar assets, the Asset Manager
and the Investment Adviser have day-o day responsibility for the
Company’s dealings with suppliers, contractors, customers and
others and information of how they foster these relationships are
included under “Principal Roles” on page 14;

¢ information on how the Company’s operations impact on the
environment and the communities in which its solar assets are
located are included in the Sustainability and ESG seciion on
pages 36 to 42; and

* a summary of the Board's principal activities during the year
under review are included under “Principal Roles” on page 14.

In making decisions, our aim is always to ensure the long-term
sustainable success of the Company and, therefore, the likely
long-erm consequences of any decision are a key consideration. In
relation to the decisions we took during the yeor under review, we
acled in the way we considered, in good faith, would be most
likely to promote the Company's longterm susiainable success and
achieve its wider objectives for the benefit of our shareholders as a
whole, having had regard 1o our wider siokeholders and the other
matters set out in section 172.

Conflicts of Interest

The Directors have a duty to avoid siluations where they have, or
could have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly
could conflict, with the Company's interests "conflict situations”). A
Direcior must inform the Chairman {or, in the case of the Chairman,
the Senior Independent Director] as soon as they become aware of
the possibility of a conflict situation.

Where it deems it appropriate, the Board may approve conflict
situations. In deciding whether to approve a conflict situation, the
Board will act in @ way it considers, in good faith, will be most
likely to promote the Company's long-erm sustainable success. The
Board con impose limits or conditions when giving approval if it
considers this appropriate.

We believe that our arrangements for approving and monitoring of
conflict situations operate effectively.

There were no conflict situations during the year under review {or
since the end of the year}.

Division of Responsibilities
Board

The Board comprises five Direclors, all of whom are non-executive
ond independent, and is chaired by Kevin lyon. The biographies of
the Directors are on pages 52 and 53.

The Board's principal responsibilities include:

¢ promoting the Company’s long-term sustainable success,
generaling value for our shareholders whilst having regard to the
interests of wider stakeholders;

s selting the Compony's stategic obieclives and ensuring that the
necessary resources are in place for the Company to meet its
objectives;

® establishing a framework of prudent and effective controls that
enoble risk to be assessed and managed,

* esiablishing a fromework of high standards of corporate
governance;

* overseeing the execution of the Company's stralegy and
implementation of its key investment, financial, operational ond
compliance policies;

* overseeing the performance of our Investment Manager,
Investment Adviser, Administrator and other key service providers
and advisers;

* ensuring effective engagement with shareholders and other key
stokeholders; and

* robustly scrutinising and constructively challenging all matters that
come before the Board.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company's aclivities.
However, it has delegated or outsourced various matiers to its standing
Committees and day{o-day aclivities fo the Investment Manager and
the Administrator, all of which operate within clearly defined terms of
reference or agreements that set out their oles, responsibiliies and
authorities. All other matters are reserved for consideration and
approval by the Board {including those maiters listed in a formal
schedule of reserved matters approved by the Board), thus enabling the
Board to maintain full and effective control over appropriate siategic,
financial, operationaf and compliance issues. The reserved matters
include:

o the Company's strategy and slrategic aims;

* the Company's dividend policy and declaration of dividends;
¢ dlierations lo the Company’s equity and debt capital structures;
 valuations of the Company's investments;

¢ financial reporting and controls;

¢ the Company's operating and markeling budgets;

* Board membership; and

¢ all corporate governance matters.

To enable the Board to fulfil its responsibilities, the Directors are

expected to provide strategic guidance, constructive challenge,
offer specialist advice and hold the Investment Manager, Investment
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Adviser, Administrator and other service providers and advisers
fo account.

The Directors have access fo the advice and services of the
Adminisirator. Where necessary, in corrying out their duties, the
Directors may also seek independent professicnal advice and
services at the expense of the Company.

Chairman

The current Chairman is Kevin lyon. His primary role as Chairman is
fo provide leadership to the Board. The principal responsibilities of
the Chairman include:

¢ the overall effectiveness of the Board in directing the Company;
¢ ioking a leading role in setting the Company's stiategic aims

¢ promoting behaviours and attributes that make up the Board's
culture |details of which can be found under “Board Culture” on
page 54J;

* ensuring the Direclors receive information of appropriate quality
and form in a fimely manner and encouraging bolanced, open
and inclusive Boardroom discussions, all of which facilitate the
Boord's ability to debate robustly and challenge consiructively
and to make objeciive decisions;

¢ ensuring the Company is meeting its responsibilities to
shareholders and wider stakeholders; and

¢ engaging with shareholders to ensure that the Board has a clear
understanding of their views.

The effectiveness and independence of the Chairman is evaluated
on an annual basis as part of the Board's performance evaluation.
Information on the 2020 appraisal of the Chairman can be found
under “Annual Performance Evaluations” on pages 60 and 61.

Senior Independent Director

The current Senior Independent Director is Vic Holmes. His primary
ole as such is fo serve as a sounding board for the Chairman, act
as an intermediary for other Directors and be availoble to respond
lo shareholders' concerns if they cannot be resolved through the
normal channels of communication (i.e. thiough the Chairman). The
Senior Independent Director leads the annual evaluation of the
Chairman (see “Annual Performance Evaluations” on pages 62 and
64 for information on the 2020 annual evaluation).

Board Committees
The Board has three sianding Committees:

¢ Audit Committee: Information on the Committee’s membership,
roles and responsibilities is included in the Audit Committee
Report on pages 66 to 68.

¢ Management Engagement Committee: The Commiltee was
established on 14 June 2019 and is chaired by Sue Inglis {see
“New Management Engagement Commitiee” on page 50 for
further information). The Committee aims to serve the interests of
the Company’s shareholders and other siakeholders through
seeking to ensure that the Company's key service providers,
including the Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and
Administrator, and advisers are delivering o high level of
performance and value for money. The Commitiee’s principal
responsibilities are 1o evaluate, af least annually, the performance
and appropriateness of the continuing appoiniments of the key
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service providers and advisers and to review terms of the
Management Agreement, including the basis of the fees payable
1o the Investment Manager, having regord o current market
practice.

* Remuneration and Nominations Committee: Information on
the membership and the remuneration-relaied roles and
responsibilities of the Committee are included in the Direciors'
Remuneration Report on page 63.

The Committee’s nomination-related responsibilities include:

- reviewing the Board composifion and assessing whether the
balance of skills, experience, knowledge, diversity and
independence is appropriate lo enable the Board to
discharge its responsibiliiies effeclively and efficiently;

- succession planning;
- leading the process for new appointments to the Board; and

- leading the annual evaluation of the Board and its
Commitiees.

A copy of the terms of reference of each Commitiee is available on
the Company's website (www.nextenergysolarfund.com). The
Commitiees review their lerms of reference at least annually, with
any proposed changes recommended to the Board for approval.

The Board also establishes additional Commitiees from time to time
to take operational responsibility on specific matters following “in
principle” approval from or with subsequent ratification by the
Board. These Committees ensure that key matiers are dealt with
efficiently.

Investment Manager and Investment Adviser

A Monagement Agresment between the Company and the
Investment Mcnager sels out the matters over which the Investment
Manager has authority and responsibility. Under the Management
Agreement, but subject o the overall contiol and supervision of the
Board, the Investment Manager hos full discretion io make
investments in solar assets that have been recommended by the
Invesiment Adviser and meet the requirements of the Company’s
invesiment policy.

The Investment Manager is also the Company’s Alternative Fund
Manager [‘AIFM"} for the purpose of the EU's AIFM Directive. As
the AIFM, the Investment Manager also has responsibility for all risk
management and portfolio management activities. In oddition, the
Invesiment Manager has been granted powers by the Company as
regards its HoldCos and SPVs in order to facilitate the performance
of its obligations.

The Investment Adviser's role primarily entails the origination,
evaluation, co-ordination and recommendation of invesiment
opportunilies for the Company and the related provision of
investment advice to the Invesiment Manager in respect of stralegy,
acquisitions and disposals, portiolio efficiencies, financing, market
developments and other matters that may affect the Company's
portfolio or the Compony's ability to meet its investment or sirategic
objectives. In addition, the Invesiment Adviser is responsible for
overseeing the performance of the Company's portfolio.

in advonce of Board meetings, the Invesiment Manager provides
regular reports, which include operating updates on the Company's
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solar assefs, information on potential new investment opportunities,
cash flow forecasts and other financial information, industry updotes
and other relevant information. Senior representatives of the Investment
Manager and the Invesiment Adviser attend Board meefings. In
addition, ihere is regular contact between the Board, Invesiment
Manager and Investment Adviser, including Informal meetings
between Board meetings. Our aclive engagement and supportive
working relotionship with the Invesiment Manager and Investment
Adviser create an open and collaborative culture that ensures that we
have a thorough understanding of the Company's business and
facilitates our robust scrufiny and constructive challenge of the
activilies and performance of the Investment Manager and Investment
Adviser.

Administrator

The Company has appointed the Administrator to provide company
secretarial, fund accounting and adminisiration services. The
Administralor’s responsibifities include:

* ensuring that the Company complies with applicable Guernsey
laws, rules and regulations and also the FCA's rules and
regulations applicable lo investment companies with a premium
fisiing and of the London Stock Exchange's rules and regulations;

* advising on all governance matiers;

* supporting the Board to ensure that if has the policies, processes
and information it needs in order to function effectively and
efficiently;

¢ under the direction of the Chairman, facilitating the flow of
information between the Board, Committees, Invesiment
Manager, Investment Adviser ond other service providers and
advisers; and

¢ ensuring that Board procedures are followed.

[n advance of Board meetings, the Administrator provides regular
reports, which include financial and other operational information,
details of any breaches or complaints and relevant legal, regulatory,
corporate governance and other technical updates. There is also
regulor contact between the Directors and the Administrator
between Board and Commitiee meetings. Our working relationship
and dialogue with the Administrator provides us with a thorough
understanding of the Company’s operational aclivities, ensures we
comply with relevant legal, regulatory, corporate governance and
other technical requirements and facilitales our effective oversight
and sciutiny of the activities and performance of the Adminisirator,

Board and Committee Meetings and Activities
Meetings

The Board and s stonding Committees hold regular scheduled
meelings and additionaf meetings as required. The agenda for
each meeting is prepared by the Administrator and opproved by
the Chairman of the relevant meeting. Representatives of the
Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and Administralor attend all
scheduled meetings, alihough the Directors may meet without all or
some of them being present.

Agendas, along with reports and other papers containing relevant,
concise and clear information, are circulated to the Board and
Commitiees in a timely manner to enable review and consideration
prior lo scheduled and ad hoc meetings. This ensures that the
Directors are capable of contribuiing to and making informed

decisions. The Board or a Committee may also seek, as required,
further clarification of matters from the Investment Manager,
Investment Adviser, Administrators and other service providers or
advisers by means of additional reports and/or in-depth discussions.

The primary focus af the quarterly Board meetings is:

* areview of the Company's investments, including their
performonce ond any operational issues and asset management
inifictives;

® any investment opportunities and how they fit within the
Compoany's stotegy;

* legal, regulatory and market developments that may impact the
Compoany or ifs investments;

* valuation of invesiments and NAV calculation;

¢ the Company’s financial performance;

¢ the Compony’s financial and regulatory complionce;

e investor relations, shareholder analysis and marketing; and

* peer group benchmarking and other relevant secior information.

Board Activities

In addition to routine business at the quarterly Board meetings,
matters considered by the Board during the year under review
included:

¢ the Company's sirialegy and strategic aims, including in respect
of subsidy-free solar essets (see “Portfolio Update” in the
Chairman’s Statement on page 9 and in the Investment Adviser's
Report on page 22);

* (aising additional preference share capital {see “Capital Raising
and Debt Financing” in the Chairman’s Statement on page 9
and in the Investment Adviser's Report on pages 29 and 30);

* the suspension of the scrip dividend aliemnative in respect of the
third interim dividend (see “Dividends” in the Chairman’s
Statement on page 9);

* approving the Annual and Interim Reports;

* the appoiniment of @ new Director (see “Boasd Composition and
Evaluation” on page 50);

* the creation of the Management Engagement Commitiee see
“New Management Engagement Committee” on page 50);

¢ the 2019 annual assessment of the performance and
appropriateness of the confinuing appointments of the Investment
Manager, Invesiment Adviser, Administrator and other key
service providers and advisers and assessment of the commercial
ferms of the Management Agreement (see “Annual Performance
Evaluations” on pages 60 and 6l);

¢ recommendations from iis Committees, including the appointment
of a new external auditor following a formal tender process (see
“Audit tender” in the Audit Commitiee Report on page 67);

¢ the appointment of a new legal adviser and a new financial
adviser and joint corporale bioker and [see below); and

* the Company's corporate governance framework having regard
o the February 2019 version of the AIC Code.

During the year, as the Company had passed its fifth anniversary of
its IPO, the Board decided it would be in the best interesis of
shareholders to review the competitiveness and performance of the
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Company’s existing UK legal adviser against other UK legal
advisers active in the investment companies sector. Having
concluded the review, the Board decided, based on the strength
and experience of the overall team within the sector and the fee
charging structure, to appoint Stephenson Harwood LLP as the
Company's legal adviser with effect from 17 january 2020.

Al the beginning of the year under review, the Company had four
corporale biokers, iwo of which subsequently ceased their
corporale bioking activities. The Board decided, therefore, to
conduct a formal tender process 1o assist in assessing the
peiformance of the Company's remaining corporate brokers against
other providers in the market [excluding those with potential conflicis
due o their engagement by the Company’s peers) and to determine
whether it was appropriote to make any changes fo its remaining
corporate brokers. At the end of this process, the Board decided,
based on their collective knowledge of the Company and
experience in the seclor, to retain Shore Capital and Corporate
Limited as ifs sponsor and joint broker and to appoint Cenkos
Securities Plc as its financial adviser and other joint broker with
effect from 27 January 2020.

Committee Activities

Information on the aciivities of the Audit Commiittee during the year
under review can be found under "Responsibilities and Activities” in
the Audit Committee Report on pages 66 and 67.

The Management Engagement Commitiee was established on

14 June 2019, after the 2019 annual evaluation of the Company's
key service providers, including the [nvestment Manager, Investment
Adviser and Adminisirator, and advisers had been completed.
Therefore, the Commitiee did not meet during the year under
review,

Maiters considered by the Remuneration and Nominations
Commitiee during the year under review included:

¢ Board appointment: Following Sharon Par's resignation with
effect from 31 December 2019, and having evaluated the skills,
experience, knowledge and tenure of the conlinuing Direciors,

the Committee prepared a description of the role and
copabilities required for the vacancy. The Company oppointed
OSA Recruitment {which has no other connection with the
Company or with individual Directors, other than providing this
type of service} to assist with the search for suitable candidates.
Having assessed a number of candidates put forward by OSA
Recruitment and following her meetings with the Directors and
the Investment Adviser, the Commiltee recommended the
appointment of joanne Peacegood as a Director. The Board
approved Jo's appoiniment with effect from 20 February 2020.
Details of Jo's skills, experience and principal external
appoiniments can be found in her biography on page 53 and
anficipated benefits of her appointment to the Board are
discussed under “Board Composition and Evaluation” on

page 50.

* Annual evaluation of the effectiveness of the Board and
its Committees: Details of the evaluation process and the
outcomes can be found under “Annual Performance Evaluations”
on pages 60 and 61

Meeting Attendance

The number of scheduled Board and Committee meetings during
the year under review which each Director was entfiled o attend
and the atiendance of the individual Direclors at those meetings, is
shown in the table below.

In addition to the scheduled Board meetings, there were 18 ad hoc
Board meetings and one od hoc Remuneration and Nominations
Commiliee meetings during the year under review. These meelings
were convened fo conclude a number of matters previously
discussed at scheduled meetings and to deal with administrative
and process matters. Ad hoc meetings are typically convened at
relatively short notice and are held in Guemnsey. It is not always
feasible or necessory, therefore, for all the Direclors to attend the ad
hoc meetings. However, Directors who are unable 1o attend an ad
hoc meeting are expected lo communicate their views on any
matters to be discussed io their fellow Directors ahead of the
meeting.

Management Remuneration
Engagement and Nominations
Director Audit Committee Committee’ Committee
Kevin lyon 4/4 3/3 n/a 1/1
Vic Holmes 4/4 3/3 n/a 1/1
Pairick Firth 4/4 3/3 n/a 1/1
Sue Inglis 4/4 3/3 n/a 1/
Sharon Par? 3/3 2/2 n/a 1/1
Joanne Peacegood® n/a n/a n/a n/o

The Management Engagement Commitiee did not meel during the year ended 3t Match 2020 os it was established after the 2019 annual evaluation of the Company's key
seivice providers and advisers had been completed.

Sharon Parr resigned as a Director on 31 December 2019

loanne Peacegood became a Diector on 20 February 2020
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Board Composition and Succession
Board Composition and Independence

The Board currently comprises five Directors, all of whom are
non-executive and independent of the Investment Manager and the
Invesiment Adviser. Details of the Direciors' skills, experience and
principal external appoiniments are included in their biographies on
pages 52 and 53.

The current Chairman, Kevin lyon, and Senior Independent Director,
Vic Holmes, have held their positions since the Company's IPO in
2014. The Chairman does not have, and has not had, any
relotionships or circumstances thot may create a conflict of interest
between his interests and those of shareholders.

Appointments to the Board

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee oversees the
recruitment process, which generally includes the use of a firm of
Non-executive Director recruitment consultants.

When considering new appoiniments, the Committee takes into
account other demands on the candidates’ fime. In advance of
joining the Board, new Directors are asked to disclose any existing
significant commitments with on indication of the time involved and
to confirm that they are able to allocate sufficient time o the
business of the Company and that there are no situations where
they have, or could have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts,
or possibly could conflict, with the Company’s interests.

Al the time of appointment, a new Direclor receives a letter of
appointment that sefs oul their dufies and obligations. Copies of the
letters of appoiniment of the current Directors are available for
inspection at the Company's registered office and at each AGM.

An induction progromme for new Directors is now in place. This
includes meetings with the senior members of the NextEnergy
Capital team involved in the management of the Company and the
Administrator, as well as visiting of least one of the Company's sole
PV assets.

Details of appointments 1o the Board during the year under review
can be found under “Board Composition and Evaluation” on
page 50 and “Board Appoiniment” on page 58.

Board Commitments

Prior to taking on any new listed board, time consuming, conflicted
or otherwise significant appointments, a Director must seek the prior
approval, on behalf of the Board, of the Chairman {or, in the case
of the Chairman, the Senior Independent Direcior). If the Chairman
for Senior Independent Director) believes the relevant appoiniment
causes a conflict or potential conflict of interest, they will refer the
appointment for consideration and, if appropriate, approval of the
Board. A Direcior must promptly notify the Administrator of any new
board appointments that they take on.

When considering whether o recommend the election or re-election
of a Director af any AGM, the Board assesses the Direclor’s
conlinuing ability to meet the time requirements of the role by
considering, amongst other things, their attendance at Board,

Committee and other ad hoc meelings held during the year as well
os the nature and complexity of their other external roles.

The Directors’ attendance at all scheduled Board and Committee
meelings held during the year is shown in the table on page 58.
Neither the Chairman nor any of the other Direclors took on any new
significant appointments during the year under review [or since the
end of the yeor). The Boord believes all the Directors have sufficient
ime lo meet their Board responsibilities.

Board Diversity

Appoiniments to the Board are made on merit, having due regard
1o the benefits of diversity in its widesi sense (including gender, age,
social and ethnic backgrounds and cognitive and personal
strengths) and with the objective of ensuring that the Board and its
Commiltees have the skills, experience and knowledge necessary
o bring a wide range of perspectives and to discharge their
responsibilities effectively. Our priority when making new
oppointments is to idenlify the candidate with the best range of
skills, experience and knowledge to complement those of the
existing Directors. Accordingly, we do not believe it is in the inferests
of the Company or its shareholders to set prescriptive targets for
diversity on the Board.

Board Tenure
We have considered the quesiion of tenure for Directors, including

. the Chairman, ond are mindful that three of our five Direciors will

reach their ninth anniversary simultaneously in Jonuary 2023. We
have concluded that no Direclor should normally remain in office
beyond the date of the AGM following the ninth anniversary of their
first appointment 1o the Board. However, this period may be
extended for a limited time to facilitaie effective succession
planning, particularly in relation to our three original Directors.

None of the Directors have been on the Board for nine years or
more. The date of appointment of each Direcior can be found in
their biographies on pages 52 and 53.

Succession Planning

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee is responsible for
reviewing the succession plans for the Board. Kevin lyon, Vic
Holmes and Patrick Firth are the longest sianding Directors, having
been appointed at the time of the Company’s IPO in 2014. Whilst
the Board does not consider that length of service in itself
necessarily undermines a Direclor’s independence or that each
Director, including the Chairman, should serve for a finite fixed
period, the Remuneration and Nominations Committee intends,
during the current financial year, to review and recommend to the
Board a succession plan for the staged refreshment of the Board in
due course.

Election and Re-election by Shareholders

All Directors stand for re-election at each AGM of the Company,
save that, at the first AGM following their appointment, o new
Direclor stands for election.
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The Board has reviewed the outcome of the annual Board
evaluation, information on which is set out under “Annual
Performance Evaluations” below. The Board has also assessed
each Director’s independence, time commitment fo the Company,
contribution [outside of the usual meeling cycle as well os in
scheduled meetings) since they were lost elected or re-elected, and
fenure, as well as the nature and complexity of their other external
roles and whether their election or re-election would be in the best
interests of the Company. We believe that the Board is well
balanced and possesses the necessary breadth of skills, experience
and knowledge ond diversity of gender and cognitive and personal
strengths to ensure it functions effeciively and efficiently in
discharging its responsibilities, which is important to the long-erm
sustainable success of the Company. We are also satisfied that
each Director continues o perform effeclively, 1o be independent
and to demonstiate commiiment o their role. Therefore, resolutions
will be proposed at this year's AGM o elect Joanne Peacegood
and to re-elect the other four Directors.

Removal of Directors

The Directors’ letters of appointment do not impose any maximum
limit on the period for which they may serve, although the
continuation of their appointment is contingent on satisfaciory
performance evoluation and annual re-election (or, in the case of a
Director appointed since the previous AGM, election} by
shareholders af the AGM.

Under their letter of appointment, a Director’s appointment may be
terminated at any time by either the Company or the Director giving
not less than three months' nofice or otherwise in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

Annual Performance Evaluations
Board, Committees and Directors

In January 2020, the Company engaged Linstock Limiled, an
independent consultant, to faciliiate an external Board evaluation.
Linstock has no other connection with the Company or with
individual Directors, other than providing this type of service.

All Directors, apart from Sharon Parr and Joanne Peacegood due to
the dates of their resignation and appointment respectively,
participated in the evaluation. The Investment Adviser also
participoted in the evaluation. The evaluation took the form of
comprehensive online questionnaires, which asked us to consider,
among other things: board composition, expertise, dynamics and
succession planning; the management and focus of, and
atmosphere in, Board meetings; Directors’ raining requirements,
Boord support by the Administrator; the effectiveness of the
Chairman; the performance of the Audit and Remuneration and
Nominations Committees; the Company's stiategy and stralegic
objectives and oversight of iis strategy, investment activiies and
performance; risks and risk management; investor relations and
marketing, including shareholder engagement; and priorities for
change over the next 12 months.

The Remuneration and Nominations Commitiee considered
Linstock’s report at its meeting in February 2020. Linstock's report
rated a number of key areas of focus highly, including Boord
composition and dynamics, management of meetings, the
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effectiveness of the Committees, the clarity of the Company'’s
strategic aims, the Board's oversight of the Compony's strategy and
the Boord's effectiveness in monitoring risks and risk management.
The top three priorities for the next 12 months were identified as
reviewing the Company's longerterm siralegy, increasing investor
engagement and marketing activities and infegrating Joanne
Peacegood as a Director and developing relationships with the
newly appoinied advisers. Linstock's report provided o number of
useful recommendations, predominantly of an administrative nature,
which the Board have taken on boord and wilt work to progress.
The Remuneration and Nominations Commiftee concluded that,
based on the evaluation and the appointment of Joanne
Peacegood to fill the Board vacancy, the composition of the Board
and its Commiftees reflected a suitable mix of skills, experience and
knowledge and that the Board and its Commitiees, were
functioning effectively.

Having considered linstock’s report, each Director’s individual
performance, contribution and commitment, the Boordroom
atmosphere and the relationships between the Board members, the
Remuneration and Nominations Commitiee wos satisfied that each
Director contributed effectively and that, collectively, the Directors
worked together effectively in the pursuit of achieving the to achieve
the Company's objectives.

Chairman

Led by Vic Holmes, the Senior Independent Director, the Directors
met without the Chairman present to appraise his performance. The
review of the Chairman was very positive, with the other Directors
commenting favourably on, in particular, his leadership, his
facilitotion of constructive Board relations and the effective
confribution of individual Directors and his encouragement of open
and inclusive Boardroom discussions. The other Directors concluded
that the Chairman continued to chair the Board effectively.

Investment Manager and Investment Adviser

At its meeling held in June 2019, the Boord evaluated the
performance and services provided by the Investment Manager
and lnvestment Adviser. This process included the completion of @
questionnaire by the Investment Manager ond Investment Adviser.
The Board considered the completed questionnaires, the
Company's track record in terms of NAV and share price
performance and achievement of performance obijectives, the
quality of the services provided by the Investment Manager ond
Investment Adviser, the resources that they committed 1o the
Compoany's atfairs, the continuity of the personnel assigned to
handle the Company's affairs and the relationship between the
Board and the Investment Manager and Investment Adviser. The
Board also considered the terms of the Management Agreement,
and in particular the fees payable 1o the Invesiment Manager {no
fees are payable by the Company to the Investment Adviser). The
outcome of the evaluation was very positive. The Board concluded
that, having regard to the NexiEnergy Capital's proven track record
in, and sole focus on, the solar energy infrastructure sector, the
specialist nature of the Company's invesiment remit was best served
by the Investment Manager. The Boord agreed, therefore, that the
conlinuing appoiniment of the Invesiment Manager on the terms set
out in the Management Agreement and its continued appoiniment
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of the Invesiment Adviser were in the best interests of shareholders
as a whole and the Company’s wider stakeholders.

Details of the fees payable to the Investment Manager and related
entities can be found in notes 17 and 18 o the Financial Statements
on page 96.

Other Key Service Providers and Advisers

The Board reviewed the service levels of the Administrator ond the
Company's other key party service providers and advisers af its
meeling held in June 2019. The Board concluded that they were all
operating effectively and providing o good level of service.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 lo 65 includes the
Ditectors’ remuneration policy and deiails of the Directors’
remuneration during the year under review.

Risk, Internal Controls and Internal Audit
Introduction

The Board is responsible for promoting the long-erm sustainable
success of the Company and generating value for our shareholders
whilst having regard o the inlerests of wider stakeholders. A critical
facior in achieving long-term sustainable success is understanding
the risks that the Company faces and ensuring that controls are in
place to manage and mitigate them. The Company’s principal and
emerging fisks, fogether with delails of how we seek to manage
and mitigate them, are set out under “Risks and Risk Management”
on pages 45 to 47. The Company’s financial instrument risks are
discussed in note 14 to the Financial Statements on pages 91 1o 96.

Responsibility for, and Review of, Risk Management
and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for determining the nature and extent of
the emerging and principal risks the Company is willing to take in
order to achieve its long-term stiategic objectives. The Board is also
responsible for maintaining the Company's systems of risk
management and internal controls {such os financiol, operational
and compliance controls). The AIC Code requires the Boord to
review the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of risk
management and intemal controls at least annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has esiablished, in
conjunction with the Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and
Administrator, an ongoing process designed to meet the parlicular
needs of the Company in managing the risks to which it is exposed.
The process is based on a riskbased approach to infernal controls
ond risk management through a matrix that identifies each of the
key risk areas associated with the Company’s business and aclivities
and the controls employed io minimise and mitigate those risks. The
matrix atiributes assigns, in relation 1o each risk, a rating (high,
medium or low} of the risk value, risk probability and effectiveness
of control.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring and regularly
reviewing Company's systems of infernal controls and risk
management and reporls its findings and conclusions 1o the Boord

(see "Risk management and internal control processes” on page 66
of the Audit Committee Repor.

Taking into account the informotion under “Risks and Risk
Management” on pages 45 io 47, the ongoing work of the Audit
Committee in monitoring the risk management and internal conirol
systems on behalf of the Board and the Audit Committee’s reporis to
the Board on its findings and conclusions regarding the risk
management and internal contiol systems, the Board:

e is safisfied that it has caried out a obust assessment of the
principal and emerging risks facing the Company, including
those that could threaten ifs business model, future performance,
solvency, liquidity or reputation; and

® has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and no significant
failings or wecknesses were identified.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed fo identify, manage and mitigale on a timely bosis both
the key principal risks and the emerging risks inherent to the
Company's business and safeguarding the Company's assets. The
systems are also designed lo manage, rather than eliminate, the risk
of failure to achieve the Company's investment and strategic
objectives and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has delegated its doy-to-day activilies to the
[nvestment Manager, Investment Adviser and Administrator and has
clearly defined their roles, responsibilities and authorities. The Board
oversees the ongoing performance and work of the Investment
Manoger, Invesiment Adviser and Administrator af its quarterly
meetings.

The Board monitors the actions of the Investment Manager and
Investment Adviser at quarterly and relevant ad hoc Board meefings.
At each quarterly Board meeting, the Investment Manager and
Investment Adviser report on the performance of the Company's
investments, activities since the last Board meeting, any specific new
risks identified relating to the Company’s portiolio, investment
valuations and cash projections. The Board also receives updates
from the lavesiment Manager and Invesiment Adviser on materiol
developments affecting the Company or its investments between
quarterly Board meelings.

The Board, Investment Manager and lnvestment Adviser, together,
review all financial performance and resulis notifications.

The Investment Manager reporis to the Board twice a year
regarding the Company’s longerterm viability, which includes
financial sensitivities and stress testing of the business to ensure that
the adoption of the going concerm is appropriate.

The Board is made aware of the business controls of the Investment
Manager and Invesiment Adviser during periodic Board updates
enabling oversight of the key business processes. The Investment
Adviser also provides an update of the control environment for the
UK HoldCos and SPVs to ensure the Board has oversight of
business controls for the entire NESF Group.
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The Administrator, which provides administrative, accounting,
compliance and company secrefariol services 1o the Company, has
its own internal control systems relating to these matters. In its role as
a third-party fund adminisiration services provider. the Administrator
produced an annual ISAE 3402 Assurance Repori on its internal
conirol procedures in place for the year ended 30 September
2019 and this was reviewed by the Audit Commitiee and the
Board. At each quarterly Board meeting, the Board receives reports
from the Administrator, which include an outline of the Company’s
corporate activity and information on financiol, compliance,
govemance, legal and regulatory matters.

The Company is ultimotely dependent upon the quality and integrity
of the management and siaff of the Investment Manager, Invesiment
Adviser and Adminisiiator. In each case, qualified and able
individuals have been selected at all levels. The Investment
Manager, Investment Adviser and Administrator are aware of the
internal controls relevant to their activities and are collectively
accountable for the operation of those conirols. Appropriate
segregation and delegoation of duties is in place.

Each year a delailed review of the quality of services and
performance of the Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and
Administrator and other key service providers and advisers pursuani
1o their terms of engagement is undertaken by the Boord [since

14 June 2019, this has been done by the Board through the
Management Engagement Committeg).

Internal Audit Function

For the reasons stated under “Interal cudit requirements” in the
Audil Committee Report on page 67, the Board does not currently
consider that an infernal audit function is required.
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Approval

This Corporate Governance Statement was approved by the Board
on 29 june 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Kevin Lyon Chairman
29 June 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Vic Holmes
Remuneration and Nominations Committee Chairman

I am pleased 1o present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

Introduction

This Direclors’ Remuneration Report has been prepared by the
Remuneration ond Nominations Committee and approved by the
Board. The Committee deals with both remuneration-related matters
and nominations. This Directors’ Remuneration Repori covers the
remuneration-elated activities of the Committee and includes the
proposed Directors’ remuneration policy, which is subject to
shareholder approval at this year's AGM, and shows how the
current remuneration policy, which was approved by shareholders
at the AGM in 2017, was implemented during the year ended

31 March 2020.

Remuneration and Nominations Committee

Chaired by Vic Holmes, the Remuneration and Nominations
Commitiee comprises of oll of the Directors. The Board is satisfied
that, as all of the Direclors are non-execulive, it is appropriate for all
of them to be members of the Commitiee. All of the Direciors are,
and have been since appoiniment, independent.

In respect of remuneration-related matters, the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee’s responsibilities include:

® setting the policy for the remuneration of the Directors;

* reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the
remuneration policy;

* within the terms of the approved policy, defermining the
remuneration of the Chairman and reviewing the quantum of the
other Direclors’ remuneration and, if considered appropriate,
recommending any changes 1o the Board;

* appointing and setting the terms of reference for any
remuneration consuliants to advise the Committee;

* agreeing policy on the recovery by the Directors of expenses
incurred in performance of their duties; and

¢ drafting the Directors’ Remuneration Report and reporting to
shareholders on the implementation of the Company’s
remuneration policy in accordance with relevant corporate
governance requirements.

Full details of the Commitiee’s roles and responsibilities are set out in
formal terms of reference. The terms of reference are regularly
reviewed by the Commitiee and are available on the Company’s
website fwww.nextenergysolarfund.com).

Remuneration Policy

The Directors’ remuneration policy is designed o support the
strotegic objectives of the Company and o promote ifs long-term
success. In this context, the remuneration policy is designed to
enable the Company to attract and retain Directors of high calibre
with suitable skills, experience and knowledge and to ensure that

their remuneration is set at a reasonable level commensurate with
their duties and responsibiliies and the time commitment required to
corry out their duties effectively.

As all Direclors are non-execulive, there are:
* no service contracts with the Company;
* o bonuses or other performance-related payments;

* no pensions or pension-related benefits, medical or life insurance
schemes, share options, longferm incentive plans or other

benefits; and

* no payments for loss of office save for payment of any fees or
expenses due but unpaid at the time of termination ond for any
unexpired notice period.

The Directors have letters of appoiniment that provide that their
appointment can be terminated by no more than three months’
nolice by either parly. In normal circumstances, the Direciors are
expected o serve up to a moximum of nine years, subject to
satisfactory performance, which is reviewed annually by the
Remuneration and Nominations Commitiee. The Company requires
that oll Directors ore re-elecled at each AGM and, it any Director is
not reelected, their appoiniment ceases immediately and without
the requirement for any nofice. A Director’s appointment may also
be terminated with immediate effect in certain other circumstances
as delailed in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

The Direclors’ remuneration:

o will reflect their duties, responsibilities, experience and time spent
on the Company's affairs, taking into account the nature of the
Company’s aclivities;

¢ will allow those chairing the Board and key Committees, as well
as the Senior Independent Direcior, to be paid higher fees than
other Directors in recognition of their more demanding roles and
increased accouniability;

* will be paid quarterly in arrears;

* at the discretion of the Board, may include additional fees for
any furiher specific work underioken on behalf of the Company
which is outside of their normal duties and requires o meaningful
fime commitment {details of any additional fees paid and the
associated work underiaken will be disclosed in the Directors'
Remuneration Report in the next Annual Report}; and

* will be reviewed by an independent professional consuliant with
relevant experience at least every three years.

The aggregate fees payable to the Directors will not exceed
£400,000 per annum. The level of this limit provides, in parficular,
flexibility in respect of the recruitment of additional Board members.
Whilst the Board cusrently considers five Direclors sufficient for the
Company, the number of Directors may increase o six for some
periods in order to aid succession and 1o ensure an orderly
transition.
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The Rermuneration and Nominations Commitiee reviews the
quontum of Direclors’ remuneration at least every ihree years, with
the lost review having taken place in 2019. In reviewing whether to
recommend any changes to the Board, the Commitiee hos regard
fo the outcome of lotest Directors’ remuneration review by an
independent remuneration consullant appointed by the Company,
the level of fees paid by other UKdisted renewable energy
infrastruciure investment companies and other comparator UKdisted
invesiment companies and any views expressed by shareholders on
Directors’ fees. The Board also considers wider factors such as any
change in the Directors responsibilities (including additional time
commitments due to increased legal, regulatory or corporate
govemance requirements) and the rate of inflation over the period
since the previous review. No Director is present when their own fee
is being determined

The Direciors are enfifled to be reimbursed all reasonable fravel,
hotel and other expenses incurred in attending meetings or in
carrying out any other duties incumbent on them as Directors.

Directors’ and officers liability insurance cover is mainiained by the
Company, at its expense, on behalf of the Direciors.

The Company is commilted to engagement with shareholders and
will seek maijor shareholders' views in advance of making significant
changes io its remuneration policy or how it is implemented. The
Chairmon of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee will
altend the AGM to answer any questions in relalion to

remuneralion.

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee has the discretion to
amend the remuneration policy with regard to minor or
administrative matters where it would be, in the opinion of the
Committee, in the best interests of the Company and
disproportionale to seek or await shareholder approval.

Directors’ Remuneration

Duiing the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration and
Nominations Committee appointed Deloitte P in order to
benchmark the Directors’ fee levels. As Deloitte LLP has no other
connection with the Company or any of the Directors, the
Commitiee is satisfied that it is independent.

Deloitte LLP's review included benchmarking the fees paid by the
Company against those paid by UKlisted invesiment companies
operaling in the renewable energy infrastiuciure sector and other
UKlisled investment companies with similar market capitalisations to
that of the Company.

Following a detailed discussion regarding Deloitte LLP's report and
other faclors, including changes in legal, regulatory and corporate
govemance requirements since the quanium of Directors
remuneration was last increased in 2016, the Remuneration and
Nominations Commitiee's recommendation, to which the Board
agreed, was that the Direclors’ fees should be increased, with effect
from 1 Ociober 2019, fo the annual amounts set out in the table
below.

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Repori for the year ended 31 Morch 2020

Previous
Role New Fee Fee

£70,000 £60,000
£50,000 £40,000
£46,000 £37500

Chairman
Audit Committee Chairman

Senior Independent Director/
Remuneration and Nominations
Committee Chairman

Management Engagement Commitiee £45,000 n/al

Chairman
Directer (base fee} £42,000 £35000

The Monagement Engagement Commitiee was estublished on 14 june 2019.

The table below shows the Directors” remuneration for the financial
year ended 31 March 2020, together with the comparative figures
for 2019,

2020
£65000 £60,000
£45000 £40,000

Director Role 2019

Kevin tyon Chairman

Patrick Firth Audit Commitiee

Chairman

Vic Holmes Senior Independent  £41,750  £37.500
Director/

Remuneration and

Nominations

Commitiee

Chairman

Sue inglis Management £40,000 n/a
Engagement
Committee

Chairman
£28,000° £35,000
€4, 7054 n/o

Sharon Parr Director

Joanne Peacegood  Director

Appointed with elfect friom 1 Apiil 2019
Resigned with efect from 31 December 2019
Appointed with elfect fom 20 Fsbruary 2020

No additional fees were paid to the Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nonel.

The totol amount of Directors” expenses reimbursed during the year
ended 31 Maich 2020 was £1,729 (2019: £4,785).
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company mainiains Directors’ and officers liobility insurance, at
its expense, on behalf of the Direclors.

Directors’ Interests

Thete is no requirement under the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or lefters of appointment for Directors to hold shares in
the Company.

The interests of the Directors {and their connected persons} in the
ordinary shares of the Company a 31 March 2020, together with
the comparative figures for 2019, are shown in the table below.

Director 2020 2019
Kevin tyon 160,000 160,000
Patrick Firth 83904 80,429
Vic Holmes 110,000 110,000
Sue Inglis 50,000 N/a
Jloanne Peacegood - N/a

All holdings of the Directors fand their connected persons are
beneficial. There have been no changes in the interests shown in
the table above since the Company’s financial year end fo the date
of this Directors’ Remunerction Report.

None of the Directors {nor any of their connected persons) had or
has any interest in the Company's preference shares.

Relative Importance of Spend on Directors’
Remuneration

To enable shareholders 1o assess the relative importance of spend
on Direclors’ remuneration, the following table shows the total
remuneration paid to the Directors and the lotal dividends paid or
payable to shareholders for the financial year ended 31 March
2020, together with the comparative figures for 2019.

2020 2019 Change

£000 £000 £'000
Directors’ total remuneration 224° 173 51
Tolal dividends paid or 39731 38159 1572

payable®

The Board was increased to comprise five Directors with effect from 1 Apiil 2019.
Including the cash equivalent of scrip dividends.

Shareholder Approval of Remuneration Policy

The Company seeks shareholder approval of the Directors’
remuneration policy at every third AGM. The Directors’ remuneration
policy was last approved at the AGM held in 2017 Accordingly, at
this year's AGM, shareholders will also be asked fo approve the
Directors’ remuneration policy, as set out in this Directors’
Remuneration Report, for the three years ended 30 April 2023.
There are no material differences in the substance of the
remuneration policy set out in this Directors’ remuneration report from
that approved by shareholders in 2017,

At the AGM held on 24 August 2017, of the 301,564,982 voles
cast by proxy and at the meeting (including votes cast af the
Chairman'’s discretion), 9999% were in favour of the resolution to
approve the Direclors’ remuneration policy, as sef out in the Annual
Report for the year ended 31 Maich 2017, and 0.01% were
against. O votes were withheld.

Shareholder Approval of Remuneration Report

An advisory ordinary resolution to approve the Direclors’
Remuneration Report [excluding the Directors” remuneration policy) is
put fo members at each AGM.

At the AGM held on 8 August 2019, of the 386,053,208 voles
cost by proxy and af the meeting (including votes cast at the
Chairman'’s discretion), 9999% were in favour of the advisory
resolution to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2019 and 0.01% were against. O
votes were withheld.

Approval

This Directors' Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on
29 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

VRS
—

Vic Holmes

Remuneration and Nominations
Committee Chairman

29 June 2020
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Audit Committee Report

Patrick Firth
Audit Committee Chairman

I am pleased to present the Audit Commitiee’s Report for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Introduction

The Audit Commitiee aims to serve the interests of the Company's
shareholders and other siakehalders through its independent
oversight of the Company's financial reporting process, its systems
of internal controls and effective management of risk and the
appoiniment and ongoing review of the independence and quality
of the work of the Company’s external audilor.

Composition

Chaired by Patrick Firth, the Audit Commiitee comprises of all of the
Directors. As permissible under the AIC Code the Chairman of the
Board is @ member of the Committee o enable his greater
understanding of the issues facing the Company and also to benefil
from his valuable contributions. All of the Directors are, and have
been since appoiniment, independent.

The Board has considered the composition of the Audit Commitiee.
With the exception of Sue Inglis, all members of the Commitiee are
chartered accountanis. The Board is satisfied that the Committee, as
a whole, hos:

* recent ond relevant financial experience;

® compefence relevant lo the sector in which the Company
operates, and

e the skills, experience ond objectivity 1o be an effective Audit
Committee.

Details of the skills and experience of all of the Committee members
are outlined in their biographies on pages 52 and 53.

Meetings
The Audit Commitiee meets no less than thiee times a yeor and af such
other times as the Committee shall require or any member may request.

The Administrotor, Investment Manager and Investment Adviser are
inviled to oftend meetings, as the Commitiee deems appropriate.

The external auditor oftends the Audit Commitiee meetings at which
the annual and interim financial statements are considered, ond at
which the auditor has the opportunity to meet with the Commitiee
without representatives of the Investment Manager, the Invesiment
Adviser or the Administrator being present. The auditor also attends
the oudit planning meeting. The auditor moy request that a meeting
of the Commiitee be convened if it deems it necessary.

The Audit Commitiee met three times during the year ended
31 March 2020 (details of the Committee members' attendance at
the meelings can be found under “Meeling Atiendance” on

page 58).
Responsibilities and Activities
The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include:

* monitoring the integrity of the Company's financial statements and
any formal announcements relating o its financial performance;
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e reviewing significant financial reporting judgements;

* evoluating the effectiveness of the systems of internal control and
risk management;

s assessing the effectiveness and independence of the Company's
external ouditor; and

¢ making recommendations to the Board on the appoiniment and
remuneration of the external auditor.

Full details of the Commitiee’s roles and responsibilities are set out in
formal terms of reference and include all of the roles and
responsibilities recommended by the AC Code. The ferms of
reference are regularly reviewed by the Commitiee and are
ovailable on the Company’'s website fwww.nextenergysolarfund.
com).

The Audit Committee is required to report formally to the Board on
its findings after each meeting on all matters within its roles and
responsibilities, idenlitying any matlers on which it considers that
action or improvement is needed and making recommendations on
the steps and decisions fo be taken.

In discharging its duties over the course of the year under review,
the Audit Committee’s principal activities included the following:

® Risk management and internal control processes: The
Comailtee assessed the principal and emerging risks focing the
Compony (details of which are included under "Risks and Risk
Management” on pages 45 to 47). The Committee also reviewed
and, where necessory, amended and updated the Company's
risk matrix and its record of internal control processes. The
Committee was satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management framework ond internal control processes,
details of which are included under "Risk, Internal Controls and
Internal Audit” on pages 61 and 62.

® Interim review and annual audit: The Committee reviewed
and approved the inferim review and annual audit plans of the
external auditor, including their scope and the auditor’s
engagement terms and fees. The Committee monitored the
implementation of the plans and discussed the auditor’s reporis
and findings. The Commitiee also evaluated, and was safisfied
with, the effectiveness, including performance and objectivity,
and independence of the auditor and the overall quality and
effectiveness of the external audit process.

® Annval and Interim Reports: The Commiliee reviewed the
Company's accounting policies and considered the format and
content of the Company’s Interim and Annual Reports before
recommending their approval to the Board. As part of the review
process, the Committee:

- considered the confinuing appropriateness of the Company’s
occounting policies, including the potential implications of
forthcoming changes in accounting standards for the
Company;

- reviewed the significant financial reporting judgements used
in preparing the financial statements; and
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-~ discussed and challenged the forecasts, assumptions and
other information provided by the Invesiment Manager to
support the going concern and viability stalements.

The Committee concluded that, taken as whole, the Annual

Report was tair, balanced and understandable and provided the

information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
position and performance, business model and strategy.

* Internal audit requirements: The Commitiee considered the
Company's internal audit requirements. Due 1o the Company
having no employees and the outsourcing of its investment and
administrative arrangements to third parties who have their own
infernal contols and procedures, the Commitiee concluded that
there continued to be no need for an internal cudit function.

* Audit tender: As reporied in last year's Annual Report, as the
Company had passed ils fifth anniversory and in order to assess
the competiliveness of PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP [the
Company's exlernal auditor since its IPO), the Audit Commitiee
conducted a competiitive tender for the role of external auditor.
This process concluded with presentations to the Committee from
three of the "Big 4" accountancy firms {the fourth having
declined on invitation to tender due 1o o potential conflict of
inferest with another client). Following the conclusion of the
process, the Commitiee recommended io the Board that the
Company appoint KPMG Channel Islands Limited {"KPMG"} as
the Company’s new external auditor and KPMG was
subsequently appointed on 27 September 2019. KPMG
conducted a review of the Interim Report and reported fo the
Committee prior to the Commitiee recommending its approval to
the Board.

* Whistleblowing: The Commitiee reviewed the whistleblowing
policy in place for each of the Investment Manager, the
Investment Adviser and the Administrator and was safisfied the
relevant staff could raise concems, in confidence, about possible
improprieties relating to financial reporting or other matters that
may offect the Company.

* Performance evaluation: The Commitiee reviewed the
ouicome of the annual evaluation of its performance and
concluded that it continued to provide effective challenge and
oversight.

The Audit Commitiee Chairman will be altending the AGM to
answer any shareholder questions on the Committee’s activities.

Significant Issues Considered Relating to
Financial Statements

Following discussions with the Investment Manager, the Investment
Adviser and the external auditor, the Committee defermined thot the
significant areas connected with the preparation of the financicl
statements of the Company related 1o the valuation of investments.

The Company is required to calculate the fair value of its
investments. Whilst there is a relatively active morket for financial
assets of this nalure, there are no suitable listed or other public
market quotations against which the value of the Company’s
investments can be benchmarked. Accordingly, the valuation of the
Company's investments is undertaken using a discounted cash flow
methodology in line with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement and takes into account the International
Private Equity and Venture Capital’s valuation guidelines.

As lurther explained in note 4 to the Financial Stalements on
page 85, valuation of the Company’s investmenis using @

discounted cash flow methodology requires a series of material
judgements to be made regarding the assumptions and estimates
underlying the discounied cash flow calculations. As such
judgements are subjective, they carry elements or risk.

The Investiment Manager undertakes the valuation of the Company's
investments and provides the Board with o detailed valuation report,
which includes information on the assumptions and other factors that
have a moterial impact on the valuation and the rationale for any
proposed changes fo them since the previous valuation. The key
assumptions and other factors include (but are not limited to}:

* Discount rates: A discount rate is applied fo the expected
future cash flows for each investment's financial forecasts derived
using, among others, the key assumptions referred to above to
arrive at its valuation. The Invesiment Manager recommends to
the Board the discount rales to be used based on the Investment
Adviser's extensive experience of the current market for
transactions in solar assets in the relevant jurisdictions.

* Power price assumptions: A significant proportion of the
income from the Company's investments is fixed for a period of
time in accordance with the terms of the relevant ROC or FiT
subsidy. The balance of the income has exposure to wholesale
electricity prices, although the Invesiment Manager seeks to
reduce this exposure through entering inlo short or long-erm
power purchase agreements with fixed price mechanisms. Over
time the proportion of income that is fixed in accordance with
the terms of subsidies will reduce, increasing the proportion of
the income with exposure to changes in wholesale electricity
prices. The Invesiment Adviser uses the average of two of the
leading independent energy market consuliants’ longferm
projections lo derive, by jurisdiciion, the future assumed
wholesale electricity prices used in the valuation of the
Company's invesiments.

* Lease life extensions: Asseis where the lease life has been
extended beyond the life of the subsidy have additional risk. The
Company has added an additional 1% premium 1o the discount
rate lo all cash flows after 30 years.

* Operating performance and costs assumptions: These
include assumptions regarding the remaining operating life of
each invesiment, the energy generated by each investment over
its life and operating coss.

® Macroeconomic assumptions: These include inflation, foreign
exchange rate, inlerest rote and tox rate assumptions.

Further details on the key assumptions and other factors, together
with a sensitivity analysis showing the impact of changing some of
them, are included in the Investment Adviser's Report on pages 23
ond 26.

The Board considers in defail each valuation report received from
the Investment Manager, challenges the key assumptions and other
factors used in colculating the valuation of the Company’s
investments and monitors the changes in them over time.

Annual Report for Year Ended 31 March 2020

The production of the Annual Report, including the audit of the
Company's financial statements, for the year ended 31 March
2020 was a comprehensive process requiring input from a number
of different contributors.

Annval Report for the ysor ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Audit Committee Report continued

One of the key corporate governance requirements is that the
Annual Report, taken as a whole, must be fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for
shareholders 1o assess the Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy. Another requirement is that the
narative and numerical disclosures in the Annual Report must be
consistent. Hoving reviewed the Annual Report and considered the
work underiaken in producing it, the Committee conciuded that the
Annual Report did pass these tests and, in recommending approval
of the Annual Report to the Board, it reported accordingly.

Non-audit Services Provided by External
Auditor

The Company may only use its external auditor for non-audit work
with the prior approval of the Audit Commitiee. The Commiitee has
a policy regarding the provision of non-audit services by the auditor
that precludes the auditor from providing any of the prohibited
non-audit services os listed in Ariicle 5 of the EU Direclive
Regulation {EU) No. 537/2014. Furthermore, the Committee will not
approve the use of the auditor for non-oudit services where there
may be perceived 1o be a conflict with the auditor's role as such or
which may compromise its independence or objectivily.

During the period from 1 April 2019 to 29 June 2020, the only
non-audit work carried out by KPMG was in relation 1o its review of
the Interim Report and cerlain agreed upon procedures in relation to
a related party transaction for which it was paid fees of £20,000
ond £40,000 respeclively fequivalent to 4.4% and 8.8%
respectively of the audit fee for the year ended 31 March 2020).

Annual Assessment of Effectiveness of External
Audit Process

Following the conclusion of the audit process for the Company's
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit
Commiltee evaluated the quality and effeciiveness of the external
audil process.

In order to form a view, the Commitiee considered its own
observations and interactions with KPMG, as well as feedback from
KPMG, the Investment Manager, the Invesiment Adviser and the
Adnministrator. The Committee reviewed the robusiness of the audit
process and the quality of delivery, reporting, people and service.
The Commitiee also considered KPMG's lechnical competence,
understanding of the Company’s business and the sector in which it
operates and whether KPMG demonstrated an appropriate level of
diligence, professional scepticism and challenge. In addition, the
Committee considered the cost effectiveness of the audit process.

The Committee also reviewed the independence of KPMG, having
regard o matters such as its report describing its arrangements to
identify, report and manage any conflicts of inferest and the extent
of non-audit services provided by it.

Having completed the evaluation, the Commiltee was satistied with
the effectiveness, including performance and objectivity, and
independence of KPMG and the overall quality and effectiveness of
the external audit process. Consequently, the Commitiee
recommended to the Board that a resolution to appoint KPMG os
the Company’s auditor be put fo shareholders af this year's AGM.

The Committee enquired of KPMG as to whether they had been
subject fo external evaluation during the year and was advised that
the most recent “Audit Quality Review Teom” was in 2018 and no
issues of significance were highlighted. Under the evaluation
programme it is expected that there will be another such process
during 2021.
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Audit Tender Policy

The Audit Commitiee has established an audit tender policy that
was adopted by the Board. The Commitiee will consider the need
for o competitive tender for the role of external auditor of least every
five years ond recommend 1o the Boord if a fender process is felt to
be appropriate. In any evenl, a competitive lender will take place at
least every 10 years.

The tender process will be administered by the Audit Commitiee,
which will consider whether to seek major investors' views on the
audit firms to be invited to tender and success criteria to be used by
the Company in the course of the tender. If a tender is conducted
as part of a normal tender cycle, the incumbent auditor will be
invited to parficipale in the tender unless prohibited due to specific
factors such as lack of independence. The Committee will moke a
recommendation to the Board of its preferred appointes.

The audit fender policy also requires the external auditor lo rotate
the audit partner for the Company at least every five years.

Auditor’s Fees for NESF and Subsidiaries

The fees payable to KPMG for Audit services to the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2020 were as follows:

2020
£000

NESF 75
Subsidiaries 380
Total audit fees 455
Interim review 20
Total fees 475

External Auditor’s Tenure

There are no contractual obligations that restrict the Company’s
choice of external auditor and the ouditor's appoiniment is subject
fo shareholder approval af each AGM.

As KPMG was first appointed as the Compony's external auditor in
2019 following a competitive tender, the Commitiee will consider
the need for @ compeiitive tender for the 1ole of external auditor in,
or before, 2024. In any event, the Committee will carry out a
competitive tender in, or before, 2028 in respect of the audit for the
year ending 31 March 2029.

The audit pariner for the Company, Dermot Dempsey, has been in
place for one year and, ihereltore, the Committee expects that there
will be an audit partner rotation for, or before, the audit for the year
ending 31 March 2025.

Approval

This Audit Commitiee Report was approved by the Audit Commitiee
on 29 June 2020 ond signed on its behall by:

Al

Patrick Firth
Audit Committee Chairman
29 June 2020



STRATEGIC FINANCIAL ADDITIONAL
OVERVIEW REPORT GOVERNANCE STATEMENTS INFORMATION

Directors’ Report

Introduction

The Directors are pleased to present their Annual Report, including
the Compony’s audited financial statements, for the year ended
31 March 2020.

This Directors’ Report and the Strolegic Report on pages 69 and 7
respectively comprise the “management report”, for the purposes of
the FCA's Disclosure Guidance ond Transparency Rule 4.1.5R.

Information Contained Elsewhere in this Annual
Report

Location in

Information Annual Report

Directors Pages 52 and 53
Directors interests in shares Page 65
Appointment and removal of directors Pages 59 and 60

Financial instruments Pages 84 and 85

Principal and emerging risks Pages 45 1o 47

Going concern and viability Page 48
Annual review of systems of risk Page 61
management and infernal control

Disclosure of Information to Audilor Page 66
Annudl evaluation of the Investment Page 60
Manager and Investment Adviser

Section 172 statement Page 54

Financial Results and Dividends

The financial results for the year can be found in the Stalement of
Comprehensive Income on page 78.

Delails of the four interim dividends that have been declared in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 12 to
the Financial Statements on page Q0. As the last dividend in
respect of any financial period is payable prior to the relevant
AGM, it is declared as an inferim dividend and, accordingly, there
is no final dividend payable. This means that shareholders are not
given the opporiunity 1o vote on the payment of a final dividend.
Accordingly, in accordance with good corporate governance, the
Board asks shareholders to approve the Company’s dividend policy
at each AGM. The dividend policy is set out under “Dividend
Policy, Scrip Dividends and Dividend Target for the Financial Year
Ending 31 March 2021" on page 14.

In oddition io being asked lo approve the Company's dividend
policy at this year's AGM, shareholders will also be asked fo renew
the Company’s scrip dividend facility that gives ordinary
shareholders the opportunity to elect to receive new ordinary shares
(these being scrip shares) in place of their cash dividend payments.
Information on the scrip dividend altemative can be found under

"Dividend Policy, Scrip Dividends and Dividend Target for the
Financial Year Ending 31 March 2021" on page 14

Share Capital

During the year, the Company issued 2,475,390 ordinary shares
as scrip shares. As at 31 March 2020 and the date of this
Directors' Report, there were 584,205,931 ordinary shares in issue.

The Company issued 100,000,000 preference shares at 100p per
share pursuant to a private plocement in August 2019. As at

31 March 2020 and the date of this Directors’ Report, there were
200,000 preference shares in issue. Details of the private
placement and further information regarding the rights of the
preference shares can be found in note 21 1o the Financial
Statements on page 97

Substantial Shareholdings

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had been noified under the
FCA's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the following
substantiol holdings in its ordinary shares:

Ordinary Shares

Investor No. Y%
Artemis Invesiment Management 76,005,013 13.01
LLP on behalf of discretionary funds

under management

M&G Plc 68,755,148 11.77
Investec Wealth & Investment 50,399,566 8.63
Limited

Baillie Gifford & Co 41,180,510 705
Legal & General Group plc 38,052,043 6.51
Tredje AP-Fonden (AP 3) 36,426,102 6.24

Between 31 March 2020 and the date of this Direclors' Report, the
Company was notified that VT Gravis Funds ICVC has on interest in
30,020,447 ordinary shares (5.14% of the issued ordinary shares).

There have been no other notifications during thai period.

Powers to Issue and Buy-back Ordinary Shares

At the Company’s AGM held on 8 August 2019, the Direclors were
granted general authority to issue ordinary shares or sell freasury
shares, non-pre-emptively, in accordance with the Articles of
Incorporation up to, in aggregate, 116,475,460 ordinary shares,
equivalent to 20% of the ordinary shares in issue at the date the
authority was granted. Save for the scrip shares referred to under
"Share Capital” above no ordinary shares have been issued and no
freasury shares have been sold under this authority, which will expire
at the conclusion of this year's AGM.

At last year's AGM, the Directors were also granted authority to
make one or more market purchases of ordinary shares, in
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Directors’ Report conined

accordance with section 315 of the Companies ({Guernsey) low,
2008, up o, in aggregate, 87,298,358 ordinary shares, equivalent
to 14.99% of the ordinary shares in issue af the date the authority
was granted. No ordinary shares have been purchased under this
authority, which will expire at the conclusion of this year's AGM.

The Directors will be seeking similor issuance and purchase
authoriies ot this yeor's AGM. The Directors do not currenily have
any authority 1o issue any further preference shares.

Treasury Shares

Under section 315 of the Companies (Guernsey) Low, 2008, the
Company is allowed to hold shares acquired by market purchase
as treasury shares, rather than having 1o cance! them. It is the
Company's policy to hold up a maximum of 10% of the ordinary
shares in issue as treasury shares, which may be either sold in the
market or cancelled subsequently. This gives the Company the
ability to re-issue shares quickly and cost efficiently, thereby
providing the Company with additional flexibility in the
management of ils capital base. The Board would only cuthorise
the sale of treasury shares at prices af or above the prevailing NAV
per ordinary share [plus any costs of the relevant sale), so there
would be no dilution of the NAV per ordinary shares. There are
currently no treasury shares.

Restrictions on Transfer of Shares

There are no restrictions on the transfer of shares in the Company,
except pursuant to:

® the Listing Rules, which require certain individuals to have
approval to deal in the Compony's shares; and

s the Company's Articles of Incorporation, which allow the Board
io decline to register o transfer of shares or otherwise impose @
restriction on shares, to prevent the Company breaching any law
or regulation.

The Company is not oware of any agreements between holders of
securities that moy result in resfrictions on the transfer of shares in the
Compoany.

Shares Carrying Special Rights

No person holds shares in the Company carrying special rights
with regard to control of the Company.

Amendment of Articles of Incorporation

The Arlicles may be amended by a special resolution of the
Company's shareholders.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Aviicles of Incorporation, the Companies (Guernsey)
low, 2008 and any directions given by the Company by special
resolution, the business of the Company will be managed by the
Board, which moy exercise all the powers of the Company.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

As the Company has outsourced its day-o-day aciivities o third
paries, there are no significant greenhouse gas emissions from its
operations. In relation 1o the Company's investmentis, the level of
greenhouse gas emissions arising from the low volume of electricity
imports and from operation and maintenance activity is not
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considered material for disclosure purposes. Furthermore, as the
assels are renewable energy generators, they reduce carbon
dioxide emissions on a net basis.

Political Donations
The Company made no political donations during the year.

Charitable Donations

The Company donated £50,000 to the NexiEnergy Foundation,
information on which can be found in the Susiainability ond ESG
section on page 40. No other charitable donalions were made
during the year.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Details of events occurring since 31 March 2020 can be found in
nofe 24 to the Financial Statements on page 98.

Independent Auditor

The Company appointed KPMG Channel Islands Limiled {"KPMG”|
io act as its independent auditor on 27 September 2019, KPMG
replaced PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP following o competifive
tender process, details of which are set out “Audit tender” in the
Audit Committee Report on page 68.

KPMG has indicated its willingness to continue as auditor for the
year ending 31 March 2021 and resolutions to re-appoint KPMG
and 1o authorise the Directors to determine KPMG's remuneration,
will be proposed at this year's AGM.

2020 AGM

A separate nolice convening this year's AGM will be sent to
shareholders in due course. The nolice will include an explanation
of the resolutions to be considered at the meeling. A copy of the
notice will also be published on the Company’s website
{www.nextenergysolarfund.com.

Approval

This Directors' Report was approved by the Board on 29 June
2020 and signed on its behalf by:

ma /’(3_

Kevin Lyon Chairman
29 June 2020



STRATEGIC FINANCIAL ADDITIONAL
OVERVIEW REPORT GOVERNANCE STATEMENTS INFORMATION

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Annual Report

and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report in
accordonce with applicable low and regulations.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Companies (Guernsey) law, 2008 requites the Directors to
prepore Financial Statements for each financial year of the
Company. The Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS').
Under company law, the Directors must not approve the Financial
Statements unless they are satisfied they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss for the
Company for that year.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

® select suilable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

¢ make judgements and esfimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

* stale whether applicable accounting standords have been
followed, subject lo any material departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Stotements; and

¢ prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate fo presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
Financial Statements comply with The Companies {Guernsey) Law,
2008, as amended.

The Directors are also responsible for toking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the ossets of the Company
and, hence, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other iregularities.

Website Publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the Annual Report, is
made available on a website. Annual Reports are published on the
Company’s website {www.nextenergysolarfund.com). Legislation in
Guernsey govemning the preparation and dissemination of financicl
stalements may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The
maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website is the
responsibility of the Directors. The Directors responsibility olso
extends to the ongoing infegrity of the financial statements
contained on the website.

Directors’ Confirmations

In accordance with the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule 4.1.12R, we confirm thal, to the best of our
knowledge:

® the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance
with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards and give a tue
and fair view of the assels, liabilities, finoncial position and profit
or loss of the Company; and

* the management report {comprising the Strategic Report on
pages 7 1o 48, the Directors’ Report on pages 69 and 70 and
any other sections of the Annual Report referred to in the
Stiategic Report or the Directors’ Reporl) includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the Company and its
position, together with o descripfion of the emerging and
principal risks that it faces.

In addition, in accordance with the AIC Code, we confirm that, to
the best of our knowledge, the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and undersiandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance,
business model and sirategy.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
NexiEnergy Solar Fund Limited

léa /;(3'

Kevin Lyon
Chairman
29 June 2020
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Independent
auditor’s report

to the members of NextEnergy Solar Fund Limited

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of NextEnergy
Solar Fund Limited (the “Company”) , which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020,
the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

— give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company'’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the
Company’s financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended;

— are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards; and

— comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below.

We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are
independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied
to listed entities. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Overview

Materiality: £11.5m
financial .

statements as a Approximately 2% of net asset value
whole

Key audit matter vs 2019

Recurring risk Valuation of investments <>




2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In arriving at our opinion above, the key audit matter was as follows

(unchanged from 2019):

The risk Our response

Valuation of
investments at fair
value through profit
and loss

£753.6 million (2019:
£722.7 million)

Refer to pages 66 to

68 (Audit Committee
Report)}, pages 82 to

85 (accounting policies)
and pages 91 to 96

{financial instrument disclosures).

Forecast based valuation:

Basis

The Company’s investments in its direct
subsidiaries are carried at fair value through
profit or loss and represent a significant
proportion of the Company’s net assets.
Those direct subsidiaries hold equity
interests in special purpose vehicles which in
turn own solar photovoltaic assets (the
“underlying investment portfolio”) for which
there is no liquid market.

The fair value of the Company’s investments
has been determined as the product of the
fair value of the underlying investment
portfolio and the other residual net assets
within the subsidiaries. The fair value of the
underlying investment portfolio has been
determined using the income approach
whereby the long term forecasted cash flows
of each individual solar photovoltaic asset is
discounted at a rate that reflects their risk
profile.

Inherent in these long term forecasted cash
flows are macro-economic assumptions
including power price forecasts, future
energy yields, and inflation.

Risk

The valuation risk represents a risk of fraud
and error associated with estimating the
timing and amount of long term forecasted
cash flows alongside the selection and
application of appropriate assumptions and
the impact COVID-19 has had on those
assumptions. Changes to long term
forecasted cash flows and/or the selection
and application of different assumptions may
result in a materially different valuation for
the underlying investment portfolio which in
turn would impact the valuation of the
Company’s investments at fair value through
profit or loss.

Our audit procedures included:
Control evaluation:

We tested the design and implementation of the
control operated by management during the valuation
process to determine the fair value of the underlying
investment portfolio.

Valuation methodology, model integrity and model
inputs:

With support from KPMG valuation, taxation and
modelling specialists, we:

- assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology applied by the Investment Manager and
held discussions with them. These discussions also
included understanding how the valuation
methodology and assumptions used took account of
the impact of COVID-19 on the underlying investment
portfolio;

- tested the valuation model for integrity, logic and
material formula errors;

- verified key inputs into the valuation model,
including power price forecasts, energy vyield,
contracted revenue and operating costs, to supporting
documentation;

- agreed the cash transfers made between the
Company and its directly held subsidiaries to relevant
supporting documentation such as bank statements;

- obtained and vouched supporting documentation in
relation to all significant acquisitions, additions to cost
of investments and constructed assets during the year;

- agreed a value driven sample of balances within the
residual net asset amounts at subsidiary levels to
supporting documentation such as independent bank
confirmations, post year end receipts and other source
documentation;

- assessed the reasonableness of the tax treatment
applied to long term forecasted cash flows between
the subsidiaries and the Company;

- for a risk based sample assessed the historical
accuracy of the cash flow forecasts against actual
results in order to assess the reliability of the
forecasts.




2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement {continued)

The risk (continued) Our response (continued)

Valuation of
Investments at fair
value through profit
and loss

£753.6 million {2019:
£722.7 million)

Refer to pages 66 to

68 (Audit Committee
Report), pages 82 to

85 (accounting policies)
and pages 91 to 96

(financial instrument disclosures).

Forecast based valuation:
Risk

The valuation risk represents a risk of fraud
and error associated with estimating the
timing and amount of long term forecasted
cash flows alongside the selection and
application of appropriate assumptions and
the impact COVID-19 has had on those
assumptions. Changes to long term
forecasted cash flows and/or the selection
and application of different assumptions may
result in a materially different valuation for
the underlying investment portfolio which in
turn would impact the valuation of the
Company’s investments at fair value through

Our audit procedures included (continued):
Benchmarking valuation assumptions:

With support from our KPMG valuation specialist we
assessed and challenged the appropriateness of the
Company’s selection of assumptions including the
discount rate and other macro-economic assumptions,
applied in the valuation model and the impact COVID-
19 has had on those assumptions by:

- benchmarking against independent market data
and relevant peer group companies; and

- using our KPMG valuation specialist’s experience in
valuing similar investments.

profit or loss.

Assessing transparency:

We considered the adequacy of the Company’s
investment valuation policies and the Company’s
disclosures in relation to the use of estimates and
judgements regarding the fair value of investments.

We assessed whether the disclosures around the
sensitivities to changes in key assumptions reflect the
risks inherent in the valuation of the underlying
investment portfolio including the impact of COVID-
19.

3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the
scope of our audit

Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was
set at £11.5m, determined with reference to a
benchmark of net assets of £578.6m, of which it
represents approximately 2.0%.

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £0.5m,
in addition to other identified misstatements that
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the
materiality level specified above, which has informed
our identification of significant risks of material
misstatement and the associated audit procedures
performed in those areas as detailed above.

Net assets
£578.6m

£11.5m
Financial
statements materiality

£0.5m
Misstatements reported to the
audit committee

H Net assets B Materiality



4.

5.

We have nothing to report on going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the
going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease their operations, and as they have
concluded that the Company’s financial position means that this
is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its
ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern
period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the
inherent risks to the Company’s activities including where
relevant the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting framework.
We analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the
going concern period, including challenging the underlying data
and key assumptions used to make the assessment, and
evaluated the directors’ plans for future actions in relation to
their going concern assessment.

Based on this work, we are required to report to you if we have
anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to the
directors’ statement in Note 2(b) to the financial statements on
the use of the going concern basis of accounting with no material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over the Company’s
use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing to
report in these respects.

We have nothing to report on the other information in the
annual report

The directors are responsible for the other information
presented in the annual report together with the financial
statements. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and longer-term
viability

Based on the knowledge we acquired during our financial
statements audit, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation to:

* the directors’ confirmation within the viability statement
{page 48) that they have carried out a robust assessment of
the emerging and principal risks facing the Company,
including those that would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency and liquidity;

* the principal and emerging risks disclosures describing these
risks and explaining how they are being managed and
mitigated; and

Kb

5. We have nothing to report on the other information in the

annual report (continued)

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and longer-term
viability (continued)

* the directors’ explanation in the viability statement (page 48)
of how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over what period they have done so and why they considered
that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to
whether they have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment,
including any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to report to you if:

* we have identified material inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements audit
and the directors’ statement that they consider that the
annual report and financial statements taken as a whole is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s position and performance, business model and
strategy; or

* the section of the annual report describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee

We are required to report to you if the Corporate Governance

Statement does not properly disclose a departure from the

provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified by the

Listing Rules for our review.

We have nothing to report to you in these respects.

We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we
are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion:

« the Company has not kept proper accounting records; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

7. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 71,
the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.



7. Respective responsibilities (continued)

8.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our
responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with section 262 of the Companies {Guernsey) Law.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Dermot Dempsey

for and on behalf of KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants & Recognised Auditors
Guernsey

29 June 2020
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Financial Statements

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Year Ended 31 March

Income

Income 5 61,192 55613
Net changes in fair value of investments 6 (75,714) 24,538
Total net income (14,522) 80,151
Expenditure

Preference share dividends 7,789 1822
Management fees 17 5,629 5,402
legal and professional fees 897 732
Administration fees 274 277
Directors' fees 20 224 173
Sundry expenses 12 27
Audit fees 16 99 156
Charilable donations 50 -
Regulatory tees 30 33
Insurance 25 15
Total expenses 15,129 8,637
Operating (loss)/profit (29,651) 71,514
Finance income - 65
(Loss)/profit and comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (29,651) 71,579
Earnings per ordinary share - basic 1 {5.09p) 12.37p
Earnings per ordinary share - diluted 1 (2.99p) 1193p

All activities are derived from ongoing operations.

There is no other comprehensive income or expense apart from those disclosed above and consequenily a Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income has not been prepared.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 Morch 2020
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As at 31 March 2020 2019
Notes £000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments 6 753,560 722,763
Total non-current assets 753,560 722,763
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 25,128 19,285
Trade and other receivables 7 23,992 41,409
Total current assets 49,120 60,694
Total assets 802,680 783,457
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 (26,270) (39,384)
Total current liabilities {26,270) (39,384)
Non-current liabilities
Preference shares 21 (197,781) (99,022)
Total non-current liabilities (197,781) {99,022}
Net assets 578,629 645,051
Equity
Share capital and premium 10 602,989 600,029
Retained earnings (24,360) 45,022
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders 578,629 645,051
Total equity 578,629 645,051
Net assets per ordinary share 13 99.0p 1109p

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 june 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

FA LA

Patrick Firth,
Director

Z> /‘Lﬁ_

Kevin Lyon,
Chairman

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Share Capital Retained
and Premium Earnings Total Equity
£000 £000 £000
Ordinary shareholders’ equity at 1 April 2019 600,029 45,022 645051
loss and comprehensive loss for the year - (29,651} (29.651)
Scrip shares issued in lieu of dividends 2960 - 2960
Ordinary dividends paid - (39,731} (32731)
Shareholders’ equity at 31 March 2020 602989 [24,360) 578,629
Ordinary shareholders’ equity at 1 April 2018 593,388 11,602 604,990
Profit and comprehensive income for the year 71.579 71,579
Scrip shares issued in fieu of dividends 6.64! - 6,641
Ordinary dividends paid - {38,159} {38,159}
Ordinary shareholders’ equity at 31 March 2019 600,029 45,022 645051

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Year Ended 31 March 2020 2019
Notes £000 £°000

Cash flows from operating activities

{Loss)/profit and comprehensive [loss)/income for the year (29,651) 71,579
Adjustmenis for:

Proceeds from HoldCos 6 - 4,654
Payments to HoldCos 6 (106,511) 176,658)
Change in fair value of invesiments 6 75,714 24,538}
Finance income - 65)
Amortisation 109 22
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (60,339) {125,006

Changes in working capital

Movement in rade and other receivables 17,417 {13012
Movement in irade and other payables (13,114) 13,863
Net cash used in operating activities {56,036) (124,155)

Cash flows from investing activities

Finance income - 65
Net cash generated from investing activities - 65
Cash flows from financing activities 22

Proceeds from preference shares 21 98,650 99,000
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 12 (36,771) {31,518
Net cash generated from financing activities 61,879 67,482
Net movemeni in cash and cash equivalents during year 5,843 (56,608)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,285 75,893
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25,128 19,285

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financiol Statements.

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2020

1. General Information

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Guemsey under the Companies {Guernsey) Llaw, 2008, as amended, on 20
December 2013 with registered number 57739, and is reguloted by the Guemsey Financial Services Commission as a registered closed-
ended investment company. The registered office of the Company is 1, Royal Plaza, Royal Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, Channel Islands,
GY1 2HL

The Company seeks to provide ordinary shareholders with attractive risk-adjusted relurns, principally in the form of regular dividends, by
investing in a diversitied portfolio of primarily UKbased solar energy infrostruciure assets.

The Company currently makes its investments through HoldCos and SPVs which are directly or indirecily wholly-owned by the Company.

The Company has appointed NexiEnergy Capital IM Limited as its Investment Manager pursuant to the Management Agreement dated 18
March 2014. The lnvesiment Manager is a Guernsey registered company, incorporated under the Companies [Guernsey) Law, 2008, with
registered number 57740 and is licensed and regulated by the Guernsey Financicl Services Commission and is a member of the NEC
Group. The Invesiment Manager acts as the Allernative Investment Fund Manager of the Company.

The Investment Manager has oppointed NextEnergy Copital Limited os its Investment Adviser (the “Invesimeni Adviser") pursuant fo the
Invesiment Advisory Agreement dated 18 March 2014. The Invesiment Adviser is a company incorporated in England with registered
number 05975223 and is authorised and regulated by the FCA.

The Financial Statements are presented in pounds sterling (GBP) because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operales.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements, which give a true and fair view, have been prepared on a going concem basis in accordance with IFRS.
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain investments and financial
instruments. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied.

b) Going Concern

The Directors have reviewed the current and projecled financial position of the Company making reasonable assumptions about future
pertormance. The key areas reviewed were:

¢ maturity of debt facilities;

® liming of future investment transactions;

¢ expenditure commilmenis; and

o forecast income ond cash flows.

The Company has cash and shortHerm deposits as well as projected positive income streams and an available credil facility through its
subsidiaries (see note 21} and, as a consequence, the Direclors have, at the time of approving the Financial Statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources o continue in operational existence for the next 12 months. Accordingly they have
adopied the going concern basis of preparation in preparing the Financiol Stotements.

<) Basis of Non-consolidation

The Company has acquired SPVs through its investment in the holding companies. The Company meets the definition of an invesiment entity
os described by IFRS 10. Under IFRS 10 invesiment entities are required to hold subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss rather than
consolidate them. There are five holding companies [NexiEnergy Solar Holdings Limited, NextEnergy Solar Holdings Il Limited, NextEnergy
Solor Holdings Il Limited, NextEnergy Solar Holdings IV Limited and NexiEnergy Solar Holdings V Limited, collectively the “HoldCos"). The
HoldCos are also investiment entiies and, as required under IFRS 10, value their investments at fair value.

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Under the definition of an investment entity, the entity should safisfy all three of the following tests:
® obiains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investors with invesiment management services; and

* commils fo its investors that its business purpose is to invesi funds solely for returns from copital appreciation, investment income, or both
{including hoving an exit stralegy for invesiments); ond

* measures and evoluales the performance of substantially all of its invesiments on a fair value basis.

In assessing whether the Company meets the definition of an invesiment entity set out in IFRS 10 the Directors note that:

¢ the Company is an investment company that invests funds obiained from multiple investors in a diversified portfolio of solar energy
infrastructure assets and related infrastructure assets ond has appointed the Investment Manager to manage the Company's investments;

¢ the Company's purpose is lo invest funds for investment income and potential capitol appreciation and will exit its investments at the end
of their economic lives or when their planning permissions or leasehold land interests expire {unless it has repowered their sites) and may
also exit investments earlier for reasons of portfolio balance or profit; and

¢ the Board evaluates the performance of the Company’s investments on a fair value basis as port of the quartery management accounts
review and the Company values its investments on a fair value basis twice a year for inclusion in its annuol and interim financial
statements with the movement in the valuations taken to the Income Statement and, therefore, is measured within its earnings.

Taking these factors into account, the Direciors are of the opinion that the Company hos all the typical characteristics of an investment entity
and meets the definition set out in IFRS 10.

The Directors believe the reaiment outlined above provides the most relevant information to invesiors.

d) Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in Guemnsey, the Company is exempt from paying laxes on income, profit or capital gains. Therefore,
income from investments in solar assets is not subject to any tax in Guernsey, although the HoldCos and SPVs are subject to tax in their
country of incorporation.

e) Segmental Reporting

The Chief Operating Decision Maker, which is the Board, is of the opinion that the Company is engaged in a single segment of business,
being invesiment in solar energy infrastructure assets via its HoldCos and SPVs. Therefore, the financial information used by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker to manage the Company presenis the business as a single segment.

f) Dividends

Dividends to the Company’s shoreholders are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends, this is when
paid.

g) Income

Income includes investment income from financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss, administrative service fee income, interest income

from Eurobonds and finance income.

Investment income from financiol assets at fair value thiough profit or loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
income when the Company’s right lo receive payments is established.

Administrative service fee income and interest income from Eurobonds is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
income on on accruals basis.

Finance income comprises interest earned on cosh held on deposit. Finance income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
within income on an accruals basis.

h) Expenses
All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

i} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cosh equivalents includes deposits held at call with banks and other shortterm deposits with original matuities of three months or
less.

i) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently re-measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method where necessary.

Annual Report for the ysar ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND
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k) Financial Instruments
Classification

The Company classities its investments based on both the Company’s business model for managing these financial assets and the contactual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evaluoted on a fair value
basis. The Company is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make
decisions. The Company has not taken the opiion lo designate irevocably any equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Recognition, Derecognition and Measurement

Purchases and soles of investments are recognised on the trade dote, being the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the
investment. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at foir value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financiol assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of invesiments are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within “Net changes in fair value of
investments” in the period in which they arise.

Dividend income fom financiol assets ot fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
“Income” when the Company’s right to receive payments is esiablished. Interest on debi securities af fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis.

Fair Value Estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer o liability in an orderly transaction beiween market
parficipants at the measurement date.

The fair value of financiol assets that are not raded on an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company's
invesiments hove been valued on a look thiough basis based on the discounted cash flows of the sclar assets and the residual value of net
assets af the HoldCos level. These valuations are reviewed regulardy by the Investiment Manager who reports to the Board on a periodic
basis. The Board considers the appropriateness of the valuation model and inputs, as well as the valuation result.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants al the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is direcily observable or estimated using other valuation techniques. In
eslimating the fair value of on asset or liability, the Company tokes into account the characleristics of the asset or liability if market participonts
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements is defermined on such @ basis.

In addition, for financial reporfing purposes, tair value measurements are categorised inlo Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inpus to the fair value measurement in its entirety which are
described as follows:

* level | inputs are quoted prices in active markes for identical ossets or liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date;
¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

* level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

I} Ordinary Share Capital and Share Premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Costs directly atiributable fo the issue of new shares (that would have been avoided if there had not
been a new issue of new shares) are written-off against the value of the ordinary share premium. Dividends paid on the ordinary shares are
recognised in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

m) Preference Shares

In accordance with International Accounting Standard 32, preference shares ore classified os liabilities and are held ot amortised cost.
Dividends paid on the preference shares are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

n) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially ot fair value and subsequently meosured at amorised cost. At each reporting date, the
Company shall measure the loss allowance on trade and other receivables at an amount equal 1o the lifefime expecied credit losses if the
credit risk has increased significantly since inifial recognition. f, at the reporting date, the credit risk had not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company shall measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. Significant financial
dificulties of the counterparty, probability that the counterparty will enter bankrupicy o financial reorganisation and default in payments ore
all considered indicators that a loss allowance may be required.

NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND Annuol Repor for the year ended 31 Morch 2020
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o) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reporied in the Siatement of Financicl Position when there is a legally
enforceable right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seffle on o net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simullaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be confingent on fuiure evenis and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of defauli, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterporty.

3. New and Revised Standards

The Direcors have considered new accounting slandards, amendmenis and interpretations in issue but not yet effeciive and do not expect
that their adoption will result in @ material impact on the financial stalements of the Company in fulure periods.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and based on historic experience and other foctors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

a) Critical Accounting Estimate: Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

The Company's investments are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Board has appointed the Investment Manager to
produce investment valuations based on projected future cash flows. These valuations are reviewed and approved by the Board. The
investments ore held thiough SPVs.

IFRS 13 eslablishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is
defined as the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between market
participants of the measurement date. The Board bases the fair value of the invesiments on the information received from the Investment
Manager.

The Company classified its investments ot fair value thiough profit or loss as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Level 3 investments amount to
£753.6m (2019: £722.8m) and consist of 90 {2019: 87) investments in solar PV plonts {held indirectly through the HoldCos), all of which have
been valued on a look thiough basis based on the discounted cash flows of the solar assels [except for those solar assels not yet operational) and
the residual value of net assets at the HoldCos level. The unlevered discount rate applied in the 31 March 2020 valuation was 6.25% [2019:
6.50%). The discount rate is a significant Level 3 input and a change in the discount applied could have a material effect on the value of the
investments. In addition, COVID-19, has had a negative impact on the longterm power price projections, which is also a significant level 3 input.
Investments in solar assets that are not yet operational are held at fair value, where the cost of the invesiment is used as an appropricte
approximation of fair value. level 3 valuations are reviewed regularly by the Investment Manager who repors to the Board on o periodic basis.
The Board considers the appropriaieness of the valuation model and inputs, as well as the valuation result.

Information about the unobservable inputs used ot 31 March 2020 in measuring financial instruments categorised as level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy and their sensitivilies are disclosed in note 14. Unlisted invesiments reconcile 1o the “Total investments at fair value” in the table in
note 6.

b) Significant Judgement: Consolidation of Entities

The Company, under the investment entity exemption rule, holds its investments ot fair value. The Company meets the definition of an
investment entity per IFRS 10 as delailed in note 2¢).

The Company does not have any other subsidiaries other than those determined to be controlled subsidiary investments. Controlled
subsidiory investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss and are not consolidoted in accordance with IFRS 10. The fair value
of controlled subsidiary investments is determined as described in note 4a).

¢} Significant Judgement: Preference Shares

The Company and the HoldCos operate as an integrated stucture whereby the Company invests solely in the HoldCos. Under IFRS 10,
there is a requirement for the Board to assess whether the HoldCos are themselves investmeni entities. The Board has performed this
assessment and concluded that each of the HoldCos is an investment entity for the following reasons:

® the HoldCos have oblained funds for the purpose of investing in equity or other similor interests in multiple investments and providing the
Company [and ils investors} with invesiment income; and

¢ the performance of investments made through the HoldCos are measured and evaluated on a fair value basis.

Furthermore, the HoldCos themselves are not deemed 1o be operaling entities providing services to ihe Company and, therefore, are able to
apply the exemplion to consolidation.

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND



8 é) Financial Statements

5. Income

Year Ended 31 March

Interest income 9,573 614
Investment income 42,934 46957
Administrative services income 8,685 8,042
Total Income 61,192 55,613

6. Investments

The Company owns its portfolio of solar assets through its investments in the HoldCos. The Company's investmenis comprise of its portfolio of
solar assets and the residual net assels of the HoldCos. The Company's tolal investments o fair volue are recorded under “Non-current

assets” in the Statement of Financial Posifion.

As at 31 March

Brought forward cost of investments 689,478 517474
Investment proceeds from HoldCos - (4,654)
Investment poymenis io HoldCos 106,51 176,658
Additions — acquisition of Eurobonds 125,000 175,000
Disposal - derecognition of loans {125,000) {175,000}

arried forword cost of invesiments 795,989 689478
Brought forward unredlised gains on valuation 33,285 8,747
Movement in unrealised gains on valuation (75,714) 24,538
Carried forward unredlised gains on valuation (42,429) 33,285
Total investments at fair value 753,560 722,763

Nun cash tiansactions: On 28 February 2019, NESH Ilf and IMNESH V issued Eurobonds listed on The Internalional Stock Exchange totalling £175m. On 18 September 2019
a futther issue by NESH fll was made totolling £125m. The Eurobonds were put in place fo ensure optimum lax planning within the Company and replaced certain debt

tacilities between the Company NESH lil and NESH V. which were 1epaid.

The total change in the value of the investments in the HoldCos is recorded through profit and loss in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

7. Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 March

Adnministrafive service fee income receivable 252 249
Prepayments 22 461
Due from HoldCos 23,718 40,699
Total trade and other receivables 23,992 41,409

Amounts due from HoldCos are interest free and payable on demand.
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8. Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 March 2020 2019

£000 £000
Other payables 184 264
Crdinary share dividends payable 6 -
Preference share dividends payable 2,362 1171
Due to HoldCos 23,718 37949
Total trade and other payables 26,270 39,384

Amounis due to HoldCos are interest free and payable on demand.

9. Subsidiaries

The Company holds investments through subsidiary companies {the HoldCos) which have not been consolidated as a result of the adoption
of IFRS 10: Investment entities exemption to consolidation. As stated in note 4c¢}, the HoldCos are incorporated in the UK and 100% directly
owned. Below is the legal entity name for the SPVs, ali owned 100% at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 direcily or indirectly through
the HoldCos listed below).

Country of Country of
Incorporation Incorporation

NextEnergy Solar Holdings Limited UK

BL Sclar 2 Limited UK North Farm Solar Park Limited UK
Bowerhouse Solar Limited - UK Push Energy (Birch) Limited UK
Ellough Solar 2 Limited UK Push Energy (Boxied Airfield} Limited UK
Clebe farm SPV Limited UK Push Energy (Croydon) Limited UK
Clorious Energy Limited UK Push Energy [Decoy} Limited UK
Greenfields (A) Limited UK Push Energy (Hall Farm} Limitled UK
NESF-Ellough tid UK Push Energy (Langenhoe] Limited UK
Nextpower Ellough LLP UK SSB Condover Limited {Condover} UK
Nextpower Gover Form timited UK ST Solarinvest Devon 1 Limited UK
Nextpower Higher Hathedeigh UK Sunglow Power Limited UK
Nextpower Shacks Barn Lid UK Wellingborough Solor Limited UK
NextEnergy Solar Holdings Il Limited UK

ESF Uwyndu Limited UK Trowbridge PV Limited UK
NextEnergy Solar Holdings ill Limited UK

Balhearty Solar Limited UK Burcroft Solar Parks Lid UK
Bollygarvey Solor Ltd UK Burrowton Farm Solar Park Ltd UK
BESS Pierces Ltd UK Chilion Cantello Solar Pork Lid UK
Birch Solar Farm CIC UK Crossways Solar Park tid UK
Blenches Mill Farm Solar Park Lid UK Empyreal Energy Limited UK
Brafield Solar Limited UK Fiskerton Limited UK

Anauol Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND



8 8 Financial Statements

Country of Country of

Incorporation Incorporation

NextEnergy Solar Holdings Ill Limited {continued)

Francis Lane Solar Limited UK Nextpower SPV 10 lid UK
Gouron Hall Solar Limited UK Nextpower SPV 11 itd UK
Greenfields {F) Limited UK Nextpower SPY 12 tid UK
Greenfields (1) Limited UK Nextpower Water Projects Ltd UK
Gwent Farmers' Community Solar Parnership Limited UK NextZest ltd UK
Helios Solar 1 Limited UK PF Solar Limited UK
Helios Solor 2 Limited UK Pierces Solar Limited UK
Hook Valley Farm Solar Park Lid UK Raglingion Farm Solar Park Lid UK
Knockworthy Solar Park Lid UK Renewable Energy HoldCo lid UK
tark Energy Bilsthorpe Lid UK RRAM [Porifclio 2) Lid UK
le Solar 51 Limited UK RRAM (Portfolio Onej Lid UK
litle Irchester Solar Limited UK RRAM Energy limited UK
Litfle Staughton Airfield Solar Limited UK Saundercroft Farm Solor Park Lid UK
Micro Renewables Domestic Lid UK SL Solar Services Lid UK
Micro Renewables Lid UK Sywell Solar Limited UK
Moss Farm Solar Limited UK Tou Solor Limited UK
Moss lane Farm Solar Limited UK Temple Normanion Solar Limited UK
NESH 3 Portfolio A Limited UK TGC Solar Radbrook Lid UK
Nextpower Bosworth Ltd UK Thomborough Solar timited UK
Nextpower Higher Form Lid UK Thurlestone-leicester Solar Limited UK
NexitPower High Garrett lid UK UK Solar (Fiskerton) LLP UK
Nexipower Llower Strenshom Limited UK Warmingham Solar Limited UK
Nextpower SPV 4 Lid UK Wheb European Solar (UK} 2 Uid UK
Nexipower SPV 5 lid UK Wheb European Solar (UK] 3 Lid UK
Nextpower SPV 6 ltd UK Whitlley Solar Park [Ashcott Farm) Lid UK
Nexipower SPV 7 Lid UK Wickfield Solar Lid UK
Nexipower SPV 8 Lid UK Wyld Meadow Farm UK
Nextpower SPV 9 Lid UK

NextEnergy Solar Holdings IV Limited UK

Berwick Solor Park Limited UK Emberton Solar Park Limited UK
Bottom Plain Solar Park Limited UK Great Wilbraham Solar Park Limited UK
Branston Solar Pork Limited UK Nextpower Radius Limited UK
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Country of Country of
Incorporation Incorporation
NextEnergy Solar Holdings V Limited UK
Agrosei Surl laly  Starquatiro Sirl lialy
Folostar 6 Surl llaly  SunEdison Med. 6 S.rl lialy
Macchia Rotonda Solar S| ltaly
NextEnergy Solar Holdings VI Limited UK
Bowden Lane Solar Park tid UK Green End Renewables limited UK
Fenland Renewables Limited UK Tower Hill Farm Renewables Limited UK

10. Share Capital and Reserves

The share capital of the Company comprises solely of ordinary shares of no par value and preference shares of no par volue.

Ordinary Shares
Number of

Ordinary  Gross Amount Share

Ordinary Share Issuance Shares Raised Issue Costs Premium
£000 £000 £’000

Total issued at 31 March 2019 581,730,541 607,494 (7,465) 600,029
Sciip shares in lieu of dividend — 28 646,767 756 _ 756
June 2019
Scrip shares in lieu of dividend ~ 30
Sepiember 2019 1,240,195 1,484 1,484
Scrip shares in lieu of dividend — 31 B
December 2019 088,428 720 720
Total issued at 31 March 2020 584,205,931 610,454 (7,465) 602,989

All the holders of the ordinary shares ore entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. At any general meeting of the
Company, each ordinary shareholder will have, on o show of hands, one vote and, on @ poll, one vote in respect of each ordinary share

held.
Preference Shares

In accordance with International Accounting Standard 32, the preference shares ore clossified as liabiliies. Details of the preference shares
can be found in note 21.

Retained Reserves
Retained reserves comprise the relained eamings as delailed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Under Guernsey law, the Company can poy dividends in excess of its retained eamings provided it safisfies the solvency test prescribed by
the Companies (Guernsey) law, 2008. The solvency test considers whether the Company is able o pay its debts when they fall due, and
whether the value of the Company’s assels is greater than is liabilities. The Company saiisfied the solvency fest in respect of all dividends
declared or paid in the year.
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11. Earnings per Ordinary Share

Basic
Year Ended 31 March 2020 2019
[Loss}/profit and comprehensive {loss)/income for the year (£'000) 20.651) 71,579
Basic weighted overage number of issued ordinary shares 582993198 578,844,510
Earnings per share - basic {5.09p) 12.37p
Diluted

From | April 2036, the preference shares have the right to convert, based on 100p per preference share and the NAV per ordinary share
al the fime of conversion, info new ordinary shares or @ new class of unlisted B shares with dividend and capital rights ranking pari passu
wiih the ordinary shares.

Year Ended 31 March 2020 2019
[Loss)/profit and comprehensive {loss)/income for the year (£'000) [29.651) 71,579
Plus. preference share dividends (£'000) 7789 1,822
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders (£'000) (21,862 73,401
Basic weighted average number of issued ordinary shares 582993,198 578,844,510
Plus: weighted number of ordinary shares issuable on any conversion of preference

shares, based on the NAV per ardinary share os at the financial yeor end 147,745,278 36,234,245
Adjusted weighied average number of ordinary shares 730,738,476 615,078,755
Earnings per share - diluted (2.99p) 11.93p

12. Dividends

Year Ended 31 March

Amounis recognised as distributions to equity holders:

Interim dividend for the period ended 31 March 2018 of 1.605p per ordinary share, paid B 9230
on 26 June 2018

Interim dividend for the period ended 30 June 2018 of 1.6625p per ordinary share, paid _ 9608
on 28 September 2018 '
Interim dividend for the period ended 30 September 2018 of 1.6625p per ordinary share, B 0646
paid on 28 December 2018

Interim dividend for the period ended 31 December 2018 of 1.6625p per ordinary share, B 0666
paid on 28 March 2019 '
Interim dividend for the period ended 31 March 2019 of 1.6625p per ordinary shore, 9.671 B
paid on 28 June 2019 4

Interim dividend for the period ended 30 June 2019 of 1.7175p per ordinary share, paid 10,003 B
on 30 September 2019 !

Interim dividend for the period ended 30 September 2019 of 1.7175p per ordinary share, 10,023 B
paid on 31 December 2019 ’

Interim dividend for the period ended 31 December 2019 of 1.7175p per ordinary share, 10,034 B
poid on 31 March 2020 !

Total 39,731 38,159
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13. Net Assets per Ordinary Share

As at 31 March 2020 2019
Ordinary Shareholders’ equity (£'000) 578,629 645051
Number of issued ordinary shares 584,205,931 581,730,541
Net assets per ordinary share 99.0p 1109p

14. Capital and Financial Risk Management, Valuation Methodology and Sensitivity Analysis of
the Portfolio

a) Capital Management
Capital Structure

The NESF Group, which comprises the Company and iis unconsolidated subsidiaries [being the HoldCos and SPVs), manages its capital to
ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return fo ordinary shareholders thiough the optimisation of the
debt and equity balances. The NESF Group's principal use of cash has been to fund invesiments in accordance with the Company's investment
policy as well as ongoing operational expenses. .

The capital siructure of the Company consists entirely of equity [comprising issued ordinary share capital and retained earnings) and preference
share capital (which, for accounting purposes, are treated as a liability). The capital structure of each of the Company’s subsidiories consists
entirely of equity or a combination of equity and debt, which may be short- or longerm. The Boord, with the assistance of the Investment
Adbviser, monitors and reviews the NESF Group's copital structure on an ongoing basis.

Debt

The Company's Investment Adviser reviews the debt stucture of the Company and ifs subsidiaries on an ongoing basis. The Company and its
subsidiaries use leverage for financing the acquisition of solar invesiments and working capital purposes. In accordance with the Company's
investment policy, the NESF Group may employ leverage, provided that it does not exceed lat the time the relevant arrangement is entered into)
50% of GAV. For this purpose, leveroge includes all short- and longterm debl rised by the Company or any of its HoldCos or SPVs, os well
as the aggregote subscription monies paid in respect of all preference shares in issue and any unpaid dividends due in respect of the preference
shares.

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had £200m of preference shares in issue {2019:£100m) and no financial debt outstanding and the
HoldCos had £214.3m in longterm debt and revolving credit faciliies outstanding (2019: £269.3m} (see note 21, representing a gearing level
of 42% (2019: 36%).

b) Financial Risk Management
Obijectives

The Board, with the assistance of the Investment Manager and Investment Adviser, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the NESF Group through an infernal risk map and the Investment Manager's reports. These risks include capital risk, market risk
lincluding price risk, power price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The objective of the risk management
programme is lo minimise the potentiol adverse effects on the financial performance of the NESF Group.

For the Company and its subsidiories, finoncial risks are managed by the Investment Manager and Investment Adviser, which operate within
Board-approved policies. The various types of financial risk which affect the Company, its subsidiaries or both are managed os described
below. Risks that affect the Company’s unconsolidated subsidiaries may affect in turn the fair volue of invesiments held by the Company.

Capital Risk (Company Only)

The Company has put in place a financing struciure that enables it to manage its capital effectively. The Company's capital siructure comprises
equity fissued ordinary share capital and retained earnings) and preference share capital. As at 31 March 2019 the Company had no recourse
finoncial debt, although the Company is a guarantor for two financing and hedging facilities of its subsidiaries (see note 23}.

Market Price Risk (Company and Subsidiaries)

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument held by the Company, through its subsidiaries, wil
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Changes in market prices will affect the discount rote applied 1o the expected fuiure cash
flows from the Company’s investments and, therefore, the fair value of those investments.

Power Price Risk (Company and Subsidiaries)

The wholesale market price of electricity is volatile and is affected by muliiple factors, including demand for electricity, the generation across
the entire grid and goverment subsidies, as well as fluctuations in the morket prices of fuel commodities and foreign exchange. Whilst some
of the Company’s investments benefit form subsidies and shortterm PPA hedges that fix prices, other revenue streams are not hedged and
subject to wholesale electricity prices.
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A decrease in economic aclivity in the UK or lialy, as during the COVID-19 period, could result in a decrease in demand for electricity in the
market. Shortterm and seasonal fluctuations in electricity demand could also impact the price at which the subsidiaries can sell electricity.
Supply of electricity can be affected by new entrants 1o the wholesale power market.

The Investment Adviser monitors these factors and hedges the price ot which the subsidiaries sell electricity as necessary.

Currency Risk (Company Only)

The Company has no direct exposure to currency fisk as all ifs assets and liabilities are in pounds sterling, the Company’s functional and
presentafional currency. A substantiol majority of the cash flows from the Company's solar assels in Italy to NESH V are hedged and so the
cash flows 1o the Company from that HoldCo are exposed 1o limited currency risk and therefore the currency risk on the value of the assets is
not considered to be significant.

Interest Rate Risk (Company and Subsidiaries)

The Company is indirectly exposed 1o interest rate risk from the credit focilities of the HoldCos. As at 31 March 2020, of the £214.3m
{2019: £260.3m| credit faciliies outstanding, £123.2m (2019: £126.7m) had fixed inferest rates and the remaining £91.1m [2019: £142.6m)
had floating interest rales. For the floaling amouni, interest rote swaps were implemented over the term of the loans to mifigate inferest rate
risks for £72.6m (2019: £72.6m|. The counterparies 1o these swaps are all Investment grade financiol institutions. The remaining £18.5m
[2019: £70.0m} hod flocting rates which are not hedged and are not considered by the Directors fo be significant.

Credit Risk {Company and Subsidiaries)

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss 1o the Company or the subsidiary
that is a party to the contract. Credi risk arises from cash and cosh equivalents and derivative financial instruments, as well os credit
exposures fo customers.

The Company and its subsidiaries mitigate their risk on cash and derivative transactions by only transacting with maijor international financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. At the investment level, the credit risk relating to significant
counterparties is reviewed on a regular basis, in conjunction with monitoring the credit ratings issued by recognised credit rating agencies
and potential adjustments to the discount rate are considered o recognise changes o credit risk where applicable. The Direclors believe that
the NESF Group is not significantly exposed to the risk that the customers of its investments do not fulfil their payment obligations because of
the NESF Groups policy to invest in jurisdictions and with customers with satistactory credit rafings.

The Company’s maximum exposute to credit risk is the carrying amounts of the respective financiol assets set out below:

As at 31 March

Cash and cosh equivalents 25,128 19,285
Trade and other receivables 23,992 41,409
Debt investments 300,000 175,000
Total 349,120 235,694

Debt investments relate lo Eurobonds which have been valued at fair value as part of the Company’s Investments as disclosed in note 6. No
collateral is received from NESH Ill or NESH V in relation fo the Eurobonds. The credit quality of these investments is based on the financial
performance of NESH Il and NESH V as well as the underlying investments they own. The risk of default is deemed low and the principal
repayments and interest paymenis are expected to be made in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions.

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty in relation to rade and other receivables. In
respect of the Company's subsidiaries, ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable. As at
31 March 2020, the probability of default of the Company’s subsidiaries is considered low and so no allowance has been recognised
based on 12-month expected credit loss as any impairment would be insignificont to the subsidiary. The Investment Adviser has sufficient
oversight of the subsidiary’s receivables to assess the probability of defoult.
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Details of the Company’s cash balances at the financial year end are set out in the tables below.

Credit Rating

Standard & Total Cash

31 March 2020 Poor’s £000

Borclays Bank PLC long = A 25,128
Y Short = Al ’

Total 25,128

Credit Rating

Standard & Total Cash

31 March 2019 Poor’s £’000
long - A

Barclays Bank PLC Short = A 19,283
long - BBB+

Loyds Bank PLC Short - A2 2

Total 19,285

Liquidity Risk (Company and subsidiaries)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the NESF Group will not be able to meet ifs financial obligations os they fall due. The Board has established an
appropriate liquidity risk monagement framework for the management of the NESF Group's short, medium- and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Company and its subsidiaries manage liquidity risk by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and maiching the maturity profiles of assets and liobilities and maintaining sufficient cash balances to meet their opercting needs.

The table below shows the maturity of the Company's non-derivative financial assets and liabilities. The amounts disclosed are contractudl,
undiscounted cash flows and may differ from the actual cash flows received or paid in the fulure as a result of early repayments.

Carrying Up to 3to 12 Months
31 March 2020 Amount 3 Months 12 Months Plus
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 25128 25128 = -
Trade and other receivables 23992 274 - 23,718
Liabilities
gfé"é?;g;’;g’:gzgfs shores repayment (200,149) (2,368 (7132) (344,868
Trade and other payables (23202) {184} - (23,718}
Total (174,931) 22,850 (7,132) (344,868)

Assumes no conversion of preference shares in 2036.
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Carrying Up to 3 to 12 Months
31 March 2019 Amount 3 Months 12 Months Plus
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19285 19285 = -
Trade and other receivables 41,409 710 - 40,699
Liabilities
Contractual preference shares repayment ond 100,193) (1171] (3.566] 177171)
dividend payable
Trade and other payables (38,213} (264) - {37949)
Total (77,712) 18,560 (3,566) (174,421)
Assumes no conversion of preference shares in 2006

¢) Valuation Methodology and Sensitivity Analysis of the Portfolio

The Directors have satisfied themselves as to the methodology used and the discount rates and key assumptions applied in producing the
valuations in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital valuation guidelines. All operational investments are at fair
value through profit or loss and are valued using a discounted cash flow methodology. Investments that are not et operational are held ot
fair value, where the cost of the investment is used as an appropriate approximation of fair volue.

Discount Rates

Discount rates used in the valuation of the Company's investments represent the Investment Adviser's and Board's assessment of the rate of
ieturn in the market for assets with similar charocteristics and risk profile.

The discount rales used for valuing the Company’s invesiments are as follows:

As at 31 March

Weighled average discount rate 6.8% 70%

: i 6.25% to 6.50% to
Range of discount rates (unlevered to levered) 7.75% 8.0%
Premium applied o cash flows earned 30 years after grid connection date 1.0% 0.0%

A change to the weighted average discount rate by plus or minus 0.5%, with all other variables held constant, has the following effect on the
valuation of the portolio only.

Discount Rate Sensitivity +0.5% Change Investments -0.5% Change
Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2020 (£18.3m) £753.6m £19.7m
Directors’ valuation - percentage movement -3.3% 3.5%
Change in NAV per ordinary share (3.1p) 3.4p
Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2019 {£20.6m) £722.8m £220m
Directors’ valuation — perceniage movement (3.3%) 3.6%
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Power Price

As at 31 March 2020, esfimates implied an average rate of growth of UK electricity prices of approximately 1% (2019: 0.3%) in real terms
and a longfem inflation rate of 3.0% (2019: 3.0%). During the first quarter of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic and other faciors negatively
impacted longterm power price projections. The Consultants provided a range of UK power price forecasts accouniing for different
COVID-19 economic recovery scenarios. The blended average of the “central case” scenarios have been applied to the valuation, which
assumes power prices return 1o the forecasi pre COVID-19 [real) by approximately 2027, Due to the level of uncertainty that COVID-19 has
created, it is prudent fo consider the range of power price forecasts and provide transparency on the impact. For illusirative purposes, if the
“high case” scenarios were 1o be applied to the valuation, the NAV per ordinary share at 31 March 2020 would be 110.6p. If the “low
case” scenarios were fo be applied to the valuation, the NAV per ordinary share af 31 March 2020 would be 71.8p. The “high case”
scenarios assume power prices return to the forecast pre COVID-19 [real} by 2025, whereas the “low case” scenarios assume power prices
return to the forecast pre COVID-19 (real] by 2030.

The table below shows the sensifivity of the portfolio valuation to a susiained decrease or increase in the power price by minus or plus 10% on
the valuation, with all other variables held constant.

Power Price Sensitivity -10% Change Investments +10% Change
Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2020 {£40.7m) £753.6m £39.8m
Directors’ valuation - percentage movement 7.3% 71%
Change in NAV per ordinary share (7.0p) 6.8p
Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2019 {£42.5m) £722.8m £43.4m
Directors’ valuation — percentage movement (6.9%) 70%

Energy Generation

The portolio’s aggregate energy generation yield depends on the combination of solar iradiation and technical performance of the solar
assets. The table below shows the sensitivity of the portfolio valuation 1o @ sustained decrease or increase of energy generation by minus or
plus 5% on the valuation, with all other variables held constant.

Energy Generation Sensitivity Underperformc::c/eo Investments Oufperforma:c/eo
Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2020 (£41.0m) £753.6m £40.4m
Directors’ valuation - percentage movement -7.4% 7.2%
Change in NAV per ordinary share (7.0p) 69p
Directors' valuation at 31 March 2019 (£43.8m) £722.8m £43.4m
Directors’ valuation — percentage movement (7.1%) 6.6%

Inflation Rates

The portfolio valuation assumes long-term inflation of 3.0% (2019: 3.0%) p.a. for investments {based on UK RPI). A change to the inflation rate
by minus or plus 0.5%, with all other variables held constant, has the following effect on the valuation.

Inflation Rate Sensitivity -0.5% Change Investments  +0.5% Change
Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2020 (£26.4m) £753.6m £28.2m
Directors’ valuation - percentage movement -4.7% 5.1%
Change in NAV per ordinary share (4.5p) 4.8p
Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2019 (£34.6m) £722.8m £36.6m
Direclors’ valuation — percentage movement 15.6%) 59%
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Operating Costs

The table below shows the sensitivity of the portfolio to changes in operating costs by plus or minus 10% at the SPVs level, with all other
variables held constont.

Operating Costs Sensitivity +10% Change Investments -10% Change

Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2020 (£12.3m) £753.6m £11.7m

Directors’ valuation - percentage movement -2.2% 2.1%

Change in NAV per ordinary share (2.1p) 2.0p

Directors’ valuation at 31 March 2019 (£11.5m) £722.8m £11.2m

Directors' valuation — percentage movement (1.9%] 1.8%
Tax Rates

The UK corporation tax assumption for the portfolio voluation was 19% for all periods (2019: 19% until 2020, 17% thereatier), in
accordarice with the latest UK Budget announcements.

15. Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Measured at Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents are level 1 irems in the fair value hierarchy. Current assets ond liabilifies are Level 2 items in the fair value
hierarchy. The carrying value of current assets and current liabilities approximates fair value as these are shorterm items.

Preference shares are held at amorfised cost and are measured at gross proceeds net of transaction costs incurred. The transaction cosis are
amortised over the expected life of the preference shares 1o 2036.

16. Audit Fees

The analysis of the auditor's remuneration is as follows:

Year Ended 31 March

Fees payable to the auditor for the audit of the Company 75 148
Additional audit fee and disbursements for prior year 24 8
Total audit fees 99 156

The decrease in the fee poyable to the auditor was due to the change of auditor in September 2019. The audilor was also paid £20,000
for the review of the Interim Report. (2019: £20,000).

17. Management Fees

The Invesiment Manager is eniilled to receive an annual fee, accruving daily and calculated on a sliding scale, os follows below:
* for the tranche of net assefs up to and including £200m, 1% of net assets;

e for the tranche of net assefs above £200m and up to and including £300m, 09% of net assets; and

o f{or the tranche of net assets above £300m, 0.8% of net assets.

For the year ended 31 March 2020 the Company incurred £5.6m in management fees, of which £nil was autstonding at 31 March 2020.
{2019: £5.4m in management fees of which £nil was outstanding at 31 March 2019).

18. Related Parties

The Investment Manager, NextEnergy Capital IM Limited, is a related party due to having common key management personnel with the
subsidiaries of the Company. All management fee transactions with the Investment Manager are disclosed in note 17, In addition, a fee of
£500,000 {2019: £500,000) was paid to the Investment Manager for the arrangement of the issue of preference shares.

The Investment Adviser, NexiEnergy Capital Limited, is a related parly due 1o sharing common key management personnel with the
subsidiaries of the Company. There are no fee tiansactions between the Compony and the Investment Adviser.

The Asset Manager, WiseEnergy (GB) Limited ond WiseEnergy lialia St { together "WiseEnergy”), ore related parties due o sharing
common key management personnel with the subsidiaries of the Company. Under existing arrongements, each of the operating subsidiaries
of the Company entered into an asset management agreement with the Assef Manager and each of the HoldCos entered into an
accounting services agreement with the Asset Manager. The total value of recurfing and one-off services paid fo the Asset Manager by the
subsidiaries during the year omounted to £59m (2019: £4.6m}. This includes £0.3m in relation lo energy sales, an additional service
provided to the Company {which commenced in the current year} under the existing arrangements with WiseEnergy. A further £0.4m relates
fo services provided in the prior year, but expensed in the current year.
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NextPower Development Limiled is o related party due to shoring common key management personnel with the subsidiaries of the Company.
There are no advisory fee transactions between the Company, its subsidiaries and NextPower Development Limited during the year. Note 24
provides details of a related party transaction that occurred after 31 March 2020.

At the year end, £23.7m [2019: £379m} was owed to and from the subsidiaries, in relation to their restructuring. £8.7m of administrative
service fees were received from the subsidiaries during the year (2019: £8.0ml, none of which was outsianding at the yearend (2019 nil).
During the year, dividends of £42.9m [2019: £470m|] were received from the subsidiaries.

The Directors of the Company and their shareholdings are stated in the Direclors’ Remuneration Report on page 65.

19. Controlling Party

In the opinion of the Direclors, on the basis of shareholdings disclosed to them, the Company has no immediate nor ultimate controlling
party.

20. Remuneration of the Directors
The remuneration of the Ditectors was £224k for the year (2019: £173k), which consisted solely of shortterm employment benefits.

21. Preference Shares, Revolving Credit and Debt Facilities

On each of 12 November 2018 and 12 August 2019, the Company issued 100,000,000 preference shares at a price of 100p per
preference share. The preference shares pay a preferred dividend of 4.75% p.a. until March 2036, dofter which they have the right to
convert, based on 100p per preference share and the NAV per ordinary shore at the fime of conversion, info new ordinary shares or a new
class of unlisted B shares with dividend and copital rights ranking pari passu with the ordinary shares. The preference shares do not confer
any voting rights, except in limited circumstances.

The preference shares are redeemable at the option of the Company at any time after 1 April 2030, in full or in part. The redemption price
will be the subscription price plus any unpaid dividends. In addition, the preference shores may be redeemed in full o the option of the
holders in the event of a delisting or change of control of the Company.

The Company’s HoldCos have revolving credit and debi facilities which are foctored inio the calculation of the fair value of the underlying
investments.

In January 2017, NESH closed a syndicated loan with MIDIS, NAB and CBA for £157.5m {"Project Apolla’} 1o efinance its revolving credit
facility. As part of the facility agreement, the lenders provide an additional debt service reserve facility of £7.5m and hold a charge over the
assels of NESH. As at 31 March 2020, the outstanding amount was £147.2m (2019: £148.2m}. The five Iranches terminate between June

2026 and June 2035.

fn February 2020, NESH Il extended the term of its £20.0m revolving credit facility with NIBC 1o February 2022. As ot 31 March 2020,
the outstanding amount was £nil 2019: £51.1m). The two tianches terminate in September 2034,

In March 2016, NESH IV agreed the purchase of the Radius portiolio. The acquisition was part funded by a debt facility entered into
between NESH IV and Macquarie Bank Limited for £55.0m, which was fully drawn down in April 2016. As part of the debt facility

agreement, Macquarie Bank Limited holds a charge over the assets of NESH IV. As at 31 March 2020, the outstanding amount was
£48.6m (2019: £51.1m).

[n July 2018, NESH VI closed a revolving credit facility with Santander for £40.0m which was subsequently fully driawn down. In January
2019, the facility was increased to a iotal commitment of £70.0m with o subsequent £30.0m driawn down. In August 2019, £56.0m was
repaid, with a further £4.5m drawn down in December 2019. As at 31 March 2020, the outstanding amount was £18.5m (2019:
£70.0m).

22. Reconciliation of Financing Activities for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Net Income Non-cash
Opening Cash Flows Allocation Flows
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Share capilal and 600,029 2 % 2960 602989
premium
Preference shares 99022 98,650 - 109 197,781
Retained earnings 45,022 (36,771} (22.651) (2960} (24,360)
Total 744,073 61,879 (29,651) 109 776,410
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23. Commitments and Guarantees

The Company had parental guarontees in place with two financial institutions for a debt obligation and @ currency hedge transaction
executed through subsidiaries.

On 19 November 2018, the Company entered into a counterindemnity deed with Banco Sontander (“Sontander’| regarding borrowings by
NextPower Radius Limited. Under the terms of the deed, the Company may request Santander to issue a letter of credit for no more than
£2,275150. As at 31 March 2020, no letters of credit were in issue [2019; none).

On | December 2017, the Company provided o guarantee to Infesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. (ISP} reloting to derivative transactions made
available by ISP in favour of NESH V. The guorantee covers all present and future obligations of NESH V to ISP relating to the derivative
tronsactions. As at 31 March 2020, the Company has no outstanding commitments reloted to this guaraniee (2019: none). NESH V entered
into the 15 year derivative transaction which hedges the maijority of the future cash flows at fixed exchange rates. As at 31 March 2020, the
unhedged portion of the derivative fransaction is £39.4m over the term of the transaction on a look through basis.

24. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

As announced on 14 May 2020, two subsidy-free projects under development, Strensham (40MW) and Lianwern [75MW], were sold to a
subsidiary of NextPower Development Lid for a combined value of £11.5m, resulting in NESF recovering all development costs incurred. The
transaction resulted in a net 1RR {after NESF's transaction costs) significantly in excess of NESF's annualised arget return of 7-9% p.a. The
transaction consfituled a smaller related party transaction as set out in the FCA's Listing Rule 11.1.10R.

On 11 May 2020, the Company announced an interim dividend of 1.7175 pence per ordinary share for the quarter ended 31 March
2020, 1o be paid on 30 June 2020 fo ordinary shareholders on the register as at the close of business on 22 May 2020.

On 29 June 2020, a shortterm credit facility of £70m wos extended from July 2020 1o July 2022.
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Additional Information

Alternative Performance Measures (“APMs")

We assess our performance using o variety of measures that are not specifically defined under IFRS and are therefore termed APMs. The
APMs that we use may not be directly comparable with those used by other companies. Our APMs, which are shown below, are used to
present a clearer picture of how the Company has performed over the year and are all financial measures of historical performance.

Asset Management Alpha

Year Ended 31 March

Delta of generation vs. budget (A} 4.7 Q1
Delia of irradiation vs. budget {B) 4.0 90
Asset Management Alpha (A - B) 0.7 0.1

Asset Management Alpha measures the operaling performance of the portfolio. It is the performance of the porifolio relative lo budget due
to active management and excludes the effect of variation in solar irradiation.

Invested Capital

As at 31 March

Invested capital 949,831 £896,000

Invested capital measures the capilal deployed into solar assets through the HoldCos and SPVs to generate investment returns for
shareholders.

Gearing

As at 31 March

Financial debt outstanding at HoldCos and SPVs (A) 214,299 269,000
Preference shares as per Statement of Financial Position (B) 197,781 99022
Net assets as per Stalement of Financial Position {C) 578,629 645,051
Gearing (A + B} / (A + B + C)), expressed as a percentage) 41.6% 36.3%

Cearing measures the oggregate of the NESF Group's financial debt and fair value of the preference shares relative to GAV.

Cash Income

Year Ended 31 March

Income as per Statement of Comprehensive Income (A) 61,192 55,613
Trade and other receivables — administrative service fee income accrual at beginning of 249 1708
year as per note 7 to Finoncial Statements (8) '
Trade and other receivables — administrative service fee income accrual at end of year as 252 249
per note 7 to Financial Statements {C)

Cash income (A + B -} 61,189 57,071

Cash income measures of the cash generated from the Company’s operations.
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Cash Dividend Cover (Pre-scrip Dividends)

Year Ended 31 March 2020 2019

£'000 £000
Cash income per table above (A 61,189 57071
Total expenses as per Statement of Comprehensive Income (B 15,129 8637
Pre-scrip ordinary dividends paid as per Statement of Changes in Equity (C) 39,731 38,159
Cash dividend cover (pre-scrip dividends) (A -8} / C) 1.2x 1.3x

Cash dividend cover [pre-scrip dividends) measures the cash available to pay ordinary share dividends, treating all scrip dividends as if they
had been poid as cash dividends.

Dividend Yield

As at 31 March 2020 2019
Pence Pence

Annual dividend per ordinary share declored in respect of year (Al 6.87 6.65
Ordinary share price af end of year (B} 101.5 1175
Dividend yield (A / B, expressed as a percentage] 6.8% 57%

Dividend yield is a measure of the relurn fo the ordinary shareholders.

NAV per Ordinary Share
As at 31 March 2020 2019
Net assets as per Statement of Financial Position (£,000) (A} 578,629 645,051
Number of ordinary shares in issue at year end (B) 584,205,931 581,730,541
NAV per ordinary share (A / B} x 1,000} 99.0p 110.9p

NAV per ordinory share is a measure of the value of one ordinary share.

NAV Total Return per Ordinary Share

Year Ended 31 March

NAV per ordinory shore at year end as per Statement of Financial Position (A) 99.0 1109
Annual dividend per ordinary share declared in respect of year (B} 6.87 6.65
NAV per ordinary share at beginning of year as per Statement of Financial Position {C) 1109 105.)

NAV total return per ordinary share
(A +B-Cl]/ C, expressed as a percentage) {4.6%) 11.8%

NAV tolal return per ordinary share is a measure of the overall financial performance of the Company.

Ordinary Shareholder Total Return

Year Ended 31 March 2020 2019

Pence Pence
Ordinary share price at year end (A) 101.5 175
Annual dividend per ordinary share declared/paid in respect of year (B) 6.87 6.65
Oddinary share price at beginning of year {C) 117.5 1.0

Ordinary shareholder total return per share
(lA+B-C)/ C, expressed as a perceniage) (7.8%) 11.8%

Ordinary shareholder total return is @ measure of the overall performance of the ordinary shares.
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Premium to NAV per Ordinary Share

Year Ended 31 March

Ordinary share price at year end (A) 101.5 175
NAV per ordinary share at year end as per Statement of Financial Position (B] 99.0 1109

Ordinary shareholder total return per share
{[A - B) / B, expressed as a percentage] 2.5% 6.0%

Premium to NAY per ordinary share is o meosure of the performance of the ordinary share price relative to the NAV per ordinary share.

Ongoing Charges Ratio

Year Ended 31 March

Total expenses as per Statement of Comprehensive Income [A) 15,129 8,637
Preference share dividends as per Statement of Comprehensive Income (B 7,789 1822
Non- recurring expenses (C) 264 254
Average of quarterly net assets {D) 643,236 596,466
Ongoing charges ratio (A - B — C) / D, expressed as a perceniage) 1.1% 1.1%

Ongoing charges ratio measures the Company’s recurring operating costs lexcluding costs incurred by the HoldCos and SPVs, inierest costs,
preference share dividends and laxation) as o percentage of the averoge of the net assets at the end of each quarter during the financial
year.
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General Shareholder Information

Alternative Investment Fund Management
Directive (“AIFMD")

The AIFMD aims to harmonise the regulation of Allernative
Investment Fund Managers {"AIFMs’) and imposes obligations on
managers who manage or morket Alternative Investment Funds
{"AlFs") in the EU or who market shares in such funds to EU investors.

The Company is a non-EU AlF and has appoinied NexiEnergy
Capital IM Limited as its non-EU AIFM. The Company's markefing
activities in the UK and the EU are subject to regulation under the
AIFMD and any applicable national private placement regimes
("NPPRs"|. NIPPRs provide a mechanism to market non- EU AlFs that
are not allowed to be marketed under the AIFMD domestic
marketing regimes. The Board uses INPPRs to market the Company,
specificolly in the UK, the Republic of Ireland, the Netherdands and
Sweden.

In accordance with the AIFMD, information in relation to the
Compoany's leverage and remuneration of the Investment Manager,
as the Company’s AIFM, are required to be made available to
investors. These disclosures, including those on the AIFM's
remuneration policy, are available on request from the nvesiment
Manager.

Packaged Retail and Insurance-Based
Investment Products (“PRIIPs”) Regulation/Key
Information Document (“KID”)

The PRIIPs Regulation aims to ensure retail investors are provided
with transparent and consistent information across different types of
tinancial producis.

The Company is a PRIIP. The PRIIPs Regulation requires the
Investment Manager to publish a KID in respect of the Company
that includes standardised illustrations of theoretical risk and returns.
The KID is availoble on the Company’s website under Investor
Relations {www.nextenergysolarfund.com).

The Company is not responsible for the information contained in the
KID and investors should note that the procedures for colculating the
risks, costs and polential returns are prescribed by low. The figures
in the KID may not reflect the expected returns for the Company
and onticipated performance returns cannot be guaranteed.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (“FATCA”)/
OECD Common Reporting Standard (“CRS”)

FATCA is a United Stales federal law enacted in 2010, the intent of
which is to enforce the requirement for United States persons
(including those living outside the US) 1o file yearly reports on their
non-US financial accounts. Developed and approved by the OECD
in 2014, the CRS is a global standard for the automatic exchange
of financial account information between governments around the
world to help fight against tax evasion and protect the integrity of
systems.

The Boord, in conjunction with the Company’s service providers
and advisers, will ensure the Company’s compliance with the

FATCA and CRS requirements fo the exlent relevant to the Company.
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Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 1l
(“MiFID 11”) Status

MIFID Il requires retail investors in complex products fo be assessed
for “knowledge and undersianding” by distributing firms if they are
buying them without odvice.

The Company's ordinary shares are considered as “non-complex” in
accordance with MIFID 1.

Retail Distribution of the Company’s Shares Via
Financial Advisers and Other Third Party
Promoters

The FCA's rules restrict the promotion of invesiment products
classified os “non-mainstream pocled investment products” to retail
investors. The restrictions do not apply to ordinary shares in a UK
investment frust or non-UK invesiment company which would qualify
for opproval as an invesiment trust under section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 if resident and listed in the UK.

The Board has been advised that the Company would qualify as
an investment trust if it was resident in the UK. Accordingly, the
promotion and distribution of the Company’s ordinary shares are not
subject to the FCA's restrictions referred to above.

The Company currenlly conducts ifs affairs so that its ordinary shares
can be recommended by financial advisers 1o retail investors and
intends to confinue to do so for the foreseeable future.

ISA Status
NESF's ordinary shares are eligible for stocks and shares 1SAs.

The Company intends to continue to manage its offairs so that its
ordinary shares qualify os an eligible invesimeni for a siocks and
shares ISA.

Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share

The NAV per ordinary share is calculoted on a quarterly basis and
published through @ stock exchange announcement.

Scrip Dividends

The Company offers a scrip dividend aliernative to shareholders.
For further information, please see “Dividend Policy, Scrip Dividends
and Dividend Target for Financial Year Ending 31 March 2021” on
page 14.

Additional Information

Copies of the Company’s Annual and Interim Reporls, quarterly fact
sheels and slock exchange announcements, together with
information on the Company's ordinary share price, NAV per
ordinary share, historic ordinary share and NAV performance,
together with further information, is available on the Company's
website [www.nextenergysolarfund.com).
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Financial Calendar for Year Ending 31 March

Ex-

2021 Dividend Payment
Interim results announced November 2020 Riicens brf DOt A Ut
Annual results announced June 2021 ot 20/08/20  21/08/20  30/09/20 1.7625p
Annual General Meeting August 2021

2nd 19/11/20 20/11/20 31/12/20 1.7625p
Interim Dividends 3d 18/02/21  19/02/21  31/03/20 17625
In the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the Directors expect to
declare the following interim dividends per ordinary share in respect 4th 20/05/2v - 21/05/21  30/06/2 1.7625p

of the financial year ending 31 March 2021,

Cautionary Statement

This Annual Report and the Company’s website may contain cerlain “forward-looking statements” with respect to the Company’s financial
condition, results of its operations and business, and cerlain plans, stategies, objectives, goals and expeciations with respect o these ifems
and the markets in which the Company invests. Forward-ooking statements are sometimes, but not always, identified by their use of a date in

the future or such words as “cims”, “anlicipates”, "believes”, “estimates”, “expects”, “intends”, “largels”, “objective’, “could”, “may”, “should”,
“will” or "would” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminclogy.

Forwardooking statements are not guarantees of future performance. By their very nature forward-looking statements are inherently
unpredictable, speculative and involve risk and uncertainty becouse they relate to evenis and depend on circumstances that will occur in the
future. Many of these assumptions, risks and unceriainties relate to factors that are beyond the Company's ability to conirol or esfimate
precisely. There are a number of such factors that could cause the Company's actual invesiment performance, results of operations, financial
condifion, liquidity, dividend policy and financing strategy to ditfer materially from those expressed or implied by these forwardHooking
statements. These factors include, but are not limited to: changes in the economies and markets in which the Company operates; changes in
the legal, regutatory and competition frameworks in which the Company operates; changes in the markets from which the Company raises
finance; the impact of legal or other proceedings against or which affect the Company; changes in accounting practices and interpretation
of accounting standards under IFRS; and changes in power prices ond interest and exchange rates.

Any forward-looking statements made in this Annuat Report or the Company’s website, or made subsequently, which are attributable to the
Company, or persons acting on its behalf fincluding the Invesiment Manager and Invesiment Adviser), are expressly qualified in their entirety
by the factors referred to above. Each forwardooking statement speaks only as of the date it is made. Except as required by its legal or
statutory obligations, the Company does not intend to update any forward-looking statements.

Nothing in this Annual Report or the Company’s website should be construed os a profit forecast or an invitation to deal in the securities of
the Company.

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 NEXTENERGY SOLAR FUND



] Oé Additional Information

Glossary and Definitions

Administrator
AGM

AiC

AIC Code

AIFM

Asset Management
Alpha

Apollo portfolio
Asset Manager or
WiseEnergy
Brexit

Cash dividend cover

CBA

Company or NESF
Consultants

CO,e or carbon dioxide
equivalent

DNO

EBITDA

Embedded benefits

EPC
ESG
FCA
FiT

GAV

Apex Funds and Corporate Services (Guernsey) Limited
Annual General Meeting

The Association of Investment Companies

The AIC Code of Corporate Governance (February 2019)

Alternative Investment Fund Manager for the purpose of the EU’s Alternative Investment
Fund Management Directive (see page 104 for further information)

The difference between (i) the delta of generation vs. budget and {ii) the delta of
irradiation vs. budget

21 UK solar plants held within NESH (see the Operaling Portfolio on pages 34 to 35 for
further details)

WiseEnergy {Great Britain) Limited and WiseEnergy Italia Srl

The withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union

The ratio of the Company’s cash income to dividends paid or payable in respect of the
financial year

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

NextEnergy Solar Fund Limited

The two independent market forecasters used by the Company

A term for describing different greenhouse gases in a common unit. For any quantity and
type of greenhouse gas, COze signifies the amount of CO; which would have the
equivalent global warming impact

Distribution Network Operators

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

Supplier costs that are reduced or avoided via contracting with small-scale generation
connected at the distribution network level instead of the national transmission system

Engineering, Procurement and Construction

Environmental, Social and Governance

Financial Conduct Authority

Feed-in-Tariff schemes are financial mechanisms by which the UK Government incentivised
the deployment of small-scale renewable energy generation and the ltalian Government
incentivised the deployment of large-scale renewable energy generation) by requiring
participating licensed eleclricity suppliers to make payments on both generation and

export from eligible installations

Gross asset value, being the aggregate of the net asset value of the ordinary shares, the
fair value of the preference shares and the amount of NESF Group debt outstanding
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GW
GWh

HoldCos

IFRS

Investment Adviser or
NEC

Investment Manager
IPO

IRR

KWh

LIBOR

MIDIS

Mw

MWh

NAB

Net assets or NAV
NAV per share

NAV total return
NEC or NEC Group

NESF Group
NESH

NESH Hl
NESH Il
NESH IV
NESH V
NESH VI

NIROC

O&M
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A unit of power equal to 1,000 MW

GW hour, being a measure of electricity generated per hour

Intermediate holding companies that are used by the Company as pass-through vehicles to
invest in underlying solar energy infrastruciure assets, currently being NESH, NESH II,
NESH i, NESH IV, NESH V and NESH Vi

International Financial Reporting Standards

NextEnergy Capital Limited

NextEnergy Capital IM Limited

Initial Public Offering

Internal Rate of Return

Kilowatt hour, being a measure of electricity generated per hour
London Interbank Offered Rate

Macquarie Infrastructure Debt Investment Solutions

A Megawatt is unit of power equal fo one million watts and is used as a measure of the
output of a power plant

MW hour, being a measure of electricity generated per hour
National Australia Bank

Net asset valve

Net asset value per ordinary share

The actual rate of return from dividends paid and any increase or reduction in the NAV per
ordinary share over a given period of fime

The NextEnergy Capital group of companies, including the Investment Manager,
Investment Adviser and Asset Manager

The Company, HoldCos and SPVs

NextEnergy Solar Holding Limited

NextEnergy Solar Holding Il Limited

NexiEnergy Solar Holding Ill Limited

NextEnergy Solar Holding IV Limited

NextEnergy Solar Holding V Limited

NextEnergy Solar Holding VI Limited

Like the ROCs in Great Britain, the Northern Ireland Renewable Obligation Certificate
scheme obliges electricity suppliers to produce a certain number of NIROC:s for each
MWh of electricity which they supply to their customers in Northern Ireland or to pay a
buy-out fee that is proportionate to any shortfall in the number of NIROCs being so

presented

Operations and Maintenance
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OECD
OFGEM

Ongoing charges ratio

Ordinary shareholder
total return

Ordinary shares

Performance ratio
PPA

Premium/discount to
NAV

Preference shares
PV

Radius portfolio

ROC

ROC recycle

RPI

RRAM portfolio

Scrip shares

SDG

Solis portfolio
SPVs
Thirteen Kings portfolio

Treasury shares

Wholesale revenue

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
Office of Gas and Electricity Markets

The regular, recurring annual costs of running the Company (excluding the costs of
acquisition or disposal of investments, financing charges and gains or losses arising on
investments}, expressed as a percentage of average net assets, calculated in accordance

with the AIC's methodology

The actual rate of return from dividends paid and any increase or reduction in the ordinary
share price over a given period of fime

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company

Describes the relationship between the actual and theoretical energy outputs of a solar
plant (expressed as a percentage)

Power purchase agreement

The amount, expressed as a percentage, by which the Company’s ordinary shares trade
above or below the NAV per ordinary share

The issued preference share capital of the Company
Photovoltaic

Five UK solar plants held within NESH IV {see the Operating Portfolio on pages 34 to 35
for further details)

Renewable Obligation Certificates {the Renewable Obligation scheme is the financial
mechanism by which the UK Government incentivised the deployment of large-scale
renewable eleclricity generation by placing a mandatory requirement on licensed UK
electricity suppliers to source a specified and annudlly increasing proportion of the
electricity they supply fo customers from eligible renewable sources or pay a penalty)

The payment received by generators from the redistribution of the buy-out fund (payments
are made info the buy-out fund when suppliers do not have sufficient ROCs or NIROCs to
cover their obligation)

Retail Price Index

10 UK solar plants held in NESH lIi (see the Operaling Portfolio on pages 34 to 35 for
further details)

Ordinary shares issued pursuant to the Company’s scrip dividend alternative

The Sustainable Development Goals are a set of ambitious global developmental targets
adopted by the United Nations Member States in 2015 fo be achieved by 2030 and seek
to address the global challenges we face through the promotion of development as a
balance of social, economic, and environmental sustainability

Eight ltalian solar plants held within NESH V (see the Operating Portfolio on pages 34 to
35 for further details)

Special purpose vehicles that hold the Company’s investment portfolio of underlying solar
energy infrastructure assets

13 plants held in NESH 1l (see the Operating Portfolio on pages 34 to 35 for further
details)

Ordinary shares which are bought back by the Company, reducing the amount of
outstanding shares on the open market, and held by the Company for resale at a future
date

Revenue from energy sold in the wholesale power market which is not connected with
subsidy schemes or PPAs
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Corporate Information'

The Company
NextEnergy Solar Fund Limited

Registered Office:

1 Royal Plaza

Royal Avenue

St Peter Port

Guernsey GY1 2HL

Registered no.: 57739

LEl: 213800ZPHCBDDSQHS5447
Ordinary Share ISIN: GGOOBJOVYO!
Ordinary Share SEDOL: BJOJVYO
London Stock Exchange Ticker: NESF
Website: www.nextenergysolarfund.com

Directors
{All non-executive and independent]

Kevin Lyon, Chairman

Vic Holmes, Senior Independent Director
Patrick Firth

Sue Inglis

Joanne Peacegood

Investment Manager

NextEnergy Capital IM Limited
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St Peter Port

Guernsey GY1 2HL

Investment Adviser

NextEnergy Capital Limited
20 Savile Row
London W1S 3PR

Company Secretary and Administrator
Apex Funds and Corporate Services (Guernsey)

Limited

1 Royal Plaza
Royal Avenue

St Peter Port
Guernsey GY1 2HL

Independent Auditor

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Glategny Court
Glategny Esplanade
St Peter Port
Guernsey GY1 1TWR

Registrar

Link Market Services (Guernsey) Ltd
Mont Crevelt House

Bulwer Avenue

St Sampson

Guernsey GY2 4|H
Legal Advisers

As to UK Llaw

Stephenson Harwood LLP
1 Finsbury Square

London EC2M 7SH

As to Guernsey Law

Carey Olsen (Guernsey) LLP
PO Box 98, Carey House

les Banques

St Peter Port

Guernsey GY1 4BZ

Movurant Ozannes
Royal Chambers

St Julian’s Avenue

St Peter Port
Guernsey GY1 4HP

Financial Adviser and Joint Broker

Cenkos Securities ple
6, 7, 8 Tokenhouse Yard

Llondon EC2R 7AS

Sponsor and Joint Broker

Shore Capital and Corporate Ltd
Cassini House

57 St James's Street

Llondon SW1A 1D

Media and Public Relations Adviser

MHP Communications Limited
60 Great Portland Street

London W1W 7RT
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6/8 High Street
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